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things I’'m looking for. I'm not looking for it would be difficult for you to be away from
work because it's -- most everyone on the venire panel, except those lucky retirees
who no longer have to go to work, have to work. And nonetheless, the legislature
has said you still have to serve on jury duty.

Most major casino hotels -- | should say all major casino hotels pay
their employees while they're on jury service their regular salary. Usually they
require that you turn in your per diem amount to the company. Also lots of other
major corporations do that as well because it’s their way of being good corporate
citizens. And so if you have some question about that you should check with your
particular employer.

So all of that being said -- also the last thing is that if you're excused
because you say you can’t serve on such a jury for this amount of time you could
get -- you're not going to get just excused forever. You're going to get called up
very shortly and you could get called for a jury that may go much longer. Many of
our civil cases, for instances, go for weeks. And there are criminal cases that also
go weeks and sometimes months, that’s also true of civil cases. And so -- although
it sounds like a long time, a week is actually a shorter trial.

All right. All of that being said, now the show of hands of people who
can't possibly serve. All right. And so now what we're going to do is I'm going to
start at the top with -- and we’re going to go in order. I'm going to hear all of your
excuses. And I'm won’t make any decisions. I'm just going to take notes and then
I'll discuss it with the lawyers at the bench once I've heard from everyone. All right.
Let’s start.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #065: 0065, Krystal Treadwell-Brass. | have a

family member’s memorial service to attend on September the 9™.
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THE COURT: That’s --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #065: Monday.

THE COURT: Wednesday. No?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #065: It's Monday.

THE COURT: What day?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #065: Next Monday.

[Colloquy between the Court and clerk]

THE COURT: What time is the service?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #065: At 11, | believe.

THE COURT: Okay.

All right. And next person.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yes. 0070, Phoebe Cooper.

THE COURT: All right. Miss Cooper.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: My work requires me to be in San Francisco
every other week, so | have non-refundable plane tickets to be there on Monday the
o,

THE COURT: Okay. And what’s your business? What --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: It's an online travel company, Expedia.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. They can'’t get you better -- they can’t get you good
plane tickets, Expedia? That’s who | use.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: | know. [Indiscernible] cancellation.

THE COURT: All right. But they could send somebody else on this trip?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: I’'m required to be there every other week.

THE COURT: Well, | know, but you're required to be at work every day;
right?

Partial Rough Draft Transcript, Day 1-11
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yeah.

THE COURT: So it’s -- to me it's no different.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: | don’'t make the decisions.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. But | made the note. Okay.

THE MARSHAL: Your Honor, we're going to go back to the second row.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: 0062, Kathryn Schwendemann.

THE COURT: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: And my question is, on the days that we don’t
start maybe till afternoon, do we have to be here first thing in the morning?

THE COURT: Oh, just waiting around in the hall? No.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Okay. ‘Cause my reason for that | have two --
my in-laws are living with us. One has dementia that | care for. She’s also a bit
disabled, so | have to help get her ready in the morning. And then my father-in-law,
he’s got breathing problems. So if she falls down he’s -- you know, for him to try to
pick her up and so that was -- if I'm there in the morning then | can at least get her
dressed and stuff.

THE COURT: Okay. So --so in the mornings that we start earlier you may
need to go do that a little earlier, but --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yeah, | would have to because she normally
sleeps till about 11 o’clock.

THE COURT: Well, you're going to have to wake her up.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

Partial Rough Draft Transcript, Day 1-12
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THE COURT: Yeah, if you're --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. And so that was --

THE COURT: -- responsible for getting her --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- my only thing ‘cause having to get her
dressed --

THE COURT: Yeah.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- and everything ready, so --

THE COURT: You do that every day?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. And --

THE COURT: Yes, that's a big job.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- it was only supposed to be for a short term,
and it's been four months, and it's gonna go on maybe for another two months, so --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: All right.

THE COURT: I'll make that note here.

Okay. Who's next?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #072: 0072, Nelson Baggs.

THE COURT: Okay. And, Mr. Baggs.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #072: I'm fine with Monday, Wednesday and Friday,
but I’'m an engineering student at UNLV.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #072: And from 2:30 to 5:15 on Tuesday | have
class, and on Thursday | have lab starting at 8:30 till -- and class till 5:15.

THE COURT: So you’re in class -- you're at school all day on Thursday

basically.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #072: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: 0074, Melissa Hawkes.

THE COURT: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: I'm available Monday through Friday from 9
a.m. till 1 p.m., but | am a stay-at-home and | need to take my kids to and from
school during the other hours and care for them after school.

THE COURT: Okay. So when do you need to take them to school?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: They need to be at school by 8 o’clock, so |
could get here 9 o’clock, give or take, and then | need to pick them up by 2:10.

THE COURT: By 2:10? Well, that doesn’t work.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: No.

THE COURT: So who -- what are their ages?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: They are ages 9, 6 and 5.

THE COURT: Okay. Do they go to a private school or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: No, Neil C. Twitchell Elementary.

THE COURT: And they get out when?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: The school is from 7 -- | believe it's 7:55, is
when it starts till 2:10.

THE COURT: Really?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: Well, 11 actually. It's weird.

THE COURT: Gosh. That's a new schedule. Usually the elementary schools

go from 9 till like 3.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: They share property with Vanderburg

Elementary --
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THE COURT: Aah.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: -- so they have staggered start and delayed
times for traffic reasons.

THE COURT: Oh, | see. That's early for the little kids. | have a --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: It’s nice in the afternoon --

THE COURT: -- high schooler that gets up at --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: -- with all their activities.

THE COURT: Yeah. All right. Okay. And that's every day?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: That’s every day, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. I've got that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #080: 0080, Yoahnna Newell. I'm the same thing. |
have one child and | have to pick him up at 1:15. | can be here from 9 to 12:45, but |
have no friends or family here that can pick up my son. He’s 14.

THE COURT: Okay. Do they not have the Safekey programs anymore?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #080: Just | never put him in that, so | have no idea.
| always pick him up, so --

THE COURT: Well, | know. | know, but you knew you had jury duty.

And what about also Ms. Hawkes. |s there Safekey --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: I'm not comfortable --

THE COURT: -- available for your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: -- putting my kids in Safekey.

THE COURT: | know that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: | don’t trustit. | won't doit. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Well --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: | don’'t -- | don’t go out. | don’t have date
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nights. | don’t leave my kids. It's hard enough at school.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: And I'm active in the school. I'm there all the
time. All the teachers know me.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. And do you have family?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: Do I?

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: Yes.

THE COURT: And --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: And no one that's available for that. My
husband is a firefighter.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #074: So he works 24 hour shift. So every other
day | could probably do it, but it's not like every Wednesday or every --

THE COURT: Okay.

All right. Who else?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: 0085.

THE MARSHAL: Can | get you to stand there. You got a very soft voice.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: Sorry. 0085.

THE COURT: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: I'm a nurse practitioner for --

THE COURT: Your name?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: Cheryl Spollino.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: And I'm a nurse practitioner for a small
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hospice, which means we have one -- we have two providers. The physician’s on

call this this. If the trial goes over | begin call 24 hours, seven days starting on

Monday. So if there’s an emergency or something | have to go to the patient’s

home.
THE COURT: Okay. And so what happens like if you're ill --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: Pardon?
THE COURT: -- with a contagious disease?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: Either they would send -- if there’s no provider

they would either have to have an ambulance come or see if they could get an

alternative provider. Usually me and the physician switch off. He put this schedule

in because I'm in school, so we had designated next week for me.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: | usually do every other week.

THE COURT: Okay. So there could be some scheduling --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: Pardon me?

THE COURT: There could be some scheduling changes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: | would have to see if he’s not -- if he's in
town because he comes in from out of town. So he usually plans his trips around
when I'm available or on call.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #085: This week I'm off.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #095: 0095, Cohn O’'Donnell.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #095: I'm part of an out of state drilling project in
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North Dakota that starts tomorrow. It goes seven days a week, 24 hours a day.

THE COURT: And did you say -- where was it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #095: North Dakota.

THE COURT: North Dakota. The boom area.

And who do you work for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #095: DHI Services. I'm a lead geologist.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: 0099, John Brewer. | work for a corporation
that has a lot of branches around the county and | travel around doing software
training.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: And so the only time I'm usually home is
during the holiday weeks, so | have postponed jury duty to this week hoping that |
could, you know, serve through Friday, but Monday | have non-refundable tickets for
out of the state.

THE COURT: What company do you work for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: ALSCO, Inc. [phonetic].

THE COURT: And so if you were ill what would they do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: | guess they'd have to postpone the whole
branch training because I'm the only one that does it.

THE COURT: Okay. And when you say branch training, what kind of training
is it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: It's a specialized account software training for
the tablet program for our customer service department.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: These are the kind of things that are
scheduled months in advance.

THE COURT: Okay. And where is it that you're supposed to go on Monday?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: I'll be going to Reno. Sorry, it's not out of
state.

THE COURT: The garden -- the garden spot of Reno.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #099: That's right.

THE COURT: All right.

Okay. Anybody else?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #100: 0100, Austin McKenna. | am a microbiology
student at UNLV and | have class every morning, and on Tuesday from 2:30 to 5:20,
Thursday 2:30 to 5:20, and Friday morning 8 to 11:20 | have labs. And every lab |
miss drops me a letter grade.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Got it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: 0119, Shumin Yang.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: My English is problem.

THE COURT: You're having problems with your English. All right.

How long have you lived here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Here?

THE COURT: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Seven years.

THE COURT: All right. And do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: | work in a -- casino dealer?

THE COURT: Casino dealer?

Partial Rough Draft Transcript, Day 1-19
718




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Which property do you work for?

THE MARSHAL: Stand up, sir, please. Your voice raised and hold the
microphone please as close as you can.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Okay.

THE COURT: What casino do you work for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Golden Nugget.

THE COURT: Golden Nugget downtown. All right. And how long have you
worked for them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Six years.

THE COURT: What games do you deal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: I'm a poker dealer.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Yes.

THE COURT: And do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Yes --

THE COURT: Are they --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: -- only one.

THE COURT: One. How old?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Thirty.

THE COURT: Thirty. Oh, okay.

Does he live here in Las Vegas too?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: No.

THE COURT: No. Where does your child live?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: My child live in Virginia.
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THE COURT: Aah, Virginia. Okay.
And is that a son or a daughter?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Son.

THE COURT: Son. And what does he do in Virginia? What does he do for a
living?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: He’s a casino worker in -- engineer.

THE COURT: Oh, in the union, did you say?

MR. HAMNER: | think he said engineer.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Engineer.

THE COURT: Oh, engineering. Oh, very good. You must be very proud.
Are you proud of your son?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: | -- yes.

THE COURT: All Right. Well, have you had trouble understanding what’s
been happening?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Some -- someone say something I'm not
clearly --

THE COURT: All right.

MS. JEFFERSON: -- understand.

THE COURT: Okay. Because as | speak to you it seems that you
understand. Your English seems pretty -- pretty good. You have to speak to your
customers when you deal don't you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Yes.

THE COURT: Like --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: We’'re [indiscernible]. Not speak too much.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, we'll see how it goes and as we get
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further into the process -- you're kind of in the back there and so the chances of us
getting to you are kind of low. So we’ll check back with you and see how you're
understanding things; all right? Sit down. Thank you very much.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #119: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: 0111, Robert Bronstein.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: | have a religious obligation to appear in
synagogue on Thursday and Friday for the Jewish High Holy Days of Rosh
Hashanah.

THE COURT: Oh, yes. When is Rosh Hashanah this year?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: It starts Wednesday night and goes through
Friday night.

THE COURT: Okay. And what are you responsibilities? | know it doesn’t
start till sundown and we’ll be out of here before then.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: Right. Well, I'm a congregant at Midbar
Kodesh.

THE COURT: Okay. And as a congregant do you have special duties that
you'll have to --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: Well, just religious obligations to worship at
that time of year.

THE COURT: Okay. And are the services -- the services are during the day
for one day, is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #111: Well, two days.

THE COURT: Two days. Okay.
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All right. Do we have any other folks that -- okay. All right. Good. Let
me just write your last name down here.
And was there anyone else -- thank you, sir. Anybody else back here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: 0124, Donald Roberts.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Roberts.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: My wife and | are actually moving and we're
flying to Oklahoma City this weekend to look for a home. And then | also work out of]
state, so I'm flying straight from there to Richmond, Virginia for the week and then
from there to Alaska.

THE COURT: And then Alaska, did you say?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Oh, my goodness. You're all over the place.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. So when are you leaving?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: Friday.

THE COURT: So you’re moving to Virginia?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #124: No, Oklahoma City.

THE COURT: Oklahoma City; okay.

All right. Thank you. I've got that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #125: Brenda Diaz, 1 -- it's 03 -- wait. Sorry. 125.

THE COURT: | cannot hear you at all.

THE MARSHAL: Brenda, can you do me a favor and stand up, please.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #125: I'm Brenda Diaz, 0125.

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Diaz, tell me what your issue is?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #125: | just had someone that died yesterday.
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THE COURT: Oh, I'm sorry.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #125: Yeah. And we're actually doing a whole week
of fundraisers for him and I’'m in charge, so | really can’t be here.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

And there were some other folks here in the front.

THE COURT CLERK: Did you excuse her?

THE COURT: No, | did not -- didn’t excuse her yet.

THE MARSHAL: No, Your Honor. | think she’s stepping out --

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

THE MARSHAL.: -- just to gather herself.

THE COURT: Just step out. Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #132: I'm also -- I'm 0132. And | planned on -- my
name’s Stanley and | planned on leaving for Salt Lake tomorrow for the Jewish
holidays, but if | can’t go, | can’t go, you know, so --

THE COURT: All right. Okay. All right. Thank you.

Is that it then for the -- everyone? All right.
Just hang on to that microphone --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #132: Okay.
THE COURT: -- until Mr. Crank gets back.
Did I get everybody?
Okay. Counsel, approach.
[Bench conference -- not recorded]

THE COURT: I'm going to read off the names of the persons who will be

excused. These folks will have to go over to the jury commissioner and let them

know that you'll have to serve another time. Of course, if you're leaving the state
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permanently you won't get -- you won’t be resident, you wouldn’t be recall, but -- and
the people whose names aren’t call need to remain for now. Things may change,
but for now you would need to remain.

So people that may go across and let the jury commissioner know that
you're excused for today: Krystal Treadwell-Brass, Nelson Baggs --

THE COURT CLERK: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay. So Krystal Treadwell-Brass is 065; Nelson Baggs, 072;
Melissa Hawkes, 074; Yoahnna Newell, 080; Cohn O’'Donnell, 095; Austin McKena,
0100; Robert Bronstein, 0111; Donald Roberts, 0124; Brenda Diaz, 0125 and
Stanley Weiner, 0132.

All right. If | called your name you should be standing up. All right.
Thank you very much.

All right. And we’ll call the next in order to fill in the box.

THE COURT CLERK: To fill seat number 7 is Jade Kulka, badge 73. And to
fill seat number 12 will be Katarina Tadich.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Now the next question | have is whether is anyone who feels that they
cannot serve for reasons that they believe they can’t be fair and impartial or for any
other reason, like language problem. Unless you stood up and talked about a
language problem in the last go around, | don’t need to hear that again. But if you
have concerns about language, you have -- something about this case makes you
think that you could not be fair and impartial, for any reason whatever itis. Do we
have anyone that feels that they can’t serve? All right. The record will reflect a
negative -- whoops.

THE MARSHAL: One response, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Oh, okay. One response.
THE MARSHAL: Ma’am, if you would please stand.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #122: Yes.
THE MARSHAL: Last four digits of your badge please facing the podium.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #122: |s there any possible way that | could speak
to her privately?
THE MARSHAL: As far as what?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #122: To tell her my [indiscernible] privately.
THE MARSHAL: Have a seat and let me approach the Judge.
Your Honor --
[Bench conference -- not recorded]
THE MARSHAL: Ma’am, please step forward.
THE COURT RECORDER: And which badge number?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #122: 0122.
[Bench conference -- not recorded]
THE COURT: Counsel, approach.
[Bench conference -- not recorded]
THE COURT: Ms. Chanos, you're excused. Please go across and let the
jury commissioner know that you need to be reassigned to a different type of case.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #122: Okay.
THE COURT: Maybe a civil case. I'm sure we have some of those going.
Were there any other? All right.
Okay. All right. So now some of these next questions are going to be
just directed at the folks that are seated in the box. And then as we fill in, if we lose

people from the box, we'll be asking you these questions later, but these are just
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directed to the people that are sitting in the jury box and again you respond by a
show of hands, just the folks in the box.
Has anyone in the box ever served as a juror before?
All right. So on the top row we’ll start. Your badge number and name.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: 0058, Terrance Koepke.
THE COURT: All right. When you served as a juror was that here in Clark
County?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: No, ma’am.
THE COURT: Where was that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: San Diego County.
THE COURT: How long ago was that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Eight years ago.
THE COURT: Was it a civil case or a criminal case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Criminal.
THE COURT: And without telling us what the verdict was, did the jury reach a
verdict?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes, ma’am.
THE COURT: Were you the foreperson of the jury?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: No, ma’am.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
All right. Your badge number and name again.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: 0070, Phoebe Cooper.
THE COURT: Ms. Cooper, your jury service was that here in Clark County?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No, it was in San Francisco.
THE COURT: And how long ago?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: About three -- three years ago.

THE COURT: Was that a criminal case or a civil case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Criminal.

THE COURT: And without telling us what the verdict was did the jury reach a

verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you the foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

THE COURT: Anything about that experience that would make you feel you

could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. And I think your seatmate there --
All right. Ma’am, would you give your name and your badge number.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: 0075, Katarina Tadich.

THE COURT: Ms. Tadich, what -- did you serve here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No, in New York County.

THE COURT: In New York -- the state of New York?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: New York City --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: --in 2011.

THE COURT: All right. Was that a criminal case or civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Civil.

THE COURT: Without telling us what the verdict was did the jury reach a

verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Yes.
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THE COURT: And were you the foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No.

THE COURT: Now you understand that the burden of proof in a criminal case
is different than in a civil case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Yes.

THE COURT: And so you'll be able to follow the law and disregard what you
heard about the burden of proof in your civil case and apply the law as | instruct you
in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Yes, | understand.

THE COURT: All right. Anything about that experience that made you think |
never want to be on a jury again or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No.

THE COURT: -- anything problematic? All right. Thank you.

Okay. All right. Is there anyone seated in the box whose ever been in
law enforcement? Anyone has a family member or a very close friend that’s in law
enforcement? All right. We'll start at the top.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: 0054, lvis Kam-Pamintuan. My brother-in-law
is a Metro officer.

THE COURT: All right. What -- what’s his job? What's he’s assigned to, do
you know?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: He’s in the patrol car over in the northwest
area.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you speak to him about his work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: On and off. Not often, but we do.

THE COURT: All right. You’re going to need to speak up a little bit. | think
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my court recorder’s having trouble.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: | said on and off we do.

THE COURT: All right. So obviously there may be police officers who testify
in this case. And would you tend to give the testimony of a police officer greater
weight or credibility merely because that person was a police officer, for no other
reason, and in disregard of their -- of what they were saying?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No.

THE COURT: Okay. So you have the ability then to weigh each witness’
testimony with all of the evidence and give it the weight or credence it deserves?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Any reason you feel you could not be fair and
impartial because of this relationship with your brother?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Who is -- anybody else on the top row law enforcement? No. Second
row?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: 0062, Kathryn Schwendemann. My very
close, her son is a law enforcement officer, so --

THE COURT: Here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. With what department?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: You know, | don’t know.

THE COURT: Okay. So you probably don’t speak to him about his work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, no.

THE COURT: How about --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: We just get fun.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: That'’s it.

THE COURT: And how about her? Do you ever talk to him -- or her about
her son’s work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, no.

THE COURT: Okay. So any reason you could not be fair and impartial --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

THE COURT: -- due to that relationship?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No, reason.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: All right.

THE COURT: Want to hand it over?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: 0073, Jade Kulka. It's just -- it’s like -- not
blood blood, but my stepfather’'s brother’s kid --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- with Metro.

THE COURT: Yeah. | have a stepfather’s brother’s -- it's like I'm my own
grandpa. All right. | get the -- you know, with step relationships they can be very
close. So do you ever speak to him about his work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No.

THE COURT: So you don't really -- do you have a relationship with the law
enforcement officer, his or herself -- that person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: We get together at Christmas. You know,
holidays, stuff like that, but --
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THE COURT: Okay. All right. Any reason you could not be fair and impartial
as a result of that relationship?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: 067, James Wood. Two of my best friends
are retired law enforcement. One medically retired and my wife was -- is a retired
corrections officer.

THE COURT: All right. And were these officers that are retired, were they
here -- Metro or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: No.

THE COURT: -- one of the police departments?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: No.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: In California.

THE COURT: In California.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: But they live here now.

THE COURT: Okay. How about your wife? Was she a corrections officer
here or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: In California.

THE COURT: In California too. Oh, okay; so everybody in California. So
you're -- you moved here after retirement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Yeah, we -- | moved here about nine years
ago after | retired.

THE COURT: All right. As a result of those relationships with some close

friends, do you feel that you would give more weight or credibility to a police officer’s
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testimony merely because they were a police officer but for no other reason?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: More likely to believe a police officer than not.

THE COURT: Would you be able though to listen to what they were saying,
and if it didn't seem to be credible would you still say, well, | don’'t care what they
say. Whatever they say it must be true?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: [Indiscernible] as to whether it’'s actual truth or
not.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, you would have to judge that by listening to all the
testimony and looking at all the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Sure.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Because anybody could say something that
they say is the truth and it's not.

THE COURT: All right. Exactly. So do you feel that you could be fair and
impartial then in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Sure.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Hi. 0070, Phoebe Cooper. My parents are
both retired juvenile probation officers.

THE COURT: Okay. Out of a different state?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Clark County.

THE COURT: Clark County. Oh, okay. And | suppose you heard them
speak of their work over the years. Were they always juvenile?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. So they never dealt with adult offenders?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

THE COURT: Okay. And, of course, they dealt with people who’d already
been placed on probation and therefore a finding made of guilt?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yeah, my mom was kind of an investigator
and she did other things in that realm.

THE COURT: Okay. So do you feel that you could be fair and impartial as a
result of that relationship?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yes.

THE COURT: So you wouldn’t tend to give the weight of a police officer more
-- or the testimony of a police officer more weight just because that person’s a police
officer without considering the other evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

Okay. Has anyone in the box ever been the victim of a crime? So only
one person’s ever had their car stolen, purse or wallet stolen -- anything stolen from
them? So now -- let’s see the show of hands now. Okay. Okay.

All right. But now -- before | go into it, is there any of you who raised
your hands who feel -- because, you know, there are certain crimes that are
considered violent crimes and certain crimes that are considered non-violent crimes.
Those of you who raised your hand to say you were victims of crime, have any of
you been the victims of a violent crimes? Okay.

Is there anyone of you who raised your hand who feels that because of
this non-violent crime that they were a victim of that they could not be fair and
impartial in this case? Okay. So, to those last two questions a negative response.

Is there anyone who raised their hand about being a victim of a crime
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who feels that the police did not do a good enough job to solve that crime and has
hard feelings about it? The record will reflect a negative response. All right. Thank
you.

Is there anyone who has had a family member or close friend been the
victim of a violent crime? All right. So juror -- spot number 2. Again, give me your
name and badge number.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: 0054, lvis Kam-Pamintuan. Just recently, in
May, we had a close family member, Shauna [phonetic], that was killed in her home.
And | believe that that is -- was on trial in the beginning of late July, early August.

THE COURT: Okay. And that happened here? This is --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: That happened here in Vegas.

THE COURT: In Vegas. All right. And this was a close friend of yours?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: It was a family friend.

THE COURT: Family friend. Okay. As a result of that do you feel that you
could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No.

THE COURT: You feel that you could be fair and impartial. All right. So you
could set aside your feelings about what happened and compartmentalize that and
not bring it to this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Did we have anybody else in the top row? No. Next row. Second row,
family member or close friend --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: 0073 --

THE COURT: Yes.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- Jade Kulka. My brother was killed. A guy
chased him down and ran him over on the highway. And | had a problem with the
judicial system because the guy that ran him over claimed he was crazy or
something and went to a hospital for two years instead of getting jail time, so --

THE COURT: Okay. And did that happen here in our --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No, in California. But --

THE COURT: In California.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- his parents were very wealthy so | have a
problem with that because | think, you know, money has a lot to do with it.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you feel that you could set your feelings aside for
this case and look at the evidence in this case and be fair and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Well, yeah.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | guess. Yeah.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: 0066, Robert Soncini. A girl 'min a
relationship with now, she was a victim of domestic violence. And when she left that
relationship she moved in with me as a shelter [indiscernible].

THE COURT: All right. Anything about that experience that makes you feel
that you could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And did we have -- Ms. Cooper.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: 0070, Phoebe Cooper. | had a close friend

that I'm not no longer in close contact with. About five years ago who was --
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someone broke into her home and raped her.

THE COURT: Was that here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No, it was in Sacramento.

THE COURT: Sacramento; okay. Any reason from that experience and in
speaking with her about that that you could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

All right. So is there is anyone sitting in the box who has been accused

of a crime? The record will reflect a negative -- oh, top row. Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: 0056 --

THE COURT: All right. And --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: -- Alberto Estremera.

THE COURT: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Alberto Estremera.

THE COURT: Oh. Thank you.

And, sir, you said you've accused of a crime. What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Bank robbery.

THE COURT: Okay. Was that -- when was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: | was -- about 22 years ago.

THE COURT: All right. And --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, more than that. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: More than 20 -- over 20 years ago.

THE COURT: Over 20 years. All right. And what was the result of that?

Were you tried or --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: | wasn’t indicted.

THE COURT: You were not indicated; okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No.

THE COURT: So there was a possibility at some point and then they decided
that they would not indict you. Is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Right.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have hard feelings against law enforcement
because of that experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Oh, yeah. That and more.

THE COURT: Okay. What more?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Excuse me?

THE COURT: You said that and more.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

THE COURT: What by -- what do you mean by that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, the treatment that | went through with
the FBI.

THE COURT: Okay. So you felt that they -- did you feel that they didn’t
investigate the matter properly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No. | just think they treated me wrong.

THE COURT: Okay. And why was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, they used to go to my sister-in-law’s
house when they -- when they were looking for my brother because he was also
charged.

THE COURT: | see.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: And they would -- they would basically break

Partial Rough Draft Transcript, Day 1-38
737




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

into her house and disrupt the whole house. Throw -- take -- take food from the
kitchen throw it all over the place and stuff like that.

THE COURT: Where did this happen? What city?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: New York City.

THE COURT: Okay. And they didn’t have a warrant to come and search the
house?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that would be very disturbing indeed.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: Do you feel that that would affect your ability to be fair and
impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Oh, well of course.

THE COURT: Okay. So you -- before though -- in answer to the question,
was there any reason you felt any -- for any reason you couldn’t serve, you didn’t
say yes. So you feel that -- | mean, we need fair and impartial jurors.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Exactly.

THE COURT: If you don’t feel that you could be fair and impartial to both
sides then that would be a problem.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

THE COURT: So you don't feel that you could be fair to both sides?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, | could try.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, you're the only one who can really search your
mind and tell us whether you think that you could successful at that. So do you feel
that you would be -- you would not be able to be to the State because of your bad

experience with law enforcement?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Probably.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Just trying to be fair.

THE COURT: Okay.

Does -- would the State and defense like to inquire further on this -- his
issue at this time?

MR. SCOW: If | may, Judge.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SCOW: You said the FBI was involved, but | was just curious about how
it was that you were one of the ones that was accused. You were never indicted,
but did -- did a witness point you out? Were you arrested at the bank or how did
that come about?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No. Supposedly my brother was involved and
they used my vehicle in the robbery.

MR. SCOW: So the license plate --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: So they thought | was the driver.

MR. SCOW: Okay. So the car was tied back to you. And the house that was
tossed, were you and your brother living together when the police came in and was
throwing food around?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No.

MR. SCOW: Was that his house or yours?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: His house.

MR. SCOW: His house. And you said you would try to be fair, but you also
said that you probably wouldn’t be fair and you’re just trying to be honest, which we

appreciate. If we call witnesses that happen to be police officers is what happened
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to you something that you would hold against them and -- before you even hear a
word out of their mouth or do you think, you know, they did me wrong 22 years ago
and so I'm going to listen to you with some skepticism?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No. I'm gonna listen, but | -- | don’t know if
I’m gonna believe it all.

MR. SCOW: Okay. So you don’t think you would be fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: [I'll try to be as fair as | can --

MR. SCOW: Because that’'s what we're asking.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: -- based on my experience.

MR. SCOW: Right. And that’'s why we have this process so that -- you know,
voir dire translated loosely means to tell the truth. So we don’t mean to pry into
these incidents and bring up negative feelings. We just want to make sure that we
get jurors that are fair to the State, fair to the defense, and so that’s why I'm asking
these follow-up questions.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Right.

MR. SCOW: Court’s indulgence.

Judge, we’ll motion for cause at this time.

THE COURT: Traverse?

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

Mr. Estremera, you said you'll try to be fair; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: And we all have experiences that inform our analysis of anything
that we see; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Right.

MR. POSIN: And every one of us in this room has some sort of biases, don'’t
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-- at least | think we probably do; right? And part of the job of a jury is to set aside
those biases and look at the facts that are presented; would you agree with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: So, based on that, do you think that even though you might
have some biases that you could set aside those biases and view the evidence
that’s presented and the arguments that are made by both sides and come to a fair
conclusion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes, | could try.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Now, sir, have you ever had any positive experience with law
enforcement in the intervening 20 some years?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Oh, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And so -- how about have you had positive experience
with law enforcement here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. So, basically, there are some good apples and some
bad apples?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

THE COURT: All right. So like anything else -- and would you be able to then
listen to the testimony of each witness, including police officers or law enforcement
officers, as well as other people, and look at all -- the totality of the evidence in trying
to determine whether you should believe that witness?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. All right. The challenge for cause is denied.
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All right. Anyone else who was accused of a crime? All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: 0066, Robert Soncini. December '99, assault
and assault with a dangerous weapon.

THE COURT: Okay. And was that here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No, Berkshire County, Massachusetts.

THE COURT: What was the result of that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: | pleaded no contest, probation and
dismissed.

THE COURT: Okay. Did you feel that you were treated fairly by the system?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And did you plead guilty because in fact you were guilty and
that’s the reason --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- or no contest?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. And anything about that experience where you feel like
| just could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

Anyone sitting in the box that has someone -- a close friend or family
member who was accused of a criminal -- and not to repeat your brother’s incident,
but anyone else? All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Five or six years ago a coworker was
accused of a crime and actually convicted.

THE COURT: Convicted of the crime?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. What kind of crime was it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Statutory rape of his stepdaughter.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. Did you know this person well or was this just a
coworker?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: | knew him fairly well.

THE COURT: Did you socialize with him outside of work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Occasionally.

THE COURT: Did you feel that he was treated fairly by the system?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that experience that would cause you to
think you could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And right in front of you. Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. I've got a brother-in-law --

THE COURT: Your name and badge number again --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, okay.

THE COURT: --just for the record.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: 0062, Kathryn Schwendemann.

THE COURT: Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Brother-in-law who -- | guess you would say
he's a little mental -- or a lot. His divorced wife, he went to the house and bible in
one hand and gun in the other and they scuffled, the gun went off. Nobody was

killed, but he was put in a mental home and so that’s pretty much --
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THE COURT: His story --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- with him -- that -- in fact, that's why we went
back to get the in-laws.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Do you -- anything about that that makes you
think you could not be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And -- okay. All right. It's almost 11 o’clock. How’s everybody doing?
Anybody need a break -- a restroom break? All right. So -- and don’t be shy about
that. If you need a break and I've lost track of time -- because sometimes I've been
accused of being a camel and so just let the marshal know. | try and care for you,
but sometimes | go later than | should.

So we're going to take a brief recess. Now I'm going to read to you an
admonishment that | have to read every time we take a break. Also, | want to tell
you, since this will be the first occasion that you may be out in the halls and
encounter counsel, is that the ethical rules preclude the lawyers or court staff,
except for our marshal, from speaking to you until after the case is fully over. So
please don't try and engage them in conversation because they’ll have to ignore
you. And then they’ll feel really bad because they’ll think you think that they’re rude
and obnoxious when really they’'re not. They’re very delightful gentlemen and my
court staff are wonderful, but they’re just not allowed to do that. So please don't
make them feel bad by trying to engage them in conversation or, you know,
greetings. After the case is over you could speak with them.

And this admonishment is again -- you'll learn to love to hear it. Ladies

and gentlemen, we're going to take a ten minute recess. During this recess it is
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your duty not to converse among yourselves or with anyone on any subject
connected with the trial, or to read, watch or listen to any report of or commentary on
the trial by any person connected with the trial or by any medium of information,
including without limitation, newspaper, television, radio or internet, and you are not
to form or express an opinion on any subject connected with this case until it is
finally submitted to you.
We'll be in recess for ten minutes.

THE MARSHAL: All rise. This courtis in recess. Ladies and gentlemen in

the box first, please.
[Outside the presence of the prospective jury panel]

THE COURT: All right. The record will reflect the venire panel has left the

courtroom.
Are there any matters outside the presence?

MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.

MR. SCOW: No, Judge.

MR. POSIN: Your Honor, just one thing | was thinking of. | have a law clerk
-- an intern who's starting his second year at UNLV law school. And he, you know,
hopefully will be available for part of the trial. I’'m hoping the Court will allow him to
sit here at counsel table?

THE COURT: | don't let people that aren’t admitted to the bar sit at counsel
table --

MR. POSIN: Okay.

THE COURT: -- but he can certainly sit behind you.

MR. POSIN: All right.

THE COURT: And also, do we know, did this matter get any media
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coverage?

MR. POSIN: Not that I'm aware of.

MR. HAMNER: Not that I'm aware of.

MR. SCOW: | don'’t think so.

MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So | usually don’t ask if | don’t think there was any
media coverage because then they start like inventing --

MR. POSIN: Right.

THE COURT: --things. But | can still ask them, | suppose, justin case. |
wouldn’t want them to confuse it with another incident if there was one.

All right. Thank you.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.
MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.
MR. SCOW: Thank you.
[Recess taken at 11:00 a.m.]
[Proceedings resumed at 11:13 a.m.]
[In the presence of the prospective jury panel]
THE MARSHAL: Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

Okay. The record will reflect that we are back again in the presence of
the venire panel. The Defendant is present with his counsel, as are the deputy
district attorneys prosecuting the case, and all officers of the court. Will counsel so
stipulate?

MR. POSIN: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge.
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MR. HAMNER: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, as you know, our system of
justice has a very important -- you know, right to trial by jury, obviously, but also an
important component is the presumption of innocence. And, of course, that means
that unless and until the State proves beyond a reasonable doubt otherwise that a
defendant accused of a crime is presumed to be innocent. Is there anyone who
disagrees with that concept of our law sitting in the box? The record will reflect a
negative response.

Is there anyone who feels that a defendant should be required to tell his
or her side of the story in a criminal case? The record will reflect a negative
response. Of course, a defendant is not compelled to call any witness or testify on
his or her own behalf. That is also protected by our constitution -- the Fifth
Amendment. And is there anyone who disagrees with the precepts or the concept
of that you don’t have to, as a criminal defendant, prove that you are not guilty? All
right. The record will reflect a negative response.

Now at the end of all of the evidence that will be submitted the Court
will instruct you on the law, and this is done with written instructions. Sometimes the
law is something other than what a person thinks it should be. Is there anyone who
feels that they would be unable to follow the instructions of the Court, even if they
felt that the law should be something other than what it is? All right. The record will
reflect a negative response.

Let's see. Is there anyone sitting on the jury panel who feels either by
religious -- has religious reasons or other moral reasons or personal belief reasons
that makes them feel that they cannot sit in judgment on another person? All right.

The record will reflect a negative response.
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Okay. Is there anyone that’s sitting in the box right now for any other
reason | haven’t already asked you about feels that -- could not be fair and impartial
in this case? The record will reflect a negative response.

All right. Here’s my next part of the voir dire. This is my favorite part
because | get to ask you about yourselves and | get to find out kind of about you.
And it's my favorite part because people have really fascinating lives and they’ve
done really exciting things in their careers and -- or they have kids that do fabulous
things, and I'm in awe of it, and so | always enjoy this. So I'm going to ask you a
really open-ended question. By this | do not want your life story starting from high
school, but | want you to cover these topics. So when | say to you, tell me about
yourself, what I'd like you tell me is how long you lived in Clark County, are you
married, single, divorced, significant other, partner, what you do for a living or if
you're retired or you’re currently unemployed what you did for a living in the past. If
you’re -- if you haven't lived a, you know, lengthy time in -- here in Clark County
where you lived before. And if you have adult children what they do for a living. If
you have wife, significant other, husband, partner, et cetera, then what that person
does for a living. And don’t worry that if you think you can’'t remember all of this
because I'll prompt you and I'll ask follow-up questions as we go through this. And
then when | finish asking you the individual questions then the lawyers will ask you
questions too. Now they know not to repeat the same questions that I've asked, but
they have their own questions. And all of this is just geared for us to kind of get to
know who you are as people so in choosing who we want to be on the jury, who can
be fair and impartial and what type of life experience the jurors are bringing to the
table.

All right. So we’ll start as always at the top there in seat number 1 and
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again you'll give me your name and your badge number for the record because we
record everything that’s said and then I'd ask you to tell me about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: My badge number is 053. My name is
William Alford and I lived in Las Vegas coming up on two years now. I'm a retired
military officer. | was a pilot in the Air Force for 31 years in the Air National Guard. |
have two adult sons. One is a dental student at UNLV and one is an actor in New
York City. My wife, her job was taking care of me and the boys and she was also a
travel agent for a period of time. And | think that covers about everything.

THE COURT: Okay. No. No, because --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: No? I'm sorry.

THE COURT: -- | want to know --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: | grew up in Columbus, Ohio.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: | went to school at Ohio State University.
While | was in the Air Force | traveled around and was stationed at Okinawa and
various places throughout the country.

THE COURT: Okay. And what did you fly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: | started off flying F4s and F15s. Then | went
to the International Guard in Ohio and flew KC-135s.

THE COURT: Okay. Now I'm not familiar with that aircraft. What does that --
what’s the mission of that one?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: It refuels the other planes.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. In air refueling. My son is a Naval flight officer.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Good for him.

THE COURT: And so -- yes. And he flies the Growler.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Wow.

THE COURT: But I'm a pilot too, so | always have to ask what you fly. But
that’s very -- very interesting. And your son is actor and where is he doing this at?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: In New York City.

THE COURT: In New York City. Has he gotten any jobs?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Yeah, nothing noteworthy.

THE COURT: And how does he support himself as a starving actor?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: He works at a furniture store.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Restoration Warehouse, that's what it’s
called --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: --in New York City.

THE COURT: All right. Very good.

All right. Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. SCOW: Yes, if | may, Judge.

Now, I'll just ask a few question, but as | do just everyone -- I'll be
following up with you as we get to each of you individually. Don’t want to use too
much time asking the same questions of every person then you get bored and think
this guy just must like to talk and | don’t. Trust me, ask my wife; she’ll tell you | don't
like to talk, but --

THE COURT: Oh, | just realized, counsel. | didn't do what | told you | was
going to do beforehand. And so this is the time actually before we get into the
individual questioning. Lawyers are going to ask you general questions as a group.

Then we’ll come back and we’ll do my favorite part.
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MR. SCOW: So | will be asking questions of the group. Now this is good.
First, | want to know, because you've heard that this case the setting was at a
church, is there any here that attends church regularly, semi-regularly, | guess, or
even once a year? Just raise the hands. And | won't follow up right now, but I'll just
make note because we will, as we go through each person -- is your hand up too?
And as we’re going through this and if you think to yourself, until we get to you
individually -- the reason | ask is because this did happen at a church. | just want to
know if anybody -- you know, if they happen to be a church goer if they would hold
that against the Defendant like automatic strike one. I'm more likely to find you
guilty because this happened at a church. I’'m not going to ask for those answers
now, but that's what | want you to think about as we go through the questions and
then as the Judge starts asking questions again.

Does anybody here watch the TV shows that deal with crime scenes:
CSI Miami, CSI Las Vegas, Law and Order, those type of shows? Seeing most of
the hands, maybe ['ll just write down the ones that didn’t raise their hands. Not
raised are five in the back and nine.

Did everybody -- those that did raise their hand, does everybody kind of
distinguish what happens in the TV shows versus what happens in real life. They
may use some things that happen in real life, but usually a crime isn’t solved within
30 minutes or an hour. You’re looking at me kind of strange.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: I'm kidding.
MR. SCOW: | know.

And -- but some of the techniques that they used, for example, one

show there was a dead person and they took the eye and did a slice of the eye to try

to see the last imagine that that eye saw for it died. But that can’'t happen. Anybody
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want to see that happen in the courtroom? No. And then think about the purposes
of some of the techniques they use: DNA, fingerprint. What are the purposes of
using those sciences? When | come back and ask you questions I'll follow up on
those.

And the Judge had asked if anybody had been arrested or accused of a
crime. And I'll ask a more general question. Has anybody had a really positive
experience with the police? Maybe like they happened to save a relatives’ life or a
cat from a tree, or maybe not that extreme, but had a really positive experience with
the police. No? [Indiscernible] police officers out there.

How about the opposite? Anybody had like a really -- and I've already
spoke with you in the back in seat 3. Anybody else had a really negative experience
with a police officer? Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Sort of.
THE COURT: Just a show of hands right now. We’'ll follow up --
MR. SCOW: Yeah, we'll follow up later.

And that could be along the lines of you got pulled over for a speeding
ticket, whether rightly or wrongly, and they were just rude. And that happened to me
once and that can be a frustrating experience. So we have the one hand. Is there
anybody else that had a really negative experience with law enforcement officer?

Now either members of the panel, you or a friend or relative had any
experience with alcohol -- drinking alcohol, whether at a party setting or social
setting. Yourself or friends anybody drink alcohol? Okay. So I'll just write down the
ones that haven’t raised their hands. So not raised are in the back --

THE COURT: Teetotalers.
MR. SCOW: Okay. Ones that didn’t raise their hand that don'’t --
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THE COURT: The teetotalers raise their hands.

MR. SCOW: -- that haven’t drank or don’t drink alcohol. So in the back
there --

THE COURT: Okay. There we go.

MR. SCOW: Okay. My last general question right now would be the Judge
asks if somebody had served on a jury before and there was a comment of, you
know, it wasn't terribly exciting. But has anybody, when they got their subpoena in
the mail, did anybody think excellent. I've always been waiting for one of these and
| finally got it. Anybody like that? No. Well, that's okay. A little excited just to get
the learning experience or -- no? Okay. You've seen enough of it on TV I'll take it.

Okay. That’s the last of my general questions then, Judge.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Mr. Posin.
MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.
| haven’t been called to a jury for many -- several decades either. And
I’'m probably the only one, or maybe other lawyers, who actually would like to serve
on ajury. But every time I've gotten picked and booted off pretty much immediately.
The Judge asked you the question about whether you understand and
agree with, or at least don’t have a problem with the proof -- burden of proof that we
have in our system, and that's proof beyond a reasonable doubt. Now when this
trial is over the Judge is going to be asking -- is going to be giving you some
instructions. And she also asked you about that, about whether you could follow
those instructions. One of those instructions is going to have to do with each
element of each crime charged being proven beyond a reasonable doubt. Now

does anybody here have a problem with the idea that every crime that's actually
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charged has to be proven beyond a reasonable doubt? Okay. That's -- I'm going to
come back to that in my individual questioning and throughout this trial, but, Your
Honor, that’s really all | have in my general questions.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And let's see. There was another general question | wanted to ask. Is
there anyone that thinks that they may have heard about this trial or read about this
trial somewhere else -- or the case, | should say, the facts. All right. Where’s our
microphone. There itis.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Robert Soncini, 0066. | follow the media and
local reports intensely. So I'll always have something up on the browser, so | -- this
does ring a bell in memory, but nothing recent.

THE COURT: Okay. We don’t there was any media coverage actually on this
case, but | always ask because --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Something about it is resonating --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: -- of something being involved.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Can’t be a hundred percent of everything,
but --

THE COURT: Okay. And so the fact that you -- you don't -- it just kind of
rings a bell, so you don’t remember any details if -- if even this is the same --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Correct.

THE COURT: -- matter. And so would that impact your ability to be fair and
impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No.
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And is there anyone who believes that, yeah, the CSlI stuff is real or that
any most -- any court TV unless it’s just like they’re recording what happens in the
courtroom, which is pretty dual as you can already tell. |Is there anyone that kinds
any of those shows are real? That that’s really what happens? All right. The record
will reflect a negative response. | ask that because | had a juror who said yes it was
all real and she believed that. And Judge Judy, in fact, was here favorite and she
believed all that was real.

Okay. So we -- we've asked our juror seat -- number one juror to tell us
about himself and he did that. And so I’'m going to allow the lawyers now to ask
individualized questions beginning with seat number 1.

MR. SCOW: Thank you, Your Honor.

You raised your hand as a church goer either regularly or once in a
while.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Not very regularly.

MR. SCOW: Okay. And that’s okay. | just want to know, based on any
church attendance, if you're going to hear evidence in this case -- like my co-
counsel already said, the location of this crime was a church. And you heard an
introduction -- and we’re not going to ask you to think about anything other than this
happened at a church. If any church attendance that you -- that you do does that
put you in a position where you're thinking, you know, this just happened at a church
and | am really offended by that and that’s already something that you're going to
hold against the Defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: No.

MR. SCOW: Okay. And like we've said, the purpose of this is to try to get fair
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and impartial jurors, fair to the Defendant, fair to the State, so that we have people
that can come in and listen to the evidence and make decisions based on what they
hear from the witness stand. So that’s the purpose of that question and as | get to
the others who raised their hands to make sure we have fair jurors.

Anything that you've heard thus far from the questions by the Judge, by
the defense attorney or myself that would cause you to think, you know, I'd rather
serve on a civil jury or do something else or do you feel that you can be a fair and
impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: | think | could be fair and impartial.

MR. SCOW: Okay. And that’s -- that’s all that | have for this juror. Thank
you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Mr. Alford, have you ever heard the phrase where there’s smoke
there must be fire?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Do you think that there’s some application of that phrase to a
criminal case that where somebody’s accused, somebody’s sitting here in court that
that means that something must of happened, that they must be guilty of
something?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #053: No, that's what we’re here to do.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.

Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. If you'd pass the microphone over. Thank you. And, again,
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your badge number and your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: 054, lvis Kam-Pamintuan.

THE COURT: All right. And would you tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: | grew up in the Los Angeles area; a little
suburb right out of LA. Moved out here in ’93, so | went to high school here. And
I’'m now married. I've been married for 15 years; 2 kids. | am currently a debt
collector. My husband actually works down the street at a wedding chapel, and he'’s
been doing that for over 20 years. What else [indiscernible] answer.

THE COURT: Okay. And does he perform the weddings or does he just run
the chapel?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No, he’s a consultant.

THE COURT: A consultant.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Yeah.

THE COURT: And you said you were from a suburb in LA, so which one?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Monterey Park.

THE COURT: Okay. Any reason you feel that you could not be fair and
impartial juror in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Would the State like to inquire further?
MR. SCOW: Yes, just briefly.
Now you also raised your hand as a church goer. Anything about your

religious beliefs or going to church that you think that -- that it will be tough to hear of
the charges that we’ve alleged in this case happening at a church that you would

hold against either side actually, the Defendant or the State?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No. | mean, I'm very involved in church
activities. My kids are very involved in church and my sister is a pastor -- she’s an
ordained pastor, but overall no.

MR. SCOW: Okay. And the Judge will have an instruction at the end that we
are people with our own experiences and we can bring our common sense to court.
So it’s okay that, you know, you do things with the church, that your kids are
involved, and you don’t have to completely ignore everything and just come in here
as a robot and listen to the evidence, push a button that says compute, and that
says guilty or not guilty. You can bring in your life experiences, but as long as you
can be fair that's what we're interested to know.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Okay.

MR. SCOW: All right. You didn’t raise your hands as being one terribly
excited to have received your jury summons. Did you have the opposite reaction
when you got it? Did you think, oh, great, there’s a waste of that day or week or
anything like that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: No. It's been a while. Well, the first two times
| think | was called | just gave birth to each kid and it was just by chance that |
wasn’t able to come, so | think it's just about time that | got here.

MR. SCOW: Okay. | had received a summons earlier this year and | actually
served on a jury. | know Mr. Posin said he'd received a summons, but | served on a
jury and so | can understand the pain or, | guess, excitement of receiving a
summons. You're okay coming in sitting as a potential juror in this case hearing the
facts and rendering a judgment as to those facts and another person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Yeah. | mean, my work is -- you know, it's

incentive based, so that would be difficult, but yeah.
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MR. SCOW: You said your work is what?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Incentive based. | work on commission.
MR. SCOW: Well, so it'd be difficult.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: To take --
MR. SCOW: Workwise you wouldn’t be earning those monies?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Right.
MR. SCOW: But otherwise you could be fair and impartial?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #054: Yes.
MR. SCOW: Okay.
No more questions. Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Mr. Posin.
MR. POSIN: | don’t think | have any questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you. If you'd hand the microphone over.
Mr. Estremera, tell us about yourself. And you're badge number 56.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Fifty-six, correct.
THE COURT: Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Born in Puerto Rico, raised in New York City.
Went to California; from California | came to Nevada. | was married for about 35
years. My wife passed away four years ago. When we came to Nev -- to Vegas we
did foster care for about 22 years. I'm retired.
THE COURT: What did you do before you retired, besides the foster care?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: | used to be a loan officer?
THE COURT: For a bank or a --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No, for mortgage.
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THE COURT: Mortgage; okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.
THE COURT: So you basically mortgage brokerage place and you would

screen the loans?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

THE COURT: Take applications?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. How about your wife? What did she do?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: My wife was a homemaker. She would stay

with the foster kids. We used to have teen -- teen females only.

THE COURT: Okay. That’s a big job.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Oh, yes.

THE COURT: Having any teenager is a big job.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. And so some of these teens that you fostered came

from troubled homes and backgrounds?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes, always.

THE COURT: And so when you -- would you have more than one at a time?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: | would anywhere between four to six.

THE COURT: Okay. So were there times when there would be conflict in the

house with -- did you have your own kids living there at the same time as you would

foster?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes, my daughter -- one of my daughters.
THE COURT: Okay. So any conflicts between the kids ever?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Not between my kids, but --
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THE COURT: Okay. So --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: -- the other kids yes.

THE COURT: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: The other -- yes.

THE COURT: And ever times when you would have to decide, you know, if
there was a conflict who was telling the truth about the conflict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, we would find out from the other girls.
You know, usually one of them will tell you what is happening.

THE COURT: Okay. So you'd kind of interview everybody and investigate
and then make the decision based on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Exactly.

THE COURT: All right. Okay. And your daughter’s grown now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes, she is.

THE COURT: What does she do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: She’s an administrative assistant to the VP of
credit over in Venetian and Palazzo.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So kind of in the same family business, sort
of, you know, finance like you were?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Sort of. Yes.

THE COURT: Sort of.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Exactly. Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Very good. Thank you.

Mr. Scow.
MR. SCOW: | don't have any additional follow up. Thank you, Judge.
THE COURT: Thank you.
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Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

Mr. Estremera, | want to follow up a little bit on your experience that you
had where you were, at least initially, thought to be part of some sort of criminal
involvement. And you mentioned that you felt that your brother was mistreated, but
did you feel you were also mistreated as well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: And what way did you feel that you were mistreated?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: | was stopped almost everywhere | went. |
was -- | was charged with a -- | was stopped one time and charged for something
that wasn’t even true.

MR. POSIN: What was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Like a VIN number -- altered VIN number.
You ever heard of that?

MR. POSIN: So you essentially felt that they were kind of out for you at that
point?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, they were looking for my brother, so
they were just harassing -- harassing me every day just about.

MR. POSIN: Harassing you in order to get evidence --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Right.

MR. POSIN: --to lead to your brother?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

MR. POSIN: And at that point did you feel that they were just assuming that
your brother was guilty even though they didn’'t have the evidence or why were they

harassing you to get to your brother?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Because they thought that | knew where he
was.

MR. POSIN: Okay. And -- but you didn’t actually know where he was?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: No.

MR. POSIN: So they just kind of thought that you must know. They were
kind of making some assumptions that you knew?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Did they ever threaten to bring any charges against you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, they did. | was charged with bank
robbery.

MR. POSIN: Oh. You were actually charged --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: -- with the bank robbery as well. So you were charged with
being an accessory to the bank robbery because they thought that you were actually
driving the car?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: But then those charges were ultimately dismissed? What
happened to them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Right. | wasn’t -- | wasn'’t able to get indicted.
| wasn'’t indicted --

MR. POSIN: Okay. So --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: -- after three months in jail.

MR. POSIN: Okay. And then they decided that they didn’t really have the
evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: That they couldn’t indict me, yeah.
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MR. POSIN: But at that point you were afraid they could have gone forward
against you; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: And fortunately they never did. Did that experience give you
any feeling about the -- about the legal system?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Oh, yes.

MR. POSIN: What kind -- what kind of thoughts did you have about the legal
system while you were sitting in jails for three months?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: It stinks. It's not fair.

MR. POSIN: What parts did you think were unfair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, not while | was in jail, but when | was
out.

MR. POSIN: Okay. What parts did you think that were unfair once you got
out?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Well, | was always stopped. This is every
day. | mean, sometimes twice a day. | mean, | can get stopped, personal property
on the street and there’s nothing. They all know | have a driver’s license.

MR. POSIN: So did you end up feeling sort of powerless?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Like people had the -- if not the right, the ability to make your life
difficult because of their position?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

MR. POSIN: And those people had choices that they could make, that they
could either leave you alone or harass you, and they chose to harass you; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: That's what | feel.
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MR. POSIN: So they had a lot of responsibility and you don’t think that they
exercised that responsibility well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Correct.

MR. POSIN: Do you think it's possible that that kind of thing could happen
again. That there could be somebody charged with something that maybe they
really shouldn’t be charged with because somebody didn’t exercise their
responsibility well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #056: Yeah, | believe so. Just because | don't -- |
don’t know doesn’t mean it doesn’t happen.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.

That's all | have, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Will you pass the microphone over?
All right. And Mr. Koepke, is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: 0058, Terrance Koepke.

THE COURT: Koepke.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Been married 47 'z years. Two children, one
deceased. Three grandchildren, one deceased. Joined the Air Force when | was
17; spent 28 % years in the Air Force. Retired from the Air Force; joined an
insurance company as an insurance auditor. | worked for them for 20 years and
now I'm self-employed as an insurance auditor.

THE COURT: Just can’t keep a job, huh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Twenty-eight years -- jumping around. All right. What did you

do in the Air Force?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: The last 20 years as an Air Force recruiter.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. That's a long time to be a recruiter --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- so you must have been very good at it because they
wouldn’t have kept you in that job if you weren’t; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. And your kids, some are grown?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Have a daughter.

THE COURT: A daughter.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: And what does she do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Stay-at-home mom.

THE COURT: Stay at home. Do you have any grown grandchildren?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Two grandchildren. | had a third one that
passed away when he was five.

THE COURT: Oh, I'm sorry. Are the grandchildren that you have that are
living are they adults now or are they still young and not working?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: They're still young.

THE COURT: Okay. And your -- you said you've been married 47 years, did
| hear?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Forty-seven and a half.

THE COURT: Congratulations. And what does your wife do or is she retired?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: She just helps me now that I'm independent --

THE COURT: Okay. So that can be --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: -- or self-employed.
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THE COURT: -- a big -- big help. Did she ever work outside the home?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: He cared for our son. She used to be an
executive secretary and then our son had a terminal brain disease and she cared for

him at home for the last 13 years of his life.

THE COURT: Oh, my goodness. So that -- that was a terrible thing to
happen to your child and your family.

So did you have to travel around a lot during your career as a -- with the
Air Force or because you were a recruiter did you get to --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: At first in the Air Force, and then once as a
recruiter pretty much stabilized between a number of places that we could go.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So how long have you lived here in Clark
County now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Since 1966. And | may have --

THE COURT: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: -- said that | served on jury duty eight years
ago, but it was really 18 years ago. Time just --

THE COURT: | know. | know. Isn’t that strange the older | get the faster time
goes by and it seems if | say, oh, that was just a couple of years ago it turns out it
was ten. And | -- last week when we were picking a jury | asked a gentleman after
he told me he had moved from California in 1980, which doesn’t sound like that long
ago to me, | said to him, so what did you do there in California, and he said | was a
child, so that made me feel very old. And | know 80 was a long time ago, but it
doesn’t seem that long ago, but it was. That was a long time ago.

All right. |s there any reason you feel that you could not be fair and

impartial in this case?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: No, ma’am.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.
Mr. Scow, are you handling this?

MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SCOW: You also had raised your hand as someone who attends church
either regularly or sometimes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes, sir.

MR. SCOW: Is that something that would factor into your decision making
process in this case at all?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: | don'’t believe so.

MR. SCOW: Okay. And you were one of the ones that had raised your hand
for the crime scene shows that you've either seen or watched them regularly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Just flipping the channels, | mean.

MR. SCOW: It's not something you tune in every Thursday night at --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: No.

MR. SCOW: -- 5:30 or record them on your DBR? In your mind -- and then
think about the show Crime Scene Investigations where they look for things like
DNA, fingerprints, things like that. What do you think the purposes are of collecting
swabs for possible DNA or fingerprints -- lifting those from a scene what would be
the purposes of that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: To try to identify a particular person.

THE COURT RECORDER: Could you hold that a little closer.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: To try to identify a particular person or

individual.
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MR. SCOW: To try to identify a person. If that’s kind of one of the focuses of
those shows is to try to identify a few of those different means -- scientific means. If
in this case there wasn’t anybody who testified about DNA or fingerprints, is that
something that you would hold against the State?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: | don't believe so.

MR. SCOW: You would have to hear all the evidence first to be able to make
any decision like that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes.

MR. SCOW: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yes.

MR. SCOW: All right. | don’t have any more questions. Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

Mr. Scow’s been asking you about DNA evidence and other evidence
that has to do with identification. And in many TV shows anyway the issue is
identification. Who is it? Who was there? And if somebody wasn'’t there, if they
weren't actually involved that’s potentially a defense. But do you think that's the
only defense to a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: | don't really know.

MR. POSIN: If we have a case, like this case for instance, where there’s not
really a whole lot of question about who was there, but there are other issues about
whether a crime should’ve been charged, are you able to keep an open mind as to
whether the crimes charged for this offense have to do with what happened or are

appropriate for what happened or whether they do not, even if we accept that the
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people that are -- that were there were definitely there. Is that something --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Oh, | think so.
MR. POSIN: -- you're open to?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #058: Yeah.
MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.
Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. And just to let the jury know, you'll be instructed on the law as
to all crimes that are alleged and charged. And so you'll be fully instructed on that
and make your decision based on law. All right. And the facts, of course, as you
decide because you’re the fact finders. That’s your job.

All right. So we have now our next -- Heather Lawson.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Yes, [indiscernible].

THE COURT: And you’re badge number 597

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. Tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Okay. I'm a teacher here in Clark County.
I've lived here for 12. I’'m originally from the Atlanta area. My husband also works
for the school district. He works IT at one of the junior highs. We have three
children. They’re all school aged -- younger. | think that was everything.

THE COURT: All right. Have you always been a teacher?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: | have. | taught to two years in the Atlanta
area and then here in Clark County.

THE COURT: And so how does the school district in Atlanta compare to

here; what do you think?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Well, first of all, it's been so long since I've
was there. And that was my first two years teaching, so I've learned a lot since
there. | enjoyed both.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: You know, | taught less classes there, which
was nice, but my classes were actually larger than what they are now. | work in
Boulder City so they're a little smaller than in Vegas.

THE COURT: Yes. What's the average class size that you have?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: This year they’re a little larger, but usually
they're about 25. My largest class this year is 33 and | know some in town are way
over 40, 50, so it’s a little different.

THE COURT: Okay. And what grade level do you teach?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Junior high. | have sixth and seventh grade.
| teach computers and math.

THE COURT: Okay. That's -- those sixth graders are so little and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Well, | love them.

THE COURT: -- really the seventh graders too. It's the eighth graders that
start --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: That’'s my least favorite. | taught them as
well.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: That’'s my least favorite age though.

THE COURT: All right. Do you ever disputes between students you have to
negotiate or deal with?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Very rarely, you know. There was a fight that
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happened in front of me my very first year of teaching, but | didn’t do a whole lot
other than yell, stop, stop, stop.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: | didn’t break it up.

THE COURT: All right. And if there are problems are there others --
counselors or -- that’s their primary job to deal with --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- problem students or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Students have come to me before, but usually
| just direct them to the counselor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

Mr. Scow.

MR. SCOW: | don't have any follow up. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Ms. Lawson, they give us these printouts which have a very
minimal amount of information about the jurors. One of the things it says is years of
education and for you it says seven. I'm sure that you have a lot more education
than that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Yeah. No -- ‘cause | -- well, | don’t know if it's
talking about college past that maybe --

MR. POSIN: | don’t know where they up with --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: -- because | have my bachelor’'s and then |
have my master’s and then I've taken 32 credits above my master’s as well.

MR. POSIN: Okay. I just wanted to follow up with what the Judge just said at

the end of the juror that we were talking to. And she said that when this is all over
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she’s going to be giving you instructions and those instructions are going to have
elements of each crime that's charged. And are you going to be able to look at each
of those elements and determine not only was my client there at the time, but did the
prosecution prove each and every one of the elements that she’s going to tell have
to be proved?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #059: Yes, sir, | feel | can.

MR. POSIN: Thank you.

That's all. Thanks.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. | you could pass the microphone all the way back down to Ms.
Schwendemann.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Schwendemann.

THE COURT: Schwendemann.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Number 62 and I'm Kathryn Schwendemann.

THE COURT: Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: And | grew up in the Midwest. Got married
there; been married 42 years. And have a son and a daughter. Son served in the
Marines; daughter served in the Coast Guard. My daughter got our two grandkids, a
boy and a girl, 10 and 8. | got a degree in -- an AAS in drafting and design. And
then we moved and then | got a degree in teaching K through 8. Then we moved
and we opened our own business up here in '95. We do hearing aids. And -- so
that's what we’ve been doing. So | do the bookkeeping, insurance billing, calling
and everything else.

THE COURT: And your husband does what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: He's the hearing specialist, so --
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THE COURT: Oh, okay. So does he give hearing tests?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. He does the hearing test and then fits
the devices.

THE COURT: All right. And does he travel like to the elder care facilities and
things to do that or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: We did that at the beginning --

THE COURT: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- and now we just -- he does make special
trips to hospital and stuff if the patient can’t make it in.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

And now your children that are grown what do they do? Are they --

your daughter is not in the service anymore; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Right. She’s a -- she went to college after
she got out and she’s an ER nurse in California.

THE COURT: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: So she loves that and we'll real proud of her.
My son’s in Kingman, Arizona and he’s a hearing specialist down there.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. So did he go into that after as a result of your
business here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. When he got out of the service then he
decided to go into that.

THE COURT: And how does he like Kingman?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: He likes it. It's a small town, as you know.
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THE COURT: Yes. Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: And -- but he likes it. He -- we grew -- he
grew up in small towns along the way here, so --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- he’s comfortable there.

THE COURT: So you lived here since '95?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Since '95, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Then -- and where were you living when you did your
teaching?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Well, first we were in Mississippi when | got
my drafting. And then we moved because of my daughter’s health. She had
asthma --

THE COURT: Aah.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- so we moved west and went down to
southern Arizona and | got my teaching degree down there. And then my husband
got offered a job up here with the hearing and so -- then we came up here. But both
kids -- by the time we came up here they had both gotten out of school and --

THE COURT: Okay. So you never did any of the drafting? You never used
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No, other than for own -- other than for our
own use when we had a health club and | did the layout -- the plans for the health
club.

THE COURT: Well, that came in handy, but --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. No money in it, but --

THE COURT: Right. How about the teaching? Did you ever get to actually
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teach?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. | finally -- how many years ago was that,
six? Time flies. | don’'t remember how many years ago, but | taught kindergarten at
a private school --

THE COURT: Okay. Did you --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- here in town, Challenger.

THE COURT: Oh, you did. Okay. So how many years did you teach
altogether?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Just two.

THE COURT: And it was just kindergartner?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Just kindergartner, yes.

THE COURT: That's --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: It was awesome.

THE COURT: Yeah. Well, it's -- what’s that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: And then we went -- we opened our business
again, which is why | left teaching because --

THE COURT: Well, there’s that book, Everything -- what is it called?
Everything | Ever Needed to Know | Learned in Kindergarten.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

THE COURT: About the important things, if you think about it. Yeah.

All right. Thank you very much.
Mr. Scow.

MR. SCOW: Mr. Hamner’'s going to --

THE COURT: Oh. Mr. Hamner.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.
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Good morning, Ms. Schwendemann.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Good morning.

MR. HAMNER: So | just had a couple questions that | wanted to follow up on.
Now, Mr. Posin had been speaking with a couple other individuals earlier. | think
Mr. Estremera and | know there was another individual. There was some discussion
about is it possible someone could charge somebody with a crime that may be
incorrect. Maybe they weren’t doing their job. Do you remember hearing something
like that a little bit earlier?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yeah.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Well, there was another question Mr. Posin asked
about, this notion of would you be able to focus on the elements in order to
determine whether or not the right crimes were charged. Do you remember hearing
something to that effect?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Let’s touch on that for a second. As far as looking at
that, you'd be willing, if you were selected as a juror, to try to make sure that the
State has met their burden by proving every single element; is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Right.

MR. HAMNER: Now, Ms. Schwendemann, | have a question for you. Do you
think that in order to make that determination about whether each element was
proven it might be important to not only look at the actions that actually constituted
the crime the moment it's happening, but maybe you look at maybe some actions or
some evidence that may have happened beforehand. Do you think that might be
helpful in maybe proving an element of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, yes.
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MR. HAMNER: And why do you say that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: It kinda gives you an idea of where the person
was coming from mentally.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Now let’'s kinda reverse it. What about if you were to
look at maybe some evidence that maybe happened after the crime that’s being
charged occurred? Do you think that might be also helpful in determining if the
State meets their burden in proving each of these elements of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: It's possible.

MR. HAMNER: And why do you say it's possible? Why could it possibly be
helpful --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Well, that's why | --

MR. HAMNER: --if you're looking at some action afterwards.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Until | know what it is because each -- | don'’t
think anything’s like textbook. This is -- this -- everything is so different. So just
depending on what it was, whether it was relevant.

MR. HAMNER: But you can envision a scenario where maybe somebody’s
actions after a crime might be helpful in determining whether or not somebody may
have done or did not do something; is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: And why do you think that it might be helpful in that respect?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Well, because after something happens
people’s behavior changes and it might indicate something that --

MR. HAMNER: But absolutely no --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: It's hard to explain.

MR. HAMNER: | get you.

Partial Rough Draft Transcript, Day 1-79
778




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: But somebody may behave differently
afterwards that they wouldn’t behavior that way earlier on.

MR. HAMNER: So if you were selected as a jury -- as a juror would you be
willing to kind of look at all of the actions before, during and after when evaluating if
the State has met their burden in proving each one of their elements?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Sure.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And I'd like everybody to kind of keep that
conversation in mind because | am going to touch on it when | speak to a couple of
other individuals individually.

Now, Mr. Scow had asked some questions about CSI, so we won't
touch on that. | don’t know, did you raise your hand on the church going question?
| don’t remember every -- there were so many hands that kind of went up and |
couldn'’t tell from the back. Do you go to church at all?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. All right. So you’re not necessarily going to hold it
against him just automatically just because it's involved with a church are you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So you’re willing to kind of listen to the evidence as it’s
presented and you'll just judge it based on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Now you also mentioned that you had a friend with a
son who had been, | think, accused of a crime. Given that experience, was that --
did | get that correct or was that not --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: | have a friend with --

MR. HAMNER: Whose --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- a son who's a police officer.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And was this with respect to he may have had a
mental issue and assaulted somebody with a gun?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, no. That's my brother-in-law.

MR. HAMNER: Your brother-in-law.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Let's talk about that for a second. Do you think that
experience or that connection and that scenario may affect your ability to kind of sit
as a juror and partially listen to the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No, that’s not going to affect it all.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So you’ll be able to leave all that at the door.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, yeah.

MR. HAMNER: And even in reference to the stuff that you had mentioned
with your friend’s son. You'll be able to leave all that at the door; is that right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, yes.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Schwendemann.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

Ms. Schwendemann, | also wanted to ask you a little bit about the
incident with your brother-in-law.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Mm-hmm.

MR. POSIN: You said something about that he ended up firing a gun, |
believe?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes, he went to --
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MR. POSIN: What happened?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: -- he went to his ex-wife’s house and --

MR. POSIN: And can | just stop you there?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Sure.

MR. POSIN: And his ex-wife, that's not his your sister or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

MR. POSIN: He’s your brother-in-law how exactly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: He’s my husband’s brother.

MR. POSIN: Your husband’s brother; okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. POSIN: So he went to his ex-wife’s house and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes, with a bible and a gun. He thought her --
because she had a boyfriend, but the kids weren’t there, but he just thought that
getting divorced was not something you do religious wise. So he went there and
they had a scuffle with the gun and it went off and so he did end up -- because
evidentially | think that their -- several months earlier lawyer had been killed by
somebody in a similar situation of domestic dispute and the person who lost shot
the --

MR. POSIN: Okay. And was he charged with a crime over that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. POSIN: What crime was he charged with?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: | don’'t know the specifics, but | know he was
put in a -- at the time -- and | don’t think it's there in Alton, lllinois they have a -- they
had a mental home, and so he was in there for quite a while.

MR. POSIN: Okay. But you don’t know exactly what crime --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

MR. POSIN: -- he was charged with?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: No.

MR. POSIN: Now why do you think he was put in a mental home instead of
either being found not guilty, put him in prison if convicted. Why did that happen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Because | think he had -- he had -- he wasn’t
thinking logically and he did have serious issues.

MR. POSIN: So he wasn’t thinking logically and that played a part in the
ultimate result. Do you think that’s appropriate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: He needed mental help, which he never got, |
don’t think, when he was in there.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Do you think it's appropriate to take into consideration in
the criminal justice system what somebody’s mental state is?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes, in that | feel -- to get them the correct
help | think they do -- you do need to take in their mental state, but | also feel that it
doesn’t take them off the hook for what they did.

MR. POSIN: And if the Judge gives you an instruction about -- that will
involve a mental element to each crime are you prepared to follow each of those
instructions?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Oh, sure.

MR. POSIN: Because -- you know, every -- every crime involves both
something physical and something mental.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Mm-hmm.

MR. POSIN: There’s -- we have Latin terms for that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yeah, the degree of mental.
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MR. POSIN: But there always -- for it to be a crime you have to --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Right.

MR. POSIN: -- not only do something, but you have to have a mental state.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Mm-hmm.

MR. POSIN: So if your brother, for instance, had -- instead of -- well, even in
this case, when he pulled the trigger you sound -- sound like maybe he didn’t even
intend to pull the trigger at that moment.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes. | don’t think he really did. | think was
doing it as to make his point. But | do -- | do agree with you that -- | think any crime
-- | mean, you’re not thinking correctly if you're committing a crime. | think if you
know -- the point -- the point that | think is that if you hide what you're doing you
know it's wrong.

MR. POSIN: Okay. But at that moment where your brother-in-law pulled the
trigger --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Mm-hmm.

MR. POSIN: -- you think that he didn’'t even have the intent necessarily to
even pull the trigger it sounds like?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yeah, | don’t think he did. | think they
might’'ve both had their hands on it and it might've gone off.

MR. POSIN: So --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: | don’'t know the specifics.

MR. POSIN: So sometimes somebody can actually perform an action, like
pulling a trigger --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Uh-huh.

MR. POSIN: -- but if they don’t have an intent to do that, even though they
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have the action, without the intent it's not the same as if they did have the intent?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Correct. Yes.

MR. POSIN: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. So, I'm going to rein you back here.

MR. POSIN: All right.

THE COURT: This is not a lecture. This is a question, so please let’s -- for
both counsel you’re kind of walking the line on this. Ask questions. You're get to
argue your case later.

MR. POSIN: You'll find lawyers that kind of push the envelopes as far as --

THE COURT: Yes, they do.

MR. POSIN: -- the Judge lets us and | guess I've gone as far as can. But the
Judge will be not lecturing you but giving you the instructions later that have those
elements and can you follow those elements --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. POSIN: --that are laid out, including the mental element?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #062: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. Ladies and gentlemen, it's ten minutes after 12 and | imagine
your stomachs are starting to rumble since you've been here since early this
morning, so we're going to take our noon recess. And we're going to take an hour
for lunch, so you don'’t have to be back until ten minutes after one. We have some
facilities in the courthouse that -- | believe there’s a Capriotti’s and sandwich -- and
what else is down there?

[Colloquy between the Court, clerk and court recorder]
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THE COURT: Okay. So -- and there are some things that are close. Just
don’t go very far because obviously you have to get back in the building and you
know what that process was this morning. Sort of like airport security, so you don't
want to caught in line and not give yourself enough time. But there are some things
that are very close to the courthouse that you can get to on foot. Just don't try and
drive any place because you’re not going to have time.

And as | say, it's ten after 12 by my watch. Is that what you have?

THE MARSHAL: 12:11, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So we’ll synchronize.

And, ladies and gentlemen, during this 60 minute recess it your duty not
to converse among yourselves or with anyone else on any subject connected with
the trial, or to read, watch or listen to any report of or commentary on the trial by any
person connected with the trial or by any medium of information, including without
limitation, newspaper, television or internet. That includes smartphones. And you
are not to form or express an opinion on any subject connected with this case until it
is finally submitted to you.

We'll be in recess until 11 minutes after one.

THE MARSHAL: All rise.

[Outside the presence of the prospective jury panel]

THE COURT: All right. The record will reflect the venire panel has departed
the courtroom. Are there any matters outside the presence?

MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.

MR. POSIN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. SCOW: Thank you.
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THE COURT: [I'll see you at ten after one.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

[Recess taken at 12:13 p.m.]
[Proceedings resumed at 1:14 p.m.]
[In the presence of the prospective jury panel]
THE MARSHAL: Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.
All right. This is the continuation of State of Nevada versus Wilburt

Hickman. The record will reflect the presence of the venire panel. The Defendant is
present with his counsel. The deputy district attorneys prosecuting the case are
present and all officers of the court. Will counsel so stipulate?

MR. POSIN: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. SCOW: Yes, Judge.

MR. HAMNER: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. So we left off and we are at Jade, right? Kulka.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: 0073, Jade Kulka. | grew up in Malibu.
Moved here | think '87. Got divorced. Lived with my --

THE COURT: When you were a child.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Pardon?

THE COURT: When you were a child, "87.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yeah, right. | wish. Got divorced. Married a
one-man band here. And my child lives in California; she’s a beautician. | work at a

hippotherapy place. It's horse therapy for autistic kids and stuff like that.
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THE COURT: Oh, that’s interesting.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: And | also do a lot of painting and airbrush T-
shirts and stuff.

THE COURT: Okay. So you married a one-man band; is that what you said?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Well, technically, I'm not married, | guess.
We've been together like 18 years, so --

THE COURT: Oh, okay. All right. So significant other.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yes.

THE COURT: And what does your significant other do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: One-man band.

THE COURT: He really -- literally he’s a one --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Not a oom-pah-pah, you know. Not with the
drum and the banjo. He plays electric guitar.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: And he has music files that go -- have
everything else on it.

THE COURT: Okay. And does he play around town or does he record?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yeah, he’s been playing here longer than I've
known him, so --

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Let’s see -- and, gosh, you’ve had a very
varied career as well. Any reason you feel that you could not be fair and impartial in
this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No.

THE COURT: Okay. And you said your child lives in California?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yes.
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THE COURT: And what does your child do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: She -- beautician. Hair. Hair.

THE COURT: Beautician; okay. All right. Thank you.

Mr. Hamner.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.

Good morning, Ms. Kulka. | just had a couple quick questions. | think
when Richard had asked a general question earlier before lunch, it was something
along the lines of has anyone had any negative experience with law enforcement, |
think maybe you had raised your hand. Could you tell us a little bit about what that
was?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | rather not go into details if that's okay. It's
just that the police on the report lied about something they -- they said that they
gave me a, you know, a DUI test and they didn’t, and they said | refused it twice, so
| think that’s a little negative. But that's it. Everything else I've always had --

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- really good relations with them.

MR. HAMNER: Did anything come of that -- the report where they said that
you refused a DUI test --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No.

MR. HAMNER: -- or anything like that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No, but it made me mad.

MR. HAMNER: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Now you heard a list of officers that were read
before. You didn’t recognize --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: No.
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MR. HAMNER: -- any of the names? Now was there -- and | don’t mean to
pry, but it's kind of important for us to kind of understand this. Did law enforcement
believe maybe suspicion that you were under the influence of alcohol maybe or a
controlled substance maybe when driving a car or something like that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | -- | was seen left -- | was seen leaving a
house --

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- that was under surveillance, | guess.

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | had done -- airbrushed a helmet for
somebody --

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- so | was dropping it off and they followed
me.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. If this case potentially involves the issue with alcohol
or using a motor vehicle under an influence, or something along those lines, do you
think -- whatever experiences you had with the police in your own experience do you
think you're going to be able to kind of put those experiences behind and listen to
the evidence as it’s kind of presented today?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Do you think if you were asked to stand in judgment of
somebody where maybe that possibly was a factor in this, maybe potentially the use
of alcohol, do you think that you would still be able, if selected as juror, to stand in
judgment and make a call if the facts [indiscernible] --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yeah, I'm very --
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MR. HAMNER: -- beyond a reasonable doubt?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- fact piece person, so | would rather hear
both sides and hear the facts and --

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Now kind of dovetails it. | think Richard also asked a
general question about not using alcohol and maybe even you had raised your
hand. Did | catch that or that was not correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | don’'t know.

MR. HAMNER: You don't --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | don’t drink.

MR. HAMNER: You don’t drink. Have you ever drank before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: When | was a teenager --

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: -- but I'm like almost 50, so --

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Okay. All right. | have no further questions. Thanks.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. POSIN: Ms. Kulka, you just said something that you would rather hear
both sides. Now you also, | think, heard the Judge earlier this morning mention the
fact that the burden is purely on the prosecution here. Did you hear -- do you
remember that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Okay. | don’t specifically remember it, but --

MR. POSIN: Well, she’'ll be instructing you and has already mentioned that
they have the burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that this man committed

each and every one of the crimes charged. So we don’t have a -- any duty to
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present a side. They have a duty to prove their case beyond a reasonable doubt.
And the Judge asked do you have any problem with that. Do you have any problem
with holding them to their burden to prove their case beyond a reasonable doubt
without necessarily hearing another side to it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: [Inaudible response.]

MR. POSIN: What if you only hear one side? What if you hear their side and
you have some doubts. You're not sure what’s going on here.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: | don’t know. | don’t know. That's an honest
answer. | don’t -- | don’t know.

MR. POSIN: Well, that’s --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: I've never been --

MR. POSIN: Yeah, that’s -- yeah, that’s all we want is --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: I've never faced anything like that. | don’t
know.

MR. POSIN: That's what we want is your honest answer. So let’s -- let’s just
say that this trial that you're selected as a juror, the trial goes forward, they present
a case, they have witnesses testify, and let’'s say we don’t. Let’s say we don't have
any witnesses. And -- so you haven’t heard our side. You haven’t heard from this
gentleman here. You won't hear him testify. Let’s say that’s the case. Are you able
to follow the Judge’s instruction and hold them to prove their case even if you
haven'’t heard the other side?

THE COURT: Let me clarify this a little bit. Now, the defense does not have
any requirement to either have the Defendant testify. He doesn’t have to testify,
doesn’t have to present any witnesses. In fact, his lawyer could sit over there and

not say anything. Now that’s unlikely. It's more likely that Mr. Posin will cross-
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examine the witnesses for the State, but it is entirely the State’s burden to prove the
case beyond a reasonable doubt, which means that at the end of their case if they
rest and the jury doesn’t feel that the State’s proved their case, even if defense
doesn’t do anything, they get up and immediately rest, that's it. It's still the State’s
burden. So if the jury felt that the State hadn’t met the burden then you would have
to acquit. Does everybody understand that? Anyone not understand it? All right.
The record will reflect a negative response. And so that's what we’re talking about
here. All right.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

So -- you know, one of the other jurors was being questioned earlier
and some questions came about if you have kids. And two kids, you know, maybe
they’ve gotten into a fight and two of them come and we hear both sides to that
story. So you understand that in this case this is not that situation. This is a one
sided burden. They have a burden; we don’t. You understand that; right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #073: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thank you.

That's all, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

All right. And this is -- | can’'t read my writing here.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Robert Soncini, 0066. Moved to Las Vegas
about 11 years ago. Initially started working as an EMT intermediate with
MedicWest Ambulance. Learned to scuba dive; feel in love with diving. Now I'm the
master instructor and dive safety officer for Cirque du Soleil O at the Bellagio.
Divorced; two kids, ages 5 and 8. Have a girlfriend of five years this month and she

was a student of mine and now she’s also a diving instructor.
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THE COURT: Okay. It's hard -- kind of hard to dive in the desert.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Which is why | get that 88 degree pool at the
Bellagio every night.

THE COURT: Very good. All right. And no children you said?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Two children --

THE COURT: Two.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: -- 5 and 8.

THE COURT: Five and 8; okay. Anything that you heard -- other questions
where you thought, oh, | would answer differently or | would need to bring that to the
Court’s attention?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Mr. Hamner.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.

So |l gotto ask. I'm a diver too. So, do you dive in the fountain area or
do you train people -- you take them out on dives nearby or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: I'm the dive safety officer for Cirque du Solell

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: It's an aquatic team production, so | oversee
the safety and training of the artists and technicians. Everybody who works in the
theater is scuba certified to perform their duties.

MR. HAMNER: That’s pretty sweet. Okay. Sorry.

Now, there was -- | think you had told the Judge earlier, and | don’t

mean to pry, but something along the lines that you were accused of like an assault
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or domestic violence. Something along the lines where | think maybe you pled no
contest and it resulted in a dismissal. Is that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Correct. It was assault and battery,
December '99 and battery with a dangerous weapon.

MR. HAMNER: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes, | pleaded no contest, probation and
dismissed.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So given that you have that experience, if you were
selected as a juror do you think you would have a difficult time kind of sitting in
judgment of another individual?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No, because | --

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And why do you say that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Because | knew | did wrong and that’s why |
pled no contest and took what they were offering.

MR. HAMNER: So you wouldn’t have any issues if selected as a juror to kind
of see if we meet our burden by proving all the elements. And if the facts show
beyond a reasonable doubt you wouldn’t have an issue with making a determination
of guilt on -- or not guilty --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Correct.

MR. HAMNER: --is that correct? Okay.

Churchgoer or not churchgoer? There were a lot of hands. | don’t
really know --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Irregular.

MR. HAMNER: Irregular churchgoer.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: When my daughters are performing.
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MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: They go with their mom weekly.

MR. HAMNER: Do you think if you -- whether you go or not go, that’s not
necessarily going to be an automatic strike against just because the fact that this
may have taken place at a church. Would that be fair to say?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes, it would not.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So you'll be willing to kind of -- even if that’s the
locale, you're willing to kind of keep an open mind, weigh the testimony and weigh
his actions and the evidence that’s presented before making a determination. That
fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Lastly, had a question, | think, for Ms. Schwendemann about
the notion of whether or not maybe evidence presented before the fact -- before a
crime happens or after, do you think that those things might be helpful in your
decision making process; maybe thing that happened before or after?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: And why do you think that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: It just goes to show a state of mind. You
know, what were they thinking before, during and then after the fact. You know, do |
know I’'m doing wrong; did | do wrong and what I'm doing to cover that up.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And those are things that you'll probably keep in mind
as you listen to the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: All right. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Posin.
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MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.
| almost didn’t ask any questions, but then something caught my
attention when you said did | do wrong; what am | doing wrong and what am | doing
to cover that up. Do you -- are you assuming that anybody accused of a crime has
actually committed a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: No.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Are there cases that you can think of where maybe
somebody’s charged with something and maybe they’re really not guilty of
something?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Absolutely.

MR. POSIN: Okay. And would one of those cases potentially be where they
didn’t actually have the intent to do something, so there’s nothing to cover up
because they didn’t have the intent to commit a crime. Could that be a reason for
you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: They would have to -- it would -- weigh on the
fact of do they have a question before they do what they did, so am | doing wrong or
could what I'm doing potentially be deemed as doing wrong. So it's a judgment from
way back -- even before the actual event.

MR. POSIN: Are they actually intending to do something?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #066: Yes.

MR. POSIN: Okay.

All right. That's all | have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Pass the microphone over. And, Mr. Wood, tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: | retired from the Navy, 26 years, in '96.
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Moved here nine years ago. I've been married for 16 years to my third wife and
final.

THE COURT: Are you sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Got three kids, all grown, by my -- two by my
first wife; one by my second. Presently I'm employed by a company that provides
maritime security specialists to commercial ships off the coast of Somalia -- armed
security against pirates and that's what | do.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that's exciting. Gosh, fighting pirates. | mean, it's
sort of a --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: It's not as glorified as it sounds.

THE COURT: Well, it sounds pretty good. I'd go with fighting pirates if | was
going to --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: But there are -- a lot of people end up dying. |
do what | can to help them out.

THE COURT: Yes, it's a very serious problem over there | know --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Yes.

THE COURT: -- and has been for a long time. So did you do something
similar when you were in the Navy?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: | was a Navy SEAL.

THE COURT: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: And an EOD technician.

THE COURT: Okay. That’s also -- see -- see why | love this part. | mean,

gosh, what'’s not to -- this is fascinating.
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And your three kids that are grown, what do they do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: My oldest son was in SEAL Team 7. He got
out after a tour in lraq with PTSD.

THE COURT: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: And now he works at a computer company in
Tucson. His younger brother, by my -- both my first wife, is a -- he works in a rehab
center in Tucson as Human Resources. And my third son, don’'t know what he
does. Haven't talked to him in about six years. He don’t want anything to do with
me, SO -- okay.

THE COURT: Oh. Well, that's -- that’s too bad. Well, hopefully you can
remedy that sometime in the future.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Probably not.

THE COURT: No?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: His mother.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Anyway.

THE COURT: All right. Any questions that you heard us ask of the other
jurors where you thought, you know, | need to let them know because | have
feelings about this that are important that bear on my ability to be fair and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: No. | mean, | try to be fair and impartial with
everything | do, even riding -- when I'm out on ships. And | have to make a lot of
judgment calls out there with what | see and what | hear on a regular basis. And --
but, you know, the question was from you, | believe, to everybody was how many
people thought it was great when they got their summons to come.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: But you didn’t ask just the opposite question.

How many people were going, oh, crap, | got my summons.

THE COURT: And your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: And | would have raised my hand.

THE COURT: Well, that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Like I'm sure a lot of people would have.
THE COURT: Yeah, that's what we figure when they don’t all jump up and

down and say, yeah, they were excited. Butitis an honor to serve on a jury and do

comm

unity -- what amounts to your civic duty and service to the community and |

expect you're probably in that category as, you know -- | mean, yes --

doing.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Sure.

THE COURT: -- you would have other things you could be doing that would --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: Well, yes --

THE COURT: -- be important.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #067: -- there’s a lot of other things I'd rather be

THE COURT: All right. That sounds good.
Would the State like to inquire further?
MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Defense?
MR. POSIN: | don’t think | have anything either, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. You stumped them.
Okay. Now we have Mr. Capron.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Yeah, Capron.
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THE COURT: Capron.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: William Capron --

THE COURT: Oh, it’s --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: -- 0069.

THE COURT: It's a C-A, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Yeah. C-A-P-R-O-N.

THE COURT: Tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: I lived in Las Vegas for like 27 years. | work
as a heavy equipment operator. Have a significant other that I've been with for 25
years. | have a son from a previous marriage that's 29 years old but lives in Texas.
He works as bartender and goes to school and that's about it.

THE COURT: Okay. Heavy equipment operator, so what kind of equipment?
Anything big and --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Yeah, just pretty much everything. I've
always been more of a -- just a grade checker or foreman type, so I'm like the
shepherd to the heavy equipment pretty much.

THE COURT: Okay. So is there a lot of work starting up now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Actually, yes, it's actually starting to get busy.
I've been working -- actually in Summerlin is booming pretty well and everything’s
starting to look up finally.

THE COURT: Well, that’'s good -- that's good news.

Anything that we should know about you that may be you were thinking
as you heard the other questions | need to bring this up to the Judge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: No, I think I'm good.

THE COURT: All right. You think you could be fair and impartial?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Yes, | can.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Thank you.

THE COURT: Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. HAMNER: Just real briefly.

So, Mr. Capron, if you had to be selected as a jury -- a juror how would
you kind of handle the responsibility? Do you think you could handle the
responsibility as kind of sitting in judgment of another person given the nature of the
charges?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Yeah, absolutely.

MR. HAMNER: And why -- why do you think you'd be able to handle that
responsibility?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: You know, it's just -- it's your civic duty.
Everybody’s got to do it one time or another. You enjoy the benefits of this country,
you gotta -- gotta put in your time.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And -- now I've asked this question for a couple of
other individuals before this. Do you see any benefit, or at least in terms of making
this determination, whether the facts kind of -- we've met our burden whether there
is some benefits to maybe looking at actions before maybe the alleged crime
happened, after the alleged crime happened. Do you think there’s any advantage to
looking into those things?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: Depending on the instructions of the Judge,
yeah.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. And why do you think it potentially could be helpful for

your decision making process?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: It could just tell you state of mind, which |
think is important and things like that.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. All right. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Well, of course, | have to follow up on that. What -- what is it
about somebody’s state of mind that you think might be important?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: That's their general state of mind in a certain
period of time could determine, you know, the extremity of their actions, things like
that.

MR. POSIN: Okay. And what is it about their actions that their state of mind
do you think would inform or determine?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: | mean, if somebody was, you know,
generally agitated all the time or something and for a certain period of time they're
probably more likely to do things that a person that was agitated would do, you
know.

MR. POSIN: Well, suppose we had an issue of whether somebody had
actually formulated an intent -- an intent that the Judge will give you as one of the
elements to some of these crimes. Do you think that might be something that could
also be determined that way as well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #069: | guess it depends on the situation, yeah.

MR. POSIN: Okay. Thanks.

THE COURT: All right. | feel like we -- coming back to the same thing so I'm
going to kind of clarify again. At the end of the trial I'll give you instructions on the
elements of every crime that’'s charged. Some crimes have different requirements

for -- than other crimes for the intent element. So, without going into all of that now,
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| kind of feel like this is -- this is not a trick question, but | kind of feel like maybe
we're going down that rabbit hole so -- because you're trying to answer this in a
vacuum. What we expect you to do is listen to the facts, the evidence. At the end
apply all of that to the law as you'll be instructed. So to ask you to guess as to what
might be relevant to you now when you don’t know anything about this case really,
other than that very little brief synopsis, we're not asking you to do that. That
wouldn’t even be a proper question on voir dire. So we're not asking you to
prejudge the case, so let’s kind of rein that in, gentlemen, when we ask these
questions that -- okay.
All right. Pass the microphone down. Ms. Cooper.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Hi. 0070, Phoebe Cooper. | was raised in
Las Vegas. | moved away for about 14 years in Northern California area,
Sacramento and San Francisco. |'ve been back for about two years. I'm a project
manager for a software developer at an online travel company. I'm married. | have
three stepchildren ages 18, 14 and 12. My husband works for the Bureau of
Reclamation as a training manager. What else?

THE COURT: Three -- you got three teenage --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: All boys.

THE COURT: -- stepchildren. Woo.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Woo.

THE COURT: Yeah. That -- I'll bet that’s been a challenge hasn’t it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: There’s a lot of games around -- a lot of
electronic games.

THE COURT: Aah. Uh-huh. And -- but it's going well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yes.
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THE COURT: You know, teenage boys are -- are always -- could be
challenging and stepmom -- do they live with you, all of them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: One of them does.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: The oldest.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: The other two are with us about three nights a
week.

THE COURT: Okay. So still spending a lot of time. How about any conflicts
between the boys that you ever have to referee or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Not really. No.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: A little bickering, but they’re pretty good.

THE COURT: Good. All right.

Anything that you've heard -- we've spoken with you about several
things and done follow-up questions. Anything else you want to add that would bear
on your ability to be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Nothing | can think of.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.

State.

MR. SCOW: Just want to ask one question, one topic. Hopefully it's short.
Heard a few things about the burden of proof and the State holds that burden of
proof we would ask you to hold to that and follow the instructions with regard to the
burden of proof. When the charges were read by Mr. Hamner, attempt murder,

assault with a deadly weapon, burglary, when you heard any of those charges,
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specifically attempt murder, did you think, well -- you know, | better hold the State to
that -- a higher burden or -- would you hold the State to a higher burden just based
on the nature of the charges?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: No.

MR. SCOW: Same standard for any charge, whether it's a trespass or a
murder -- attempt murder and you’d hold us to that burden?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #070: Yeah. | think | -- | don’t really know the
nuisances of all the different attempted murder or third degree or all of that, so |
would go with the instructions from the Judge.

MR. SCOW: Okay. That's all | wanted to ask. Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: | have nothing for Ms. Cooper, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

If you'd hand the microphone over. And Ms. Tadich.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Badge number 0075, Katarina Tadich.

THE COURT: Tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: So I've lived in Las Vegas now for a year and
three months. I'm originally from Rochester, New York. And then | went to school in
New York and lived out there for about six years doing graphic designs, and that's
what | do out here in Las Vegas.

THE COURT: Who do you do that for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: | work for myself so | have a couple -- | work
with one restaurant and I’'m going to start working with a yoga studio.

THE COURT: Okay. So you have to go out and find your clients then.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Right. | mean, usually it's through connection
of people | know.

THE COURT: Word of mouth.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Right.

THE COURT: Okay. And do you do any advertising of yourself to try and get
new clients or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No.

THE COURT: -- go out and network or anything like that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Not -- | mean, | meet people when I'm out at
different events, but not specifically networking events.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything about the questions you've heard us ask of
the other jurors where you thought, oh, | need to let the Judge know about that when
it's my turn?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No.

THE COURT: No. And | can't remember. Did you say significant other?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: No significant other.

THE COURT: No significant other; okay.

And you've been here you said a year and a half. Do you have any
family here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: | have -- my parents are here and | have an
aunt.

THE COURT: Okay. What do your parents do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: My father is an Italian wine specialist.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: And my mom is a real estate agent.
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THE COURT: Okay. And is business picking back up with -- does she do
residential or commercial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: Residential.

THE COURT: Residential.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: It's still -- there’s just not that many homes --

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #075: -- available on the market. So she has
buyers, not as many sellers.

THE COURT: Aah; okay. All right. Very good.

Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. SCOW: No questions from the State. Thank you.

THE COURT: Defense?

MR. POSIN: None from the defense, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

All right. Ladies and gentlemen, now we’re at a part of the trial where
the lawyers get to exercise what are known as peremptory challenges. That means
that they can excuse a juror without cause. In other words, they just may think
because of whatever answers or your background that, you know, they would prefer
not to have you for whatever reason, but they don’t have to explain their reason.
And this is something that happens in every trial and each side gets -- in this trial
four peremptory challenges. So if you are thanked and excused, what you need to
do is go over to the jury commissioner and let them know that you were excused.

All right. State’s first peremptory challenge.

MR. SCOW: The State would like to thank and excuse juror badge number
0056, Alberto Estremera.
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THE COURT: Thank you, sir.
Call the next in order.

THE COURT CLERK: Badge 76, Dorinda James.

THE COURT: Hello, Ms. James. Have you ever served as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: And was that here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: Was that a criminal case or a civil case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Civil.

THE COURT: And without telling us what the verdict was did the jury reach a
verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you the foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Was that a rewarding experience for you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: And nothing where you would say, oh, | don’t ever want to
serve on a jury again as a result of that experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: How about a family member or someone closely associated
with you ever been the victim of a violent crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been accused of a crime?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you been
accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: None that | can remember.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: | don'’t think so.

THE COURT: All right. Do you have any moral or religious beliefs that would
cause you to be unable to sit in judgment on another person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any quarrel with the notion that there is a
presumption of innocence for all criminal defendants?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: And --

THE COURT: Do you have -- do you have a quarrel with that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: -- or do you think that’s fine?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: That -- no, that’s good.

THE COURT: Okay. And you understand that it is the State’s burden to
prove the case beyond a reasonable doubt?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Would you -- would you expect the Defendant to have
to take the stand to explain himself?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been in law enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you ever been
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in law enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: My husband is former law enforcement.

THE COURT: Okay. Was that here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: And so was he -- with what department?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Corrections in | believe -- it was before | knew
him. | think it was Indian Springs.

THE COURT: It was where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: At Indian Springs, | think.

THE COURT: Indian Springs. Okay. So at the prison facility --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes.

THE COURT: -- not the jail.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. And how long ago was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: It was before | knew him. | don’t know.

THE COURT: Okay.

All right. You need to hold the microphone a little closer because the
recorder -- we can hear you but it's not picking up on the record.
All right. So obviously then you really didn’t talk to him a lot about --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: --that job. And do you feel that would have any influence on
you and your ability to be fair and impartial in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.

THE COURT: Is there any reason that we should know about anything that --

where you feel that you could not be fair and impartial in this case --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: No.
THE COURT: -- as ajuror?
Tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: | have -- let's see. We've been married three
years. And I've been here since 1971 from New York. | went to Kansas City for
about three years in '94 and everybody comes back here. My family’s here. | have
two sons, 34 and 36, and a 12-year-old daughter that | adopted.

THE COURT: Very good. So do your --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: That’s about it in a nutshell.

THE COURT: -- grown children do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: One is an electrician and the other works on
-- at the base in the tool shed. That’s all | know.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Hands out tools to the crew that fixes planes.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that's an important job because --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #076: Yes. Yes.

THE COURT: -- they have a lot of different tools and they have to be kept in
proper working order and -- all right.

Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. SCOW: We don’t have any questions. Thank you.

THE COURT: Defense?

MR. POSIN: Nothing from the defense, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

It will be the defense first peremptory challenge.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.
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Defense will thank and excuse badge number 73, Ms. Kulka.
THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Kulka.
And call the next in order.
THE COURT CLERK: Debra Power, badge 78.
Do you have the microphone there.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: Oh, thank you.
THE COURT: All right. Welcome.
So, before we get to the fun part, let’s find out -- have you served as a
juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.
THE COURT: And have you ever served in law enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.
THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you in law
enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.
THE COURT: Ever been the victim of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: We had some belongings stolen from our
garage about six months ago.
THE COURT: All right.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No violent crimes.
THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that -- did you feel that the police -- did
they respond to that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: Yes.
THE COURT: And did you feel that they did a good job in trying to

investigate?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: Yes.

THE COURT: Were they able to find out who did it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.

THE COURT: All right. Any hard feelings because they couldn’t find who did

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you been
accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: When my husband was 16 he was accused of
sexually assaulting a woman. Later it was dropped and he was never charged.

THE COURT: Okay. Has he spoken to you about that and his feelings about
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: Yes. He was 16 so it was long before | met
him, but we spoke about it and he feels though everything was handled very fairly.
When there was no evidence against him everything was dropped so -- it happened
in Canada, not here, but he was happy with the system.

THE COURT: Okay. Good.

So, do you have any religious or moral beliefs that would cause you to
be unable to sit in judgment on another person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Tell us about yourself.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: | am 30 years old. | moved to Las Vegas

eight years ago. | am a mom of a little 18 months old girl. I'm also 12 weeks
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pregnant so --

THE COURT: Oh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: -- | will have two -- as soon as my daughter
turns two six days later I'll have another one, which will be exciting. I've been
married for three years to my husband. | met him in Las Vegas. He was playing ice
hockey for the Wranglers here in town. He is now a firefighter and working -- he’s a
wild land firefighter working to get a City firefighting job.

THE COURT: Okay. Sois he out on a fire now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No. He actually just got back from Elko. So
he was gone a week for the fires in Northern Nevada.

THE COURT: Okay. So like that -- gosh, there was one that was up -- he
didn’t fight on the rim fire in Yosemite then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No. He hasn’t been called yet. | mean, it's
still going on so I'm not sure if he'll get a call.

THE COURT: Okay. Were there any fires in the east, you know, up in the
Ruby Mountains that he fought?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: No, but he was on the Carpenter fire here in
Mount Charleston. He was gone for two weeks --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #078: -- dealing with that.

THE COURT: Right. Okay. Thank you.

Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. SCOW: No questions, Judge.

THE COURT: Defense?

MR. POSIN: None from the defense, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Thank you.
It is the State’s second peremptory challenge.
MR. SCOW: We’'ll waive our second, Judge.
THE COURT: All right.
Defense, your second.
MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.
The defense will thank and excuse Mr. Wood.
THE COURT: All right.
Thank you, Mr. Wood. If you'll go across and check in with the jury

commissioner.

Call the next in order.
THE COURT CLERK: Roberto -- I'm sorry. Robert Romero, badge 83.
THE COURT: Welcome.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: How you doing?
THE COURT: Mr. Romero, have you ever served as a juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.
THE COURT: Was that here in Clark County?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: In New York.
THE COURT: How long ago?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: About five years ago.
THE COURT: Was it in a criminal case or a civil case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Criminal case.
THE COURT: And without telling us what the verdict was, did the jury reach a

verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.
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THE COURT: Were you the foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Was that a rewarding experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: Any reason that you would feel | just don’t want to do this
again. It was too difficult or traumatic or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Allin all, did you feel that -- as you saw it from the
outside sitting as a juror did you feel the system seemed to work well and -- even if it
wasn’t exactly like television that it --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yeah, | --

THE COURT: -- it worked well.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: -- I'm former law enforcement.

THE COURT: Okay. So that was my next question.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: So tell us about that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | was a detective in Fairfax County, Virginia
for 13 years.

THE COURT: Okay. And then -- were you always a detective or did you
work patrol before you became a detective?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Patrol for two years, then | went into
narcotics, then | did burglary, robbery and homicide.

THE COURT: Okay. So all the different -- and that was the total of your --
your law enforcement was 13 years?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: That was it.
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THE COURT: Did you retire or did you just want to get out of that business?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | divorced and my wife moved out of state so |
moved to be near the kids. That's how | ended up in New York.

THE COURT: | see. All right.

And -- now, as a result of being in law enforcement did you ever have to
testify in a trial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Hundreds of times.

THE COURT: Okay. So would you, as a former law enforcement officer who
did testify, would you tend to give more credence to the testimony of a police officer
merely because the person was a police officer but for no other reason?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: To be honest I'd have to say yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And tell us why that would be.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Well, my experience is that to get a case like
this to this point there’s been a lot of time and investigation and so -- it's always
been my belief that although a person is innocent until proven guilty the investigation
is the proof and the prosecutors are the presenters of that proof, so --

THE COURT: Okay. But would you not listen to the testimony of a police
officer -- wouldn’t you have to listen to the testimony and make an evaluation based
on the totality of the evidence that you'd heard before you just make a judgment call
as to whether that testimony seemed accurate or truthful or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Sure.

THE COURT: Okay. Soit’s not like before the person even takes the stand it
doesn’t matter what they say I'm going with that? That’s what I'm --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Well -- but some -- | would -- they would have

to impeach his testimony --
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THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: -- in order for me to disregard it.

THE COURT: Okay. And, of course, by that you mean come up with
evidence that he had --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Itis not true.

THE COURT: -- testified differently before or it was not true --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Right.

THE COURT: --in some fashion.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Would you agree that police officers are human beings
and therefore able to make mistakes just like every other human being?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: Oh. And so it’s possible that a police officer could make such
an error --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: --in observing something or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: All right.

Do you feel that you could be fair and impartial with your law

enforcement background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

THE COURT: If you were sitting in the Defendant’s seat would you want 12
people on the -- same frame of mind that you are now to sit in judgment on you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | don't think so.

THE COURT: Okay. Tell me why.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Well, | -- like | said -- | mean, it's my
experience -- my life experience. And that was a long time that -- to get to this point
in the system there has to be not just one police officer that believes it, but many,
and they have to convince the prosecutors that they have evidence that would
convict a person.

THE COURT: Okay. So to me that says you've -- you are not impartial, that
you're biased. That you've already made a decision based upon that knowledge
and you haven'’t heard anything about the case but you've somewhat prejudged. Is
that an accurate statement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | don't want to say I'm biased. That's just my
experience.

THE COURT: | know. But when | -- we're looking for not -- not people as a
blank slate, because everybody brings their experience and their common sense to
the jury room, but what we’re looking for are people who can say I'm going to wait
and hear all the evidence before | make up my mind. Are you that person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yeah. | can -- I'll wait.

THE COURT: Okay. Well -- all right. So that gets back to my other question
because | said, well, would you want 12 jurors if you were the Defendant who had
the same state of mind that you do now that -- to sit in judgment on you and you
said no. So that’s --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Well --

THE COURT: -- why | wasn't certain --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: -- | -- | probably wouldn’t because, you know,
| know the technicalities that go on behind the scene and investigating these kinds

of crimes and | might apply my old investigation techniques to things that | hear
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here.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Not that I'd be biased about it, but --

THE COURT: Okay. But you can’t do that. You can’t do your own
investigation or your own inquiry into this case. You just have to listen to what has
been done and you can’t speculate or guess about what hasn’t been done. You
need to rely on the evidence that’s presented. So are you going to be doing that or
are you going to be sitting there doing, you know, well, | know probably what they
really did and -- that’s what I'm asking.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: I'd do my best to listen to both sides and then
make a determination, but | can’t say that some of that won’t creep into my mind
what you just mentioned -- you know, my past.

THE COURT: Okay. Tell us about yourself otherwise.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | moved here about three years ago from New
York. I'm now an insurance agent. | have two boys; one’s 24, the other one’s 21.
I've been married for 28 years. | went to school at University of Maryland.

THE COURT: And your boys, what do they do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: The eldest one’s in Charlotte and working for
a company doing human resources and the youngest one’s in University of
Tennessee playing soccer.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Would the State like to inquire?

MR. HAMNER: | would. Thank you.

Mr. Romero, | got to ask you. | went to school back east. Are you a

Skins fan?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Oh, good. Me too.

All right. Aside from that, a lot of questions about your background
being an officer so | want to pose something to you. Let's say you were selected as
a juror, officer walks in, uniform, badge, the belt, the whole nine, the nice hat, sits
down and the first question that’s asked was, officer, what was the color of the sky
that day? The officer gets up there and says it was purple with pink polka dots and
little gumdrops were falling. And the lawyer says, officer, what color was the sky?
Pink with purple polka dots and gumdrops. Are you going to tell me that that officer
with the uniform and the badge and whole background and he gets up and he says
that and you’re going to tell me that you’re going to buy that if he tells you that the
sky is pink with gumdrops just because he’s an officer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: No.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Why wouldn’t you believe an officer if he comes up
with that sort of testimony?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Because I've never seen a sky that was pink
with polka dots.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So your common sense may tell you at that point, you
know what, maybe | shouldn't just trust the badge. Maybe | can actually evaluate
what they’re actually saying on the stand before | reach a conclusion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Correct.

MR. HAMNER: And | think maybe some of the questions that the Judge was
asking you it kind of dovetails into that. | understand that you got experience with
law enforcement and you understand the work these guys go through. But what we

need are people who are going to keep an open mind and wait till the words come
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out of their mouth before you make a determination that, you know what, this guy’s
telling the truth or you know what, he’s full of it. Are you going to be able to do that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Could you leave those experiences behind and actually just
listen, not just to the officers but every other witness that gets up, before you make a
call as to their telling the truth or | don’t think that makes a lot of sense?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. So you could do that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: | can.

MR. HAMNER: Whether it's an officer or a regular person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #083: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: All right. Thanks.

THE COURT: Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Your Honor, I'm not going to ask any question but | am going to
ask that he be removed for cause.

THE COURT: All right. Well, | don't think that there’s grounds for cause so
that request is denied.

The State’s first -- or third, excuse me, peremptory challenge.

MR. HAMNER: We’'ll waive, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Waived.

Mr. Posin.
MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

We'll thank and excuse Mr. Romero. Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Romero.

Call the next in order.
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THE COURT CLERK: Matthew Gouviea, badge 84.
THE COURT: Welcome to seat number 9, which is the hot seat today.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. Have you ever served as a juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Have you ever been in law enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you in law

enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: | got a couple cousins who are.
THE COURT: Do they live here?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, ma’am, in Massachusetts.
THE COURT: Do you speak to them about their work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Not much. We don’t -- | just went out there on

leave about a couple weeks ago and spoke to them a little bit but not much.

THE COURT: Okay. Would you tend to -- as a result of your cousins being
law enforcement would you tend to give the testimony of a law enforcement officer

more weight or credibility than you would any other withess merely because the

person was a law enforcement officer and for no other reason?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, not necessarily.
THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you accused

of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Not that | know of.
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THE COURT: How about have you ever been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family been the victim of a violent crime or any
close family member or friend?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any religious or moral beliefs that would
keep you from being able to pass judgment on another person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Anything that you could think of that you would want to
disclose to the Court about your ability to be -- to serve as a fair and impartial juror
in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Tell us about yourself?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: I'm 34 years old. Been married for -- going on
nine years now. | have a eight-year-old daughter. I'm currently in the Air Force
stationed out here at Nellis. I've been here for about six years. My wife does
security out at Nellis speedway and then she’s also a beautician -- does hair also so
| get free haircuts all time, which are awesome. That's about it.

THE COURT: Where did you come from before you were stationed here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Before | was stationed here | did a year over
in Korea. And then, of course, | was a remote so she couldn’t -- or | couldn’t bring
the family with me. And before that | was out at Whiteman Air Force Base in
Missouri for about nine years.

THE COURT: Okay. Oh, so are you coming up on retirement then pretty

soon?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: | got about four years left, so -- and then we'll
see what happens. You get to stay up till 30, so we'll see.

THE COURT: Okay. What do -- what'’s your job in the Air Force?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: I'm a [indiscernible].

THE COURT: And what --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: | basically deal with morale and discipline
issues for the unit and recommend on those things to the commander.

THE COURT: Okay. So you try to keep the people in -- are you assigned -- |
don’t know what -- do they call them squadrons?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Squadrons. Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you assigned a squadron that you're the morale
officer for?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: Right. The way it works in the Air Force is we
have squadrons groups and then wings --

THE COURT: Right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: -- and then it goes up and up and up. But
right now I'm at like a group level.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: I'm scheduled to move here in a couple
weeks to a squadron level, which I'll be in charge of about 250 people, so --

THE COURT: And then when the squadron gets deployed with the air wing
do you travel with them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: It's a possibility. Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: I've been deployed three times now, so --
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THE COURT: Okay. So deployed Afghanistan, Iraq?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: | just got back last February -- February 12"

from Iraq. And we pulled out of Iraq to Kuwait. And then my prior two deploys were

Djibouti, Africa.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. That’s very interesting.
State, would you like to inquire further?
MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Defense?
MR. POSIN: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
So State’s final peremptory challenge.
MR. HAMNER: We’'ll waive, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right.
Defense?
MR. POSIN: Court’s indulgence for a moment.
Your Honor, | think we'll keep seat 9 as the hot seat.
THE COURT: All right.
MR. POSIN: Thank and excuse Mr. Gouviea. Hopefully | pronounced it right.
THE COURT: Thank you.
We always have a hot seat every time.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #084: [Indiscernible.]
THE COURT: Thank you.
Call the next in order.
THE COURT CLERK: Badge 86, Ingrid Fitzgerald.
THE COURT: Ms. Fitzgerald, welcome.
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So, have you ever served as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Yes, | have.

THE COURT: Was that here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No, it was up in Seattle, Washington.

THE COURT: All right. And was it a civil case or a criminal case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Criminal.

THE COURT: How long ago was that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: From what | recall, at least 16 years.

THE COURT: Without telling us what the verdict was did the jury reach a
verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you the foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Was that a rewarding experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Was that a rewarding experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Yes, it was.

THE COURT: Okay. So nothing about where you would say | never want to
see jury service again?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.

THE COURT: Did you feel like it was a good reflection of how our justice
system works?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Oh, definitely.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been in law enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.
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THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.

THE COURT: Anyone closely associated with you ever been in law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.

THE COURT: How about anyone closely associated with you ever been the
victim of a violent crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.

THE COURT: Have -- do you have any religious or moral beliefs that would
make it difficult for you to sit in judgment upon another person?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No.

THE COURT: Okay. | know you've done it before, but that was 16 years ago.

Tell us about yourself?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Well, | moved to Clark County about 13 years
ago when | retired. | was married for 30 years; got a divorce. | used to -- | actually
retired from a software company -- a major software company. | have one daughter,
she’s married. | have two grandkids; they live in San Diego. My daughter, she’s the
administrator of the anesthesiology department at UCSD Hospital. And | guess that
pretty much explains it.

THE COURT: All right. So when you -- when you were working -- now you're
retired?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: Yes.

THE COURT: When you were working for the software company what did
you do for them?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: | was what was called an external localization
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manager. | handled language localized station and adapting the software to -- to the
culture of the specific country of various languages.
THE COURT: Okay. So are you fluent in several languages?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No. | do speak German fluently and | do
speak some French. But | -- actually, | managed the coordination between the
different countries.
THE COURT: Well, that’s very interesting.
And your daughter is she an anesthesiologist?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: No, she is an administrator.
THE COURT: Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #086: She’s like a hospital administrator.
THE COURT: | see. All right. Thank you very much.
Would the State like to inquire further?
MR. HAMNER: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Defense?
MR. POSIN: Nothing from the defense, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

All right. We have our jury. We are now going to select two alternates
since potentially the case could go into next week, although we think it may not, but
it could, so it's always good to alternates. And the thing about alternates, in my
experience, has been that almost every trial we have needed to call upon an
alternate. And it doesn’t seem like it would be the case, but things happen in life
and people get sick, they have things happen in their families and we never know
when an alternate may be called. And so alternates sometime think, oh, I'm just

going to sit here the whole time and I'm never going to be called upon to deliberate
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and so | don't really have to pay attention. Well, nothing could be further from the
truth. May times alternates are called upon and -- so it's a really important job
because you could be called upon at any time to have to take over and deliberate
the case to its conclusion. So I'm going to have the clerk call two names next in
order.

THE COURT CLERK: Badge 87, Brittany Hayes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Do | go today?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE COURT CLERK: Yes.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Okay.

THE COURT CLERK: Badge 89, Ebert Mitchell.

THE COURT: And I'd like you to leave a spot between the last two in the
front row because there’s microphones right in front of you, so right there.

[Colloquy between the Court and clerk]

THE COURT: So, let’'s see. We've got the handheld mic. And our first
alternate -- I'm sorry. Your name again and your badge number.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Brittany Hayes, 0087.

THE COURT: And that's Hayes, H-A-Y-S?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: E-S.

THE COURT: E-S. Got the E. My family, no E.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: My family -- I've got Hays in my family. No E, though.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Oh.

THE COURT: | think -- | think it was originally with the E and it got dropped.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Oh.
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THE COURT: You know how that goes.

All right. So have you ever been a juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.
THE COURT: Have you ever served in law enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you in law

enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.
THE COURT: Ever been the victim of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.

THE COURT: Anyone in your family or closely associated with you been the

victim of a violent crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: My sister had to go to trial for domestic

violence.

THE COURT: Okay. And she was the victim --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.

THE COURT: --in that situation? And was that recently?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: It was a few months ago.

THE COURT: Okay. Was that here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.

THE COURT: Did you observe the trial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.

THE COURT: Did you talk to her about it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Kind of, but not really in depth about it.
THE COURT: Did you -- from everything you -- that you did know, did you
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feel that it was handled appropriately?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.

THE COURT: Anyone closely associated with you ever been accused of a
crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.

THE COURT: Okay. And your -- your sister, was she the victim of domestic
violence by the spouse or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. And so how long had she been married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: They weren’t married.

THE COURT: Oh, they weren't.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: It was her children’s father.

THE COURT: |see. Okay. So this was not somebody related to you. Did
you know him?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah. They’ve been together for about six
years, soO --

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

Do you have any -- you've heard all the questions we've asked of the
other jurors. So when you were listening to those questions did you think, well, if |
get called | need to bring this -- this out because it would be something important
that bears upon my ability to serve?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: No.
THE COURT: Tell us about yourself?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: | work at a hotel down on the Strip. | was

born and raised here. No spouse. I'm going to school for pre-nursing right now.

THE COURT: What do you do at the hotel you said you worked at?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Like a cashier slash -- like -- like associate. |

don’t know. Like | help people find stuff and --

THE COURT: Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: -- ring them up, | guess.
THE COURT: And is that full-time or part-time?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Full-time.
THE COURT: So then you go to school part-time?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.
THE COURT: Okay. All right.

And how long have you lived here? All your life?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah.
THE COURT: Do your parents live here?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Yeah. Well, my mom does.
THE COURT: Okay. What does she do?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: She works at UNLV.
THE COURT: And what does she do there?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: Something with the MBA program. Like a

assistant director or -- I'm not really sure about her title, but --

THE COURT: All right.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: -- it's with the MBA program.
THE COURT: Has she always been in academics?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #087: | think for the past 15 years maybe. Yeah.
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
Would the State like to inquire further?
MR. SCOW: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Defense?
MR. POSIN: Nothing from the defense, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
Hand the microphone over. And, sir, your name and badge number.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Mitchell Ebert, 0089.
THE COURT: Okay. And have you ever been in law enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Never.
THE COURT: Have you ever served as a juror?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: No.
THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Car stolen twice.
THE COURT: That was here in Clark County?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yes, it was.
THE COURT: Did you feel that the police did whatever they could to try and

solve it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yeah, for the most part. It was -- one was

found on the side of the road; the other was parked in a neighborhood a few blocks

THE COURT: Okay. And so both cases the car was recovered. So that

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Correct.
THE COURT: -- that was a good thing. And no one was ever found --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: No.

THE COURT: -- to be the perpetrator?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | was -- | was cited though, yeah. A parking
ticket for one of them though.

THE COURT: So -- but did you -- did you go and explain the situation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: It was $25 so it was -- | had already had a
new -- | purchased another vehicle. Got that one sold to a friend of mine so it
worked out okay.

THE COURT: Okay. So it was easier just to pay the parking ticket then?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: It was.

THE COURT: Talk about grinding salt into the wound.

Okay. So have you ever been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | guess | was charged with a DUI in 2009.

THE COURT: And what was the result of that charge?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | was -- it was like no contest, so --

THE COURT: Okay. Did you feel that you were treated fairly?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yeah, it was accurate.

THE COURT: Okay. And so you learned something from that experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | very much so.

THE COURT: Okay. | asked you if you'd ever been the victim of a crime, but
| didn’t you if anyone in your family or closely associated with you had ever been the
victim of a violent crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Any reason you feel that you could not be fair and

impartial if you were called upon to serve as a juror?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: No.

THE COURT: Tell us about yourself?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Well, | do freelance lighting for film and TV.
So that was kind of a little bit of a worry with getting picked to be on jury because
that's my livelihood. So when I'm not working I’'m not making money. But | know it’s
my civil duty to -- to be on a jury, so --

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: -- | understand that. Lived in Nevada for 12
years now. My mom works in the school district; my dad works in insurance. | love
making movies for a living.

THE COURT: So do you have aspirations to move to Hollywood or --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | do.

THE COURT: You do. Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: That's -- | worked there -- | did two films just
recently that will hopefully get me into the electricians union in LA and potentially
have residency there soon.

THE COURT: Okay. So there’s a lot -- lot more work there for that type of --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: [Indiscernible.]

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

Would the State like to inquire further?

MR. HAMNER: Just real briefly.

Mr. Ebert, you mentioned that you were -- pled no contest to a DUI
charge. Was that --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | guess | was -- | would’'ve been charged

guilty. | apologize for the misterminology. | was charged. | -- you know, have the
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record.

MR. HAMNER: But it was probably a misdemeanor. I'm --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yes, it was.

MR. HAMNER: Right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: It was a misdemeanor.

MR. HAMNER: And | think you probably could have pled no contest to it. |
think it's quite possible. | don'’t think --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Okay. | --

MR. HAMNER: That sounds about right something along those lines?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yes, it does.

MR. HAMNER: Okay. Kind of given that experience, given maybe some of
these facts of this -- of this case, do you think if you were selected -- | know you’re
an alternate, but things happened. If you are selected as a juror do you think that
you'd be able to sit in judgment kind of in a case like this?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | believe | can. This -- my situation has to be
different. | cannot associate my life to someone else’s.

MR. HAMNER: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: So I'd have to understand and --

MR. HAMNER: So you think you could --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: -- be impartial.

MR. HAMNER: So if you were ultimately -- if hypothetically you were a juror
in this case you believe you'd be able to sit with an open mind, kind of weigh all the
testimony of everybody you've heard before making a decision as to whether or not
we met our burden?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: Yes.
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MR. HAMNER: Okay. Do you harbor any kind of ill will towards law
enforcement in light of the situation that happened to you?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR #089: | do not. It was my own doing and | kinda had
to come to terms with that myself. It wasn’t -- there’s no resentment.
MR. HAMNER: Okay.
All right. Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.
MR. POSIN: Nothing from the defense, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
All right. Each side has one peremptory challenge of the alternates.
State?
MR. HAMNER: We’'ll waive, Your Honor.
MR. POSIN: We'll waive as well, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
All right. We have our jury. And before we swear in the jury and the
alternates I'm going to excuse the rest of the venire panel. If you'll go
THE COURT: All right. If the clerk will swear in the members of the jury and
the alternate.
[The clerk swore in the jury panel and alternate jurors]
[The clerk read the Information aloud]
THE COURT: So, ladies and gentlemen, the State is entitled to prevent --
present the first opening statement.
MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Mr. Hamner.
Iy
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OPENING STATEMENT BY THE STATE
BY MR. HAMNER:

Sunday morning, December 18, 2011, should have been a normal day
for the people and members of the New Antioch Christian Fellowship Church. But
everything changed when this man right over here, the Defendant, walked into their
church. Now when the 8 a.m. Sunday morning session started everything was
normal. Church went as it usually went. And the evidence will show that many
people attested to that fact. And then near the end of the service the evidence will
show that the Defendant came to that service near the end.

The witnesses will tell you that the only thing that really stood out about
the Defendant when they first saw him during the 8 a.m. service when he came in
near the end, it's not about how he walked, not about how he talked; it was simply
the fact that he wanted to sit up all the way up at the front, like the front pew. That’s
what stood out to them.

And the witnesses are going to tell you that at the end of every church
service their church what’s called an alter call. That’'s where they ask if anybody
would like to join and become a new member of the church. And the Defendant
stood up and said | want to become a member. And this church community
embraced him and he became a member by the conclusion of that church. They
took him in.

Now the evidence will also show that the standard kind of practice is is
when you become a new member of the church you go back with a church staff
member at the conclusion of a service, you walk back, you give your name and your
information, and that’'s exactly what the Defendant did. And you’re going to hear

witnesses testify remember seeing him walk back with staff to go in the back.
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But when the 8 a.m. service concluded and the 10 a.m. service was
about to kind of get underway you're going to learn that's when things change. The
evidence will show it becomes clear why the Defendant came to that church and
what he wanted to do. Because the witnesses will tell you that the Defendant starts
saying | want to see my daughter to anybody who was going to listen. And you’re
going to learn that the Defendant’s daughter was a member of this church, and her
name is Samira Grove. And you’re going to hear that while Samira may have been
at the early part of the 8 a.m. service she was gone by the time this man over here
was asking for her. And church staff will get on this stand and testify and tell you
they tried to explain to the Defendant she’s not here right now. We can't help you,
she’s not here.

But the evidence will show that the Defendant wasn’t going to take no
for an answer. You will learn he becomes increasingly angry and agitated because
he wants to see his daughter. And that’'s what the witnesses are going to testify it
became so much of an issue. Ladies and gentlemen, you will hear from members of
the church they ultimately decided -- they were so concerned they asked him to
leave. They said church is over; you gotta go. The Defendant, you will learn, still
even more agitated. And they basically ask him you need to leave.

So that’s the church. This is Las Vegas Boulevard. You'll learn that
this church is on 3950 Las Vegas Boulevard. It's kind of near Nellis. Well, that’s the
front entrance of the church that you walk through. It's kind of blocked by this
bubble. Well, when they tell him he needs to leave they actually walk him out
through the back way. And you're going to hear from witnesses who were there
when they said you need to go for the first time. And you are going to hear that the

Defendant, walking without any physical escorts, no one needing to help him, he
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walked under his own power all the way over to this general area, and that's where
he originally parked his car. The evidence will show the Defendant under his own
power got into his own vehicle, turned on his own car and began to drive out.

Ladies and gentlemen, you can see there is a straight line leading out
to Las Vegas Boulevard here. There is a -- you'll learn there’s a road that runs
along the back, and there’s another road that leads straight out to Las Vegas
Boulevard. Now after being told repeatedly that his daughter’s not there and asked
to leave the Defendant had a choice. He could have left. The evidence the answer
-- his decision was not to leave because he didn’t want to take no for answer.

So what will you learn that the Defendant did? Instead -- and this is a
rotation of the church. The Defendant actually drives down this back road and parks
here for a second time. And you’re going to hear eyewitnesses who are in that
parking lot seeing him get out his car. And they will testify that when he got out of
his car and he walked back towards the double door front entrance to this church he
was heard saying I'm not ready to leave yet.

The evidence will show that he goes right back into that church. And
you're going to hear from the assistant pastor, Kevin Madden. He's going to tell you
he was there. He’s going to tell you that he actually even encountered Samira who
was in an absolute panic about the situation initially. And when he made the
decision to ask him to leave he was shocked to find the Defendant back inside their
sanctuary just a couple minutes later. And when Mr. Madden approached the
Defendant again and said, sir, you need to leave, the Defendant not only became
even more agitated, now he started hurling obscenities at the assistant pastor, all
because they wouldn’t allow him to see his daughter who you will learn was not

there.
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Mr. Madden will testify -- the assistant pastor will tell you at that point he
was concerned for his community because there were men, women and children in
that church. And he told his security team this guy has to leave. You have to get
him out. And he will testify he took the Defendant by the arm, passed him over to a
member of his security team, a man by the name of Allen Burse, and says get this
guy to his car; he needs to go. And that's what Mr. Burse did. You’re going to hear
from Mr. Burse as well. Allen walked the Defendant by the arm to his car, told him
he needed to leave.

And what happens at that point, ladies and gentlemen, is he’s escorted
back to his car. You're going to hear about the manner in which walked. He didn’t
have any trouble walking. These witnesses are going to tell you he didn’t have any
trouble talking when he was making his demands to see his daughter. And under
his own power he gets into his car, puts his own key in the ignition, turns on that car,
backs out of a stall. And at that point, Mr. Burse is going to tell you that he was so
concerned; his gut instinct was not turn his back on the Defendant. And Mr. Burse
will tell you as he walked back toward the front entrance of this church he actually
back-pedals. He back-pedals away from the Defendant’s vehicle because he was
afraid something might happen.

And the evidence will show that Allen Burse’s intuition was dead on
right because, ladies and gentlemen, you're going to get a chance to see this road.
That is the view of that road from Las Vegas Boulevard. That's how much space
was there for the Defendant to simply drive out onto Las Vegas Boulevard. And as
Allen Burse backed away, backing towards the double entrance of the church where
there was a crowd of people with men, women and children standing around as the

10 a.m. session was starting people are leaving and entering the church, this man
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over here doesn’t drive down that road. What witness, after witness, after witness
will testify to is that that man over there cut his wheels all the way over to the left
directly at Allen Burse. And witnesses will tell you at that point they heard the
Defendant’s car accelerate, so much so, ladies and gentlemen, that they heard the
tire wheels screeching.

The Defendant, you will learn, drove directly at Allen Burse. Allen
Burse will tell you that he had to jump out of the way to avoid being run over. But
you're also going to learn, ladies and gentlemen, that the Defendant doesn’t stop
there. Once he misses Allen Burse the witnesses will tell you the Defendant actually
continued to accelerate the car into the crowd of people, into those double doors
where they were all standing out. There were people on the inside and the outside
of that area.

Listen to the testimony because you will learn that the Defendant made
no efforts to break, no efforts to slow down, no efforts to avoid them, no efforts to
honk the horn. Instead, the Defendant drove straight through that crowd of people
and through the double doors of this church. That is what the Defendant did with his
Cadillac.

You will learn that fortunately the evidence will show that no one died
because of what he did. But you will also learn that the Defendant no only hit a
young mother with his car sending her airborne. You will learn the Defendant hit a
nine-year-old girl with his vehicle. You're going to hear from the witnesses who
were outside of that church when the car came, just on the inside when that car
came through, and they are going to describe to you the scene. In fact, ladies and
gentlemen, they’re going to tell you that this was such a panic situation they believe

the girl was trapped under the car. Why? The evidence will show he hit her so hard
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he knocked her out of her shoes.

But not only was the Defendant’s behavior -- scratch that, ladies and
gentlemen. What we do learn even after that, once the Defendant is actually kind of
blocked into that entrance and can’t go any further, what you will learn is the
Defendant’s actions afterward continued to indicate what his intentions were. The
evidence will show that the Defendant didn’t cut his engine. The Defendant didn't
apologize. He didn’t just kind of, oops, my bad. Instead, ladies and gentlemen, the
evidence will show that the Defendant continued to slam on the gas. And they
testified hearing the wheels spin and they became afraid because they thought the
Defendant was trying to free that car to go further into the church, so much so that
security personnel, such as Allen Burse, went through that door to physically pry the
Defendant from the wheels of the car and take the keys out of the ignition so he
couldn’t do any further damage.

You will hear that he made a number of statements during that whole
process, which included threatening to kill people in that church, after he went
through it as he’s being restrained. Ultimately, ladies and gentlemen, this is one of
the people who was hit. This is Anyla. That’s her foot in the cast that's taken
sometime after this accident.

But, ladies and gentlemen, sometimes we have cases that are pretty
complex, a lot of issues, a lot of questions. But what’s going to be clear, this is not
an identity case. It's going to be clear who itis. It's going to be clear what
happened. The ultimate question will be what his intentions were. And | want you
to keep an open mind because I'm confident, and the State is confident, that when
you listen to all the evidence, when you hear from the people who were there, the

law enforcement personnel who showed up and examined the scene, it will be clear
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why he was there, why he did it and what his intentions were because the State is
confident when you've listened to all the testimony it will be clear beyond a
reasonable doubt this wasn’t an accident, this wasn’t a situation that was beyond his
control. In fact, it was something that he intended to do. And at the conclusion of
today’s trial my co-counsel, Richard Scow, will ask you to hold him responsible for
the unnecessary pain and fear that he put his church group through. We'd ask you
at the conclusion of today’s trial to find him guilty on all counts. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Posin, would you like to make an opening statement?

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

OPENING STATEMENT BY THE DEFENSE

BY MR. POSIN:

Ladies and gentlemen, there’s one thing that | think the State and |
agree on, which is that there’s a central issue here, which is, what were his
intentions? This is not a complex case; we agree. This gentleman was the man
behind the wheel of this car. He was the man in the church that morning. The
question is what were his intentions?

Now you're going to hear the State’s witnesses and you’re going to
hear what they say. And you’re going to hear them say things like -- that he was
drunk. You're going to hear other witnesses say he was incoherent. Other
witnesses say he was mumbling. This was while he was in the church before he
went out. Other witnesses saying he didn’t seem to understand what we were
talking about. Drunk, incoherent, mumbling, didn’'t understand what we were talking
about. That’s the picture that their withesses are going to paint.

Now how is it that a man who was so drunk, so incoherent, and so

mumbling and so unable to even understand what they were talking about, and it's
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about the issue that the State has raised, was his daughter even there. That man,
who couldn’t even understand that, moments later formed the intent to kill somebody,
and was able to do it in what you saw on that picture was a very short space.

Now counsel has made a point of how even after the car went in that he
was supposedly attempting to accelerate. Well, look, you saw the space from the
point where he was parked to the entrance to that church. It was a short space.
That was not somewhere -- not the length that he would need in order to change his
intentions, to make his intentions.

This is a gentleman who came to this church, was drunk, was
incoherent, was mumbling and did not understand what the people in the church
were talking about. This is a man who did not form the intention to kill them. He did
not attempt to murder anybody. He did not assault them with a deadly weapon and
he did not commit burglary.

When all the evidence is in, and when the Judge gives her instructions,
I'll be going through the elements of each of these crimes and you'll see why
whatever he did it was not these crimes. Thank you.

[Proceedings resumed -- previously transcribed from 3:25 p.m. to 4:48 p.m.]
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Friday, September 6, 2013 -- 11:15:15 a.m.

STATE’S CLOSING ARGUMENT
MR. SCOW:  While this boots up, it would’ve been fine if | could’ve
plugged it into this side, but because we came to a different courtroom, we know
that the plugs over here don’t work, of course. So | plugged it in over there, no
power to the plug, and so now it's shut down, and it's going to start up.

That's -- when we started this case, State of Nevada versus Wilburt
Hickman, Mr. Hendron told you this is a pretty straightforward case. There won't
be much dispute about what actually happened that day. The only discussion that
we're really going to have is what the Defendant’s mindset was, what his state of
mind -- and the Defendant’s --

In the opening we heard -- their arguments are that the Defendant
could not formulate any intent to kill; that he wasn’t capable or so drunk that he
wasn't able to do that.

MR. POSIN: Your Honor, I’'m going to object. That’s not exactly what
we're saying, and so --

MR. SCOW: I'm paraphrasing. I'm not quoting him.

THE COURT: Allright. Well, let's confine your closing to the evidence
and let him just --

MR. SCOW: That is the evidence. It's going to be, what was this
Defendant’s state of mind? I'm coming up, it looks like.

MR. HAMNER: s it the user?

MR. SCOW: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: You just gave them our password.
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MR. SCOW: That was on the record, too, by the way.
BY MR. SCOW

So the charges that we have in this case that were read to you in
the beginning, you have those in your instructions. There are 17. The first eight
are attempt murder. The next ones are battery with use of a deadly weapon and
then battery with a deadly weapon resulting in substantial bodily harm. I'll go
through these instructions. We’'ll talk about them fairly briefly because there’s not
really a dispute about the actions that occurred; it's the Defendant’s state of mind.

And the assault, the attempt murder and burglary, those are crimes
of intent or state of mind. Battery is not. Battery is, if I'm walking along and | bump
you like this or | don’'t mean to be mean, but you take that wrong, that's a battery
because it's unwanted physical touching, if | give you a little nudge like that. The
instructions tell you no matter how slight.

It looks like we're up and running.

So this is the case. This is the end position of the Defendant’s
vehicle. And we're going to talk about -- a lot about what happened before, what
happened during and what happened after because as the instructions tell you,
we're going to talk about intent. It's Instruction Number 20, if you want to make a
note to refer to that later. The intent with which an act is done is shown by the
facts and circumstances surrounding the case. We don'’t look at just an action
isolated in one single moment, and I'm going to talk about that again in just a
minute.

(State Counsel confer)
BY MR. SCOW:

There we go. There's the charges that we just went through. And
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as burglary comes up, you might be sitting there scratching your heads thinking,
isn’t burglary like when somebody goes into somebody’s house to steal their
computer or their money or whatever thing, property might be in there? That is
true, that is a form of burglary, but in the State of Nevada, there are multiple ways
that you can commit a burglary, even in a commercial building, a church, any
building, and I'll get to that in just a minute. But | wanted to point that out because
you might be thinking this isn’'t somebody’s home that was broken into.

So we’ll start first with battery. It's the intentional and unwanted
exertion of force upon another, however slight. So even a nudge with my elbow, if
that's unwanted, you don’t know me, that’s a battery. Battery with use of a deadly
weapon is that same force, but applied with a deadly weapon. So like if | have a
gun and | shoot at you instead of nudge you and the bullet grazes you, that’s still a
battery with a deadly weapon, no matter how slight that -- that exertion or force on
another person might be. But now it's just with a deadly weapon, a gun. In this
case it's a car.

We look at Count 9, the battery with use of a deadly weapon, the
victim is Anneesah Franklin, the mother of Anyla. The Defendant drove his car at
the church into a group of people in front of the church, and as she told you as she
was standing at the doors talking to her friend, Marquetta, as the car came up, she
tried to get out of the way, and the car actually hit her, and it threw her in the air
some, and she landed face first on the ground, ended up with some problems in
her neck. But the car that hit Anneesah knocked her over. A vehicle is a deadly
weapon, and I'll talk about the deadly weapon now.

It's any weapon whose construction is designed to inflict death or

bodily harm like a gun. That's a weapon that's designed to do that. That's the first

850




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

way that you can have a deadly weapon, but there’s another. And in the
instruction there’s an A and a B, and Subpart B is what we have here, “It's an
instrument or material or a substance which under the circumstances in which it is
used.”

So if I have some powder and | try to smother somebody with it, that
can be a deadly weapon. It's the way in which it's used, and a car is something
that Kkills people every day sadly, in accidents or hits pedestrians. So a vehicle, in
the manner which it's used here, driving at a group of people, is readily capable of
causing death or seriously bodily injury. That's why a car in this case is a deadly
weapon, and that will apply --

MR. POSIN: Your Honor, | don’t want to interrupt, but (indiscernible). For
the record, there are statements or sentences on here that are not exactly what
has been argued in court. | don’t know how we make that part of the record. | ask
that --

MR. SCOW: ['ll have a printout of this.

THE COURT: We're going to mark this as a Court’s exhibit.

MR. POSIN: | feel that, you know, this last -- the second part, a car is
clearly capable of causing death, it happens almost every day and incorrect
statement of the law there. It's not exactly what Counsel’s arguing, but there on
the --

MR. SCOW: That's exactly what I'm arguing, and I'm not quoting the law
right there. These are my arguments. The portion above is the instruction, and the
instructions stand for themselves. | can argue that a car is a deadly weapon
because that's -- that's our argument.

THE COURT: The objection’s overruled.
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MR. SCOW: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. SCOW

Clearly, a car is a deadly weapon. The instructions don't tell you a
car is a deadly weapon, but what you read there, that something’s that used in a
manner that can cause death or seriously bodily injury, like driving into a group of
people, that's a deadly weapon. And it applies for all the crimes we're looking at
here, assault, battery, attempt murder, they're all charged with a deadly weapon.
So it’'s the manner in which it's used, and, again, there’s where it's end up.

But before it ended up there, there was a group of people standing
there in the front, and Allen Burse a little bit further out that the Defendant was
driving at. That's the manner in which this vehicle was used in this case.

So we turn next to the substantial bodily harm portion of the
instructions. “Bodily injury which creates substantial risk of death or which causes
serious, permanent disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function
of a bodily organ or a member.” So for in this case, that first part of the instruction,
Anyla, she had a broken toe, and for several days she was on crutches, so she
had a protracted loss of the function of any bodily member, her foot, because she
couldn’t walk right. Or you look at the second, it could be either one, prolonged
physical pain. And she may not have remembered the time as well as her mother
did, who said she complained of pain for about a week, even a little bit more, and
had to use pain medication to help her, especially at night when she was going to
bed.

So Anyla had prolonged physical pain. She also had protracted or
impaired use of a bodily member, her foot. So we have substantial bodily harm

here. And this is Count 10 for Anyla. The car actually ran over her foot. She said
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she was run over by the car, knocked her over, and she had the broken toe. And
the Defense doesn’t dispute that the Defendant driving that vehicle when it
happened. So we have Anyla and her injured foot.

The instructions tell you that voluntary intoxication, which is part of
the focus on the Defendant’s mental state in this case, that intoxication is not a
defense to general intent crimes. In this case, battery and any of the forms with
use of a weapon and substantial bodily harm, it's a general intent crime, and so the
intoxication is no defense to hitting somebody with the car.

So for Counts 9 and 10, the intoxication instruction, you just throw
those out for those two and you look at whether the State has proven with the
evidence presented that Anyla and Anneesah were hit by a car and whether the
Defendant did it and whether Anyla had a substantial bodily injury that resulted. So
for those two, the evidence presented has proven that the Defendant is guilty of
Counts 9 and 10, the battery with use of a weapon, battery with a weapon and
substantial bodily harm.

So now we’ll turn to the next three set of charges. | know it's 15 total,
but that makes three. So this is when we get into the intoxication, “that no act
committed by a person in the state of voluntary intoxication shall be deemed less
criminal by reason of that condition.” Okay. The law still says this is criminal
activity, but on these three charges here -- and this is important -- when intent is an
element of those crimes, then you can consider the intoxication to see whether the
Defendant could formulate the intent for that particular crime.

So that's why as each witness got up, we would ask them, could
you smell anything? What were your observations? How was the Defendant

acting? Because that’s the evidence in this case of his intoxication.
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So we turn to burglary. Burglary is “the entering of any building or
structure with the intent to commit an assault, a battery or any felony therein.”
When a person does that, they’re guilty of burglary. If you go into a store, you're
going in to steal food or money from a register, that’s burglary. If you go into
somebody’s house intending to punish them or commit a battery, that's also
burglary.

What we have here, the Defendant driving into a church intending to
commit an assault or a battery or an intent to kill, attempt murder. That's the way
that they’re pled, each of the charges, they say, assault and/or battery or intent to
kill. That's what establishes the intent for the burglary, and it could be either -- if
you find any one of those intents, he’s guilty of burglary.

Intent may be inferred from the Defendant’s conduct and all the other
circumstances of the case, like what | had just read to you on intent.
And this will be the same with the intent murder and the fault, what was his intent
when he did this. What was the Defendant’s intent when he drove his vehicle at
that group of people and straight through into those doors of that church?

You can see the car gets wedged in there really well, breaks part of
the wall on the left side of the door, tosses things around inside. They had moved
the table where Tiffany Trass had been standing or sitting. She had scooted to the
left as soon as she heard the chaos and get out of the way. She was lucky she
wasn’t hit. The same with Sharon Powell was behind the door and then the group
in front of them. And then the ending state of the Defendant’s vehicle.

As | talk about assault now and then the attempt murder next, I've
already spoke about burglary, the main focus is going to be the Defendant’s intent.

So the victims of assault with a deadly weapon are Allen Burse,
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Washington Thompson, Marquetta Jenkins, Rahmeka Adams, Sharon Powell, and
| have her in stars next to her because her being inside the building and not
hearing the car, she didn’t know beforehand that something was coming. So hers
is charged a little bit differently, and I'll explain that in the next slide. And Tiffany
Trass.

And you'll notice that Anneesah and Anyla aren’t on that list of assault
with a deadly weapon because they got hit. Once you get hit, the assault is gone
because then it's a completed battery, so it's no more an assault on that person, it
becomes then a battery. So for the other people that were aware of things and
almost got hit or dodging the car, it's an assault. It's also attempt murder, which I'll
get to that.

But assault is an unlawful attempt and a use of force against
another person, so like an attempt battery, and that's how Sharon Powell comes
into play. She’s sitting behind the door, doesn’t know what's coming, but the
Defendant, by driving into a group of people and at the doors, there’s instructions
on transferred intent. If you attack the group intending to sit somebody in the
group, no matter where the person is in the group, you have that intent, the intent
of one is the intent of all. So that's why she’s included in this assault charge; that it
was an attempt battery on here, even though she was sitting behind the door.

The other way to complete an assault is, “Intentionally placing
another person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm, place them
in fear.” In this case a very good example of that, before the Defendant even starts
driving towards everybody, is Allen Burse, as he's watching and getting into his
car, his intuition is telling him or his reasonable apprehension, something is about

to happen, doing his little football backpedal.
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So that's -- we have both of these charged for all of the victims
except for Ms. Powell. Hers is just the first one. So make sure you make that
distinction as you’re looking through these charges. And the transferred intent,
which | have already mentioned, the attack on the group is the attack on all, as
long as you have the intent to hit at least once, whether it's Allen in front,
Washington in the back or whoever else or Kevin inside.

Attempt murder, our Counts 1 through 8, and most of the discussion
now for the Defendant’s mental state will relate to attempt murder because the
voluntary intoxication instruction specifically mention attempt murder. These are
Allen Burse, Anneesah Franklin, Anyla Hoye, because even though they're hit,
they can still be charged -- he can still be charged with their attempt murder, even
though there are also charges to battery. Same with the others, assault and
attempt murder, he can be charged with both. You can find him guilty of both.

Washington Thompson, who was standing at the door greeting
people, Marquetta Jenkins, who was speaking with Anneesah, Rahmeka Adams,
who just testified, Ms. Powell and Ms. Trass. You saw the victims listed for attempt
murder. There we go.

So an attempt murder, what is it? “Performing an act or acts which
tend but fail to kill a human being, when such acts are done with express malice,
which is defined as the deliberate intention to kill,” which makes sense. Attempt
murder, you've got to be trying to kill somebody if you can be convicted of attempt
murder. So express malice is the intentional attempt to kill another human being
without legal cause, without there being a defense of “| was trying to defend
myself.” Then it's not attempt murder or with what the law considers adequate

provocation.

-10-

856




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

So when you consider the intent here, the Instruction Number 20 on
intent also talks about motive. It says, “Don’t confuse motive with intent.” The
intent here is the specific intent to kill another human being. The motive is
something that, obviously, motivates somebody to do something. When you
consider motive here, that may arise from anger, hatred, revenge, ill will, spite,
grudge toward the person who was attempted to be killed. And it that case -- |
highlight those in yellow for my benefit so | remember what to say when | see
them. But we have those in this case.

When you're looking at the car driving at these people into the
church, was this act which tended but failed to kill? Yes. If somebody had a hurt
leg and they couldn’t get out of the way fast enough, they would’ve been run over.
They, in all likelihood, unless they were lucky, would have been killed.

Now we have to look at what was the Defendant’s intent. It's a
straightforward case. It's not a whodunit. It's not even a question really of what
was done. People were almost killed. That's attempt murder as long as he has
that intent. People were in reasonable apprehension of immediately bodily harm,
assault, and the car and the Defendant entered the building, burglary. As long as
he had that intent.

Oh, there was -- a lot of the questions we asked people was a
moment incoherent drunk, (indiscernible) people, getting into the Defendant’s
state, or lack thereof, of intoxication. So when you consider the voluntary
intoxication instructions, the real question whether this Defendant formulated the
intent to kill; for assault, whether he wanted to place these people in fear of being
harmed, and for the burglary, either one.

So the first thing to consider was, was he even intoxicated? And
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what's the only evidence that alcohol was involved? He smelled of alcohol. We
asked every witness, and | think almost everyone said, he smelled of alcohol. But
when we asked them to describe whether there was something else about his
actions or their observations that tipped them off that alcohol could’ve been
involved, they said, if it weren’t for the smell -- | think about three of the witnesses
said, if it weren't for the smell, | would’ve never have known because | didn’t see it.

On intoxication, if the Defendant had the capacity to form the intent
to kill and conceived it and acts upon it, it is not a defense of the crime of attempt
murder that he was intoxicated, that people could smell alcohol.

Now we're going to look at whether he could formulate this intent.
Kevin Madden, Allen Burse, Washington Thompson -- I'm falling
behind -- Marquetta Jenkins, Anneesah Franklin, Craig Hutton, Tiffany Trass, they
all testified the Defendant could express himself. When he spoke, they could
understand his words, and they made sense together. The time that Tiffany said
he seemed a bit -- or said -- and the testimony was read into the record. She didn'’t
say he was incoherent. She said some of things he said were incoherent. |
couldn’t hear very well what he was saying.

That was the testimony that was read in from the prior hearing. And
when she testified, she said, no, he wasn’t incoherent walking by mumbling to
himself about the Easter bunny. He could walk under his own power. He had no
difficulty driving. They could smell alcohol, but the Defendant was coherent. He
was just upset.

Allen felt that at first, when he came upon the scene, the Defendant
didn’t seem to understand what we were saying because we're asking him to

leave, and he’s not leaving. He's talking about wanting to see his daughter,
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wanting his daughter pray for him. So for him, that was like, this guy’s just not
getting it, because he didn’'t know any of the back story, that that man’s daughter --
this man’s daughter -- had gone up to Assistant Pastor Kevin and said, you gotta
get him outta here. I'm terrified. Get him to leave. So that's why they start to, you
know, make efforts to say, okay, sir, you need to leave.

Allen said in the prior testimony that he was mumbling, wasn't
asked to explain that. He was asked to explain it here. Said he was talking softly
to himself as | was walking him to his car in the Arm Bar, but | could hear him
because | was close to him. And then Tiffany, which | already explained, it was
incoherent to her because she couldn’t hear what he was saying.

So what is this not? When we're talking about intoxication, this is
not somebody driving Las Vegas Boulevard, sloppy drunk, passing out or just not
having control of their faculties. The wheel turns, they veer off the road, almost hit
a group of people waiting at a bus stop and then smashing into a building behind it.
That one wouldn’t be charged with assault with a deadly weapon because that
person hadn’t -- didn’t have any voluntary action of driving off the road and saying,
oh, | hate this group of people. Let me try to get them.

That’s not what we have here, the option to the point where they have
no idea of how they even got there. That person wouldn’t be charged with assault
with a deadly weapon, who not and did not form the intent to leave the roadway, to
hit a person who’s standing on the side of the road.

So if we were to look at this case in a little vacuum, think of it is like
the center of a bull's-eye because that car actually, you know, hit a bull's-eye.

Look just at that middle circle and you think, gosh, this car hit this building like Ms.

Powell who hit her knees right after and praying for the guy in that car, how could
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somebody run into our church? Please help him. Your first thought is, that guy
was trying to hit people. It was just at that moment right there knowing nothing
else.

Let's take some steps back and see what we know about what was
going on in that moment right there. First of all -- let us blow that up -- the tire
marks; that the officer said on that curve, it's accelerating, and even Rahmeka on
the stand here, she explained it the same way, even though she hasn’t gone to any
traffic investigations. As it's making the turn, she could hear the tires like going
(audible noise) because it's accelerating on the curve. And even after he hits the
building, the tires are still spinning, leaving the dust on the ground, trying to get in
that building. He really wanted to get in, and he’s not sitting there unconscious for
-- just down on the pedal because she said she saw him looking and turning,
Rahmeka Adams. Allen Burse saw him looking at them. And I'll get back to this in
a minute.

But when they go to get him off the wheel, he’s still fighting to put it
in gear. Tire marks, right in, just a straight path. My lines aren’t perfectly straight
in, but there’s no like weaving or smashing other cars in the way in like he’s not in
control of the car.

Let’s take another step back, learn more of the story of what’s going
on here. The Defendant is first asked to leave after his daughter had frantically
gone to Pastor -- Assistant Pastor Kevin, just get him to leave, please. She’s
afraid. He was asked to leave once, which takes some coaxing, but he goes to get
in his car. He drives around the other side and parks, goes back in the church.

This time Kevin’s like, no, we're not going to have it this time. We

asked you to leave once. So he puts his hands on him and walks him out, where
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Allen takes over and he's physically escorted to his car a second time. And with
each encounter with the Defendant, the witnesses describe him as getting more
and more agitated, getting a little bit louder, demanding to see his daughter.

When you look at where he hit, he could’ve hit anywhere on that
building, but it happens to hit those double doors, and the location where he had
just been brought out, knowing that there’'s 10 to 15 people standing even inside
and the whole group of people standing outside, he just walked through those
people. It's not like he didn’'t know what was in there.

Allen Burse, he gets in his car, and my intent -- and my intuition told
me not to take my eyes off that car. | just felt like something was going to happen.
And when | had asked him -- he testified something similar to that at the prior
hearing, right? He said yes. Did the Defendant blurt something out right after you
said this? It wasn't just a blurt. He yelled it out from what Allen testified to. He
yelled out in the courtroom. He almost broke my damn arm. That's why -- that’s
why something was about to just happen. He shouted it out at the prior hearing.
He was still angry about what happened a month ago. When he’'s sitting in the
courtroom hearing about it happening again, he was still angry. So do you think he
didn’'t remember what was going on? Do you think he wasn’t thinking about being
upset with these people, where a month later he’s still -- because he almost broke
my arm, that's why. That's why | wanted to hit you, Allen.

And the key player here, as we take another step back, is the
Defendant’s daughter, Samira Grove, the Defendant -- Defendant demanding over
and over, | need to see my daughter. He’s terrified, trying to get out of there.
They're trying to escort him out, which is why he’s even there in the first place.

He's getting increasingly agitated as he's denied. How does she react to his being
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there? Hysterical, very afraid and the reason he’s told to leave in the first place.

And she left the property after even being told, hey, | -- by Craig,
hey, | just told your dad to leave. He went around the building, so | think he’s
gone. You can go back in and enjoy things. She’s like, No way, Jose, I'm out. Got
in her car and drove away.

MR. POSIN: Your Honor, | don'’t think the evidence showed that.

MR. SCOW: He didn’t say “I'm out.” | was paraphrasing.

MR. POSIN: | don'’t think that it showed that she drove away
(indiscernible) she drove away.

THE COURT: Well --

MR. SCOW: Craig testified --

THE COURT: The jury will rely on their own recollection.
BY MR. SCOW:

If you'll recall, what we say is in evidence. There’s an instruction
that says that. We kind of just recite the evidence to bring it back to your memory
as we go through these laws and instructions. You'll remember that Craig Hutton
testified as he was on that back side of the church after the Defendant just drove
around the corner, she came running out, still pretty upset. He's like, hey, he’s
gone. He just drove -- | told him to leave. And she said, I'm still leaving. Got in
her car, and he said she exited on Las Vegas Boulevard, and the path that he took
was basically the same one that she went. She went to the street, walked over
after she had left, and he ended up back at the other side of the building and saw
the car, plowed into the church.

So maybe the most revealing evidence is we take a final step back

and get the whole bull's-eye here, the whole story. What was the Defendant
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saying immediately after driving at all the people and smashing his car into the
church? And it gives us some insight into the state of the mind of the Defendant,
whether he could formulate an intent to kill, if he could formulate an intent to scare
people, place them in reasonable apprehensive of harm.

As Washington Thompson is standing there next to the door, trying
to keep it shut so the Defendant wouldn’t get out, as Allen is wrestling with him
inside, the Defendant looks at him and says, You're next, and Washington’s like,
what's that all about? | didn’t even -- | haven’t done anything to you today. Well,
you’re next. And what else could he mean by that after just ramming his car into
the church?

Kevin, the Defendant was yelling, I'm going to Kill all you
motherf'ers. And Craig, the Defendant was threatening to kill everyone or anyone
who was making threats to kill. And that's in the few seconds after he'd just drove
through a group of people and plowed his car into the church. Still talking about,
I'm going to kill you guys.

What do you think was going through his mind just before? Was it a
blank zombie mind from alcohol because people could smell it? Because
somebody said at one time he mumbled or sounded incoherent to me? Because
he didn’t seem to understand that we just wanted him to leave.

It's a burglary. It's an intent to commit a battery or an assault or to
kill someone. Assault, intentionally placing another in reasonable apprehension of
immediate bodily harm. Attempt murder, intent to kill another person.

Statements immediately after, his reaction to Allen Burse testifying
at that prior hearing all show that the Defendant had this intent. He was angry.

Maybe the alcohol just gave him a little extra courage to do something that
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somebody otherwise wouldn’t normally do; broke down his barriers of, you know,
society, societal norms. Breaks those down and makes them more likely to lash
out in his angry, which is what happened.

In this case the evidence establishes that the Defendant is guilty
also of burglary, a thief intent crime, burglary, assault with a deadly weapon,
attempt murder with a deadly weapon. And based on the Defendant’s action that
he formulated in his own mind and acted upon, I'm going to ask that you find him
guilty of all the charges because he needs to be held accountable for what he did,
the terror that he put these people through.

He didn’t -- he didn’t break anybody’s neck. Thank goodness. Or
anybody’s back. Everybody can walk and move about after this, but that doesn’t
make it any less that he was trying to kill those people, assault them and inflict as
much damage as he could because they wouldn't let him in that church. Do justice
here, find him guilty. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. POSIN: It goes against the grain as a defense attorney to agree with
anything the prosecution would’ve said. | think Mr. Scow was actually -- summed
up pretty well what the issues are, and | think we actually do agree on the point
that we're dealing with here, that is, we're not disputing who was there. Mr.
Hickman was there. He was driving that car that day. There’s no dispute about
that. The issue is, what was his intent -- intent.

His intent -- again, we -- as Mr. Scow has said, intent is a different
thing for different crimes that are charged here. We have a different intent that
we're looking at for the battery, the burglary, the attempt murder, and the Judge’s

read you these instructions. It talks about general intent crimes, specific intent
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crimes, and | thought | was going to have to explain that a little more than |
probably will because | think he’s actually told you a little bit about the different
between what those things are.

And when you first heard the Judge talking about that, I'm sure a lot
of that was just sounding like -- you know, just what does all of this stuff mean?
Because we as lawyers, we hear all that legal jargon all the time, and we're used to
it, and you guys aren't.

Remember when we first started and | was giving my opening
statement or even before that when we were talking to you guys as potential jurors
still, | was asking, you know, can you really listen and listen to the Judge’s
instructions about what the law is and follow those instructions. There was a
potential juror who is no longer an actual juror, who -- you know, his attitude-- he
was an ex-police officer. His attitude was, well, once -- once the case is presented
to the D.A., well, you know, the work is done. | just -- cops brought it to the D.A.;
then the work is done.

| think the prosecutors and | probably agree, no, that's just the
beginning of the interesting part. This is the interesting part. The part that you're
involved in is really the interesting part, seeing how those facts apply to the law
that the Judge is giving you and coming to a reasonable analysis as to each and
every one -- not just of the crimes charged, but each of the elements of the crimes
that are charged, each and every element of each of the crimes charged.

And we've got a complicated morass of -- of crimes where several
of the crimes, as you'll see -- you're going to see a verdict where there are
alternate versions you can give. You can find the Defendant guilty of one part, two

parts, part one and part two, part one and part three, part one -- only -- none of
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them, all of them. You're going to have to go through that, and it is important that
you go through each and every one of those counts and analyze what was Mr.
Hickman’s intent.

Now, there are options other than the ones that have been
presented to you by the State as to what that intent was. They're trying to say that
his intent was either, | have the specific intent to actually cause the death of these
individuals. Now that’s -- that is what you have to find for the attempt murder. Or
he was so drunk, he -- that's why | objected. He was so drunk that he couldn’t
even formulate such an intent.

Now, I'm not going to argue that he was so drunk that he couldn’t
formulate that intent. I'm arguing that he didn’t, and his intoxication is one element
for you to look at in deciding what his intent -- what his true intent was. And | think
his true intent can be seen by the course of events that led up to this.

He went in. He asked for his daughter. They weren’t going to let
him see his daughter. He was insistent. He asked over and over and over for his
daughter. He wanted to see his daughter. He started out jolly; he was asking for
his daughter. Then he became angrier and angrier. He wanted to see his
daughter. He was escorted out of the place once. He wanted to see his daughter.
He came back in. Gets escorted out again, this time with a little more force. It's
clear to him that he’s not going to go in voluntarily again just on foot. So what was
his intent when he drove that car into -- into the building? And counsel used an
interesting word, bull’s-eye.

Now, in their eye, the fact that there was a direct line from that car
into the church, that's somehow shows his intent to kill. | think far from it. | think

what that shows, his intent at that point looks to me like whatever way it was going
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to take, he was going to go back into that church to see his daughter. Now, was
that a smart thing -- smart way to do it? A safe way to do it? No. Was that a
reckless way to do it? Yeah, that was pretty reckless. And if we were sitting here
dealing with a crime of reckless driving, there would be other issues. Maybe you'd
have different considerations, a different analysis of what intent you are looking at
or lack of intent.

If we were sitting here dealing with what was initially charged by the
officer, driving under the influence, then we would have -- would’ve had different
intent issues. But you're dealing with his intent as charged in these instructions,
and specifically, let’s talk about the attempt murder, his intent to Kill.

Was it his intent to kill or was it his intent to just get into that
building? We knew that there were three big, strong men at least that we're going
to escort him out, keep him out if he went in on foot, and he was just going to go in
in his car. Reckless? Maybe. That's not the crime that you're dealing with. DUI?
Again, maybe. That's not the crime you're dealing with. Was it the kind of reckless
act that would give rise to some civil liability if somebody was suing him? Maybe.
But that’'s not the issue here. The issue here is was he planning; did he formulate
the intent to Kill people? Saying, I'm going to do this in order to kill people. | want
to kill people. If that's what you find, then find him guilty, but that’'s not what the
evidence shows. The evidence shows that the intent he had was to get to his
daughter.

So where does the intoxication come in? Does it come in that he
was so drunk, he didn’'t know where he was driving? No, that's not what I'm
arguing. Does it come in that he was so drunk, that he couldn’t even begin to

formulate that intent? That he was unable to decide, | want to kill somebody?
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That's not what I'm arguing either. Did it come in on the basis that he wasn't
making sound decisions; that when he did come up with an intent, and that intent
was, I’'m going after my daughter, and I’'m driving my car in that building if that’s
what it's going to take? But he didn’t think, oh, there are people in the way, I'm
going to hurt them. Well, you know, if that's what he was thinking, that was pretty
reckless, but that wasn’t an intent to kill. That was not the intent to kill.

The facts that have been shown here -- you know, as counsel has
said, there’s not really too much dispute about what the facts were. What you have
to do is look into this man’s mind. And how do you do that? You have to take the
facts that have been presented by the prosecution, and then you have to look at
the instructions, and you have to look specifically at what every defense attorney in
every case talks about, which is the reasonable doubt instruction. You have to
think, well, why -- maybe, you know -- | don’t know. Maybe he had this intent.
Maybe he had that intent.

If you think that maybe he had the intent to kill people -- I'm arguing
that you couldn’t even begin to think that he even maybe had the intent to kill
people. I'm arguing that the intent that was shown here was to go get his
daughter. Then let's say you disagree with that. You think, yeah, | can see -- | can
see the State’s argument. | can see where, maybe he was, maybe he was so
mad, so irritated with these people, that he actually decided, | want to kill them.

I've forgotten about my daughter now. Who cares about her? [ just -- my new plan
is I'm going to kill some people, and this is how I'm going to do it. Let’'s say that's --
you think that the evidence gives that as one possibility. And let’s say you look at

what I'm saying, arguing here, that | want to go get my daughter, and you say, well,

that's another possibility, and you say, | don’t know, those both seem like
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possibilities. Then what do you do? This is not a situation where you just kind of

look, well, | don’t know, I'll just pick the one way, it could go the other way, we’'ll go
here.

Again, you go back to the Judge’s instructions and some of the
basic principles of law that we have. It's not just any old instruction. | mean, none

of these are just any old instructions. These are all very important, and we
discussed them and agreed on them, and the Judge gave them careful
consideration, and they are the law.

But the proof beyond a reasonable doubt and the fact that -- who
has the burden of proof, the State? What that means is that if you're looking at two
possibilities and you’re weighing them, with any kind of trial you find a defendant
not guilty -- now, not guilty, you're not saying, I'm deciding guilty or innocent. You
notice the word is not innocent, it's not guilty. Not guilty means not proved beyond
a reasonable doubt by the State.

They've presented their case. They see it one way. They're
arguing it one way. I'm arguing it another way. If you, when you go back and
deliberate, think that my argument even is a matter that you think could be
possible, then you think, is -- okay, if it could be possible, is that -- do | then have a
doubt based on that analysis as to whether their argument is right? You may even
think, well, more likely than not their argument is right. | kind of like their argument
better than Mr. Posin’s argument, | don’t know, it just seems more likely he really
did forget about his daughter and was trying to kill them, you still have to find this
man not guilty if you have a reasonable doubt, a reasonable doubt as to whether
what | might feel is the case.

Many of these witnesses had testified once before, as you heard,
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and they were going over what some of their testimony was. And | kind of focused
on the word that one of them used, which was backpedaling. Now that they
understand a little better where the Defense is going, it's -- they’re kind of
downplaying the drunk think.

But every one of them admitted that they said it. Washington
Thompson said -- used the word drunk, and counsel then went back and actually
did something that -- to my mind helped us, our side, more than his, which is, his
actual testimony went from starting to say -- his initial statement in the prior
testimony was a little tipsy. Then he further clarified that to say, well, he was wet
and then finally said drunk.

Tiffany Trass used the word incoherent, and, you know, again, kind
of maybe backpedaled a little bit on that. Allen Burse said, he was mumbling and
wasn't understanding what we were saying. Again, I'm not going to argue it that he
wasn’t capable of understanding the English language and didn’t understand in
that sense. The party wasn’'t under exam. He wasn’t taking no for an answer
about, no, you're not going to see your daughter.

Marquetta Jenkins -- Jenkins said, you could smell the alcohol as he
walked past, and then she threw another phrase even in this trial that -- that some
of you may have caught, which was, he wasn'’t all there. Kevin Madden said, |
smelled liquor. Craig Hutton said that the usher had told him she smelled alcohol.
He smelled alcohol. And Darren Green, who was the officer -- second officer to
testify said, he was non-responsive.

Now, again, this is not to say that he was so drunk, he couldn’t even
(indiscernible), so drunk that he couldn’t walk under his power. There was a lot of

testimony about that. Could he -- did he seem to be stumbling? Did he have to
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use assistance to walk?

But (indiscernible) can do, you heard the instruction about your
common sense comes in and can cause you to disregard the dangers of actions
that we take. People can assess that they didn’t plan out when they're drunk.
They can drive when they really shouldn’t because they made a bad decision,
because they were drunk. They can do all kinds of things because the risks -- the
risks that most of us when we’re sober of doing a particular course of action that
seems so obvious when we're sober somehow recede in the background when
people have too much alcohol.

Here, there was not only a risk, but an actuality of people getting
scared and injured because of what Mr. Hickman did. But was -- was that his
intent? Was that his intent? Again, there’s the battery --

Again, I'm going to read what is stated here. The battery has a
different form of intent. It would be a lot of easier, actually, for you to find him guilty
of the battery, but was it his intent to hurt or kill people or was that just one of those
things that -- one of those risks that because of his intoxication, he didn’t look at
the way he would have that any normal or sober person normally would look and
say, | can’t drive my car into the church because somebody’s going to get hurt.
Well, was that something was just kind of not a central focus of his mind.

If that's the case, then you’ve got to look at these intent instructions.
And, again, I'll agree with the State that may not be enough to get us past the
battery because that's a general intent, but it sure is enough for you to find a not
guilty verdict on all of the other counts.

Then there’s the burglary, of course. Let me talk about the burglary

again. Burglary, he has to have the intent -- it comes down to the intent again, but
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he has to have the intent when entering the building, structure, whatever it is, to
commit one of the crimes involved. So, again, you have to find at the time he was
entering -- I'm not even sure he had quite actually ever entered, but if you give the
State the benefit of the doubt that his body had actually entered the building at the
time, did he have that intent at the time? So we’re still back to that issue of the
intent.

There are enhancements that you're going to have to look at as
well. If you agree with what I'm saying now -- of course, you never get to those
enhancements. If there was no assault, then it couldn’t have been with a deadly
weapon and it couldn’t have been with substantially bodily harm. | don’t think you
ever need to get there I'm going to talk about it a little bit anyway because even if
the State could say that they had proved it to the extent their argument is that he
committed the physical acts he did, they have not proven the enhancements.

First of all, the use of a deadly weapon, again, | credit the State with
having gone through at length with you on the PowerPoint, the elements of the
crime, the instructions that the Judge has read to you and that you're going to
have, and I'm going to want you to go back and look at those instructions.

But it's not just -- you heard me object. It's not just the object you're
using could be used as a deadly weapon. You can't just take that it could because
anything ultimately could be used. Somebody’s fist, a chair, boots, anything could
be deadly. It has to be used in a way that it potentially will.

And as much as the State has tried to inflate what has happened
here -- I'm not trying to minimize it. Certainly, driving a car into a building and pass
into people is not a good idea. Nonetheless, you've got to remember, this was

across a parking lot. And as much, again, as the State has tried to say, oh, well, it

-26-

872




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

was a really wide parking lot, you've seen the pictures; it was a parking lot. It was
a parking lot with spaces on one side and spaces on another side, and we could
see pretty clearly from those tires tracks and many of the witnesses, just how far
that car had come.

It wasn’t going that fast. It wasn’t going that fast. It wasn’t going fast
enough to Kill. It was going fast enough to scare people. That’s not enough. It
was going fast enough to injure people, to hit people. That’'s not enough. It was
not going fast enough to Kill.

And, you know, the proof of the pudding there -- and this actually
goes to the other element, the bodily injury element. There was not substantial
bodily injury. Again, that was -- you know, we heard about the hurt foot, the broken
foot. When the kid came, the kid who was injured, was a nice little girl. Again, I'm
not trying to minimize what she went through. She didn’t have any basis to try to
sell you on anything, to spin it anyway. She told it like it was. And you know what
she said, she said, yeah, it was my little baby pinky toe, and it hurt that day and the
next day. I'm sorry, that is just not substantial bodily harm. So we don’t have
substantial bodily harm, we don’t have use of a deadly weapon, and we don’t have
battery, the assault, the attempt murder. I'm sorry, the -- we don't -- potentially, I'm
going to grant you, you may get to a battery. You don’t have the assault, you don't
have the attempt murder. You don'’t have the burglary.

So when you go back -- again, and | -- before | heard counsel, | was
going to go through some of these instructions one by one, but | think you see how
important it is, and he’s gone through with you and focused on what we do agree is
the issue, is what was his intent. His intent was not to kill.

This is not a reckless driving case, this is not a DUI case, and you
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cannot find him guilty of crimes that are not charged here. You're looking at the
crimes that are charged, and of those crimes, | think you will find that he is not
guilty. Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Hamner.
MR. HAMNER: Thank you.
STATE REBUTTAL ARGUMENT
BY MR. HAMNER:

| made some notes of what | heard Opposing Counsel said. | want
to touch on some of those and then touch on a couple of things that | want to bring
up.

Now, the Defense concedes that we're pretty much in agreement,
it's him. He’s the one who did it. There’s no dispute as to what he did. So let’s
just check all that stuff off because that’s the truth. All the -- everything the
witnesses said is on point. The question becomes, what'’s his intent?

He said, what we need to do is look into that man’s mind on that day
to figure what he was thinking. From the very beginning of this trial, during voir
dire, we talked about, hey, might it be important to look at the before, the during
and the after? And | think some people said, you know, it is, because it gives you,
just what he said, a window into that man’s mind.

So let’s think about what he did, think about what he said. Now,
what they basically said was, the only thing that was going through his mind, the
very clever and unique reason why he drove halfway into a church was because he
wanted to see his daughter? That's their theory, but is that supported by the
evidence. Well, let's look at all the circumstances.

What did he say after he’s halfway through a church where he flew
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the doors off the hinges? Did he say, where’s Samira? Did he say, I'd like to see
my daughter now? Can | see her now? I'm so sorry, but | just want to see my
daughter? Is that what this man said? No. He said, I'm going to kill all you
motherfuckers. You don’t know who you're messing with.

Mr. Craig Hutton said, He was threatening to kill everyone.
Washington Thompson, who never even seen this guy, he looks at him dead in the
eye and he goes, You are next. That’s funny, | don’t think Mr. Thompson looks like
his daughter. You saw him. |s that someone that you could get confused with his
daughter? Probably not. A window into his mind.

He drove through the church to see his daughter, is that -- my
favorite instruction of all the instructions is the common sense instruction. It's in
there. | don’t know the exact one is, but the law basically says, when you're
selected as a juror, you don'’t get to leave your common sense at the door. You've
got to bring it in.

So when you listen to all of the evidence and you heard all of his
statements, the thing you should be asking yourself is, does that make sense?
Was this a man who was expressing his desire to see his daughter after he plowed
halfway through this church? The answer’s no, absolutely not. Beyond a
reasonable doubt, the answer is no.

It's never about Samira at that point. It was at the beginning, but
not at the end and not while he was getting in that car for the second time. It never
was about his daughter at that point. It was about anger. It was about revenge. It
was about spite. It was about payback. That's what motivated, to try to run over
Allen Burse, run over the people at church and put that car halfway through that

church. That's what he was thinking about that second time he was in the car.
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And then there was some talk about backpedaling. It seems to be
one of the words of this trial. There’s a difference between backpedaling and
giving context. Now, | appreciate Opposing Counsel wasn'’t there at the previous
proceeding to ask the questions of these witnesses as to what they meant, but
when you heard them testify, all those withesses mumble incoherent, not sure what
he said. When they were asked, they very clearly explained at trial what they
meant.

You remember what they said. | don’t need to remind that to you.
But just remember, they also said they were never asked to explain exactly what
those words meant at a prior proceeding. That's not backpedaling. That's not
being given an opportunity to explain. And that's what we did. So when you think
about their credibility and whether they’re really trying to backpedal or if they’re just
simply asking now to explain further on what they said before, I'll let you be the
judge of that.

Another interesting thing about this notion about intoxication, let’s
be clear about something as to what the law says. Instruction 16 says, “No act
committed by a person while in a state of intoxication shall be deemed less criminal
by reason of his condition, but whenever the actual existence of any particular
intent is necessary,” that's when you can kind of think about it. So as a general
rule, it's no excuse to be drinking and then commit a criminal act.

So what this law actually says is, if you drink so much that you
cannot mentally form the idea to do something intentional, then you can’t be found
guilty of a particular crime, whether it's burglary or assault or attempt murder.
Okay? But here’s the funny thing about the Defense’s argument.

He told us the reason why he wanted to go in there was to see his daughter, if

-30-

876




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

that's to believe. Well, then that’s funny. You must not have been that intoxicated
if you formed the specific intent to go in the church to see your daughter. It doesn’t
work that way.

He's either totally zonked out of his mind, drunk out of his mind that
he doesn’t know what he’s doing or you don’t get the defense of intoxication. It
doesn’t work that way. You'll see the instructions. You're either totally wasted and
you have no control or maybe when you had a few drinks -- we like to sometimes
call it liquid courage -- it fuels some of your feelings. Maybe you get the courage to
walk up to a girl and ask her out on a date at a bar. Maybe you get in a fight when
you shouldn’t have. Opposing counsel mentioned, maybe you slept with
somebody that you probably shouldn’t have. But the bottom line is, that notion, if
the alcohol helps you do something a little bit more that you wouldn’t have normally
done if you drank, that doesn’t qualify. It's not forming specific intent. That’s not
the way the defense works. You literally have to consume so much alcohol, that
you don’t know what you're doing.

So under either theory, our theory or theirs, he hadn’t drank enough
alcohol.

And think about the evidence that you heard. He admitted to the
officer that he had one beer. You had multiple withesses saying, you know what, if
| didn’t smell it, his behavior didn’t look like a guy who was drunk, and you saw his
actions, that they’re conceding he did. Seemed like a pretty deliberate path into
that church. Is this really a guy who didn’t know how to drive a car? | mean, he did
a bang up job getting to the church, parking the first time, walking under his own
power, walking back, driving all around, parking a second time. Never bumping

into a thing. That's amazing. In that one split second in time, oh, no, forget it,
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lights went out, | don’t really remember what happened.

Common sense, is that really supported by the evidence? The
answer is no, absolutely not. He knew what he was doing. He was pissed, and he
lashed out.

MR. HAMNER: Excuse my language, Your Honor.
BY MR. HAMNER:

The Defense concedes the battery. That's a general intent crime.
So he’s on the hook for those. Those are just lesser crimes. We've charged
battery with a deadly weapon, battery with a deadly weapon resulting in substantial
bodily harm. Here's the actual instruction -- you'll have the instruction on the
deadly weapon. The deadly weapon instruction says, “Any instrument or device
which under the circumstances in which it is used is readily capable of causing
substantial bodily harm or death.”

Do you think driving at a person who is unarmed, on foot, alone in
the middle of the street could possibly cause substantially bodily harm or death if
you gun the gas like Mr. Burse was? Yes. Deadly weapon. Do you think driving
into a crowd of unarmed people on foot while you’re gunning the gas might cause
someone to die, to succeed at hitting or hurting them really bad? Of course.
Deadly weapon. Same thing with driving through the church.

So the enhancement has been proven beyond a reasonable doubt
because there’s no dispute that he is the one who did all of those actions. He
physically did it. He’s on the hook for that enhancement. So you check off battery
with a deadly weapon. Let's get to substantial bodily harm.

That law states that anybody who has prolonged impairment for one

of their bodily members. So you have to ask yourself, did this nine-year-old girl
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have some prolonged time when she wasn’t able to use her foot in the right way?
We concede, we contend, we've submitted, yes, absolutely. You put a little girl in a
soft cast or a walking boot for a period of time where she has to take pain
medication, she’s having a hard time sleeping, she’s complaining to her mother,
yeah, guess what -- she’s not able to run and play like they used to. That's
prolonged impairment. She also had prolonged pain. And you can consider the
testimony of her mother as well as her. Don't just take it from her mouth. Take it
from the people who watch and care for her on a daily basis. We've met that
beyond a reasonable doubt.

She’s not in a coma. She doesn’t have a limb lobbed off, but that's
not what the law says. And you'll have a chance to read that. So we've made
those enhancements. So you can check off those two crimes as they were initially
charged. He’s guilty of them beyond a reasonable doubt.

There’s also a comment, well, it's not really going that fast. Did you
see the pictures of that door? You can judge that for yourself. How fast do you got
to go to blow a closed door up into the air? How fast do you have to be driving?
How fast must he be going to put a Cadillac halfway into a church?

And you also had the eyewitness testimony. You can judge it for
yourself. Did all those people think it was going pretty fast? The State would
submit absolutely.

There was a lot of focus -- a little bit on the type of injury, that it was
only just a pinky toe. But we have charges like attempt murder, the law doesn’t
say you have to put somebody on life support to be guilty of attempt murder. You
have to permanently cut off one of their limbs to be guilty of attempt murder. That's

not how it works. Because if that's how it works, someone could walk into a
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crowded theatre with a gun, rattle off 150 bullets at people, and if he didn’t hit a
single soul, well, guess what, you're not guilty of attempt murder. Does that make
sense? No.

You could push a nine-year-old girl off the top of a building and if
she miraculously ended up unharmed, well, apparently it's not attempt murder.
Really? Pushing a nine-year-old girl off of a very high building, that isn't something
that could cause death or substantially bodily -- absolutely. It's the act that
matters.

So the question you have to ask yourself, is the act of driving at an
unarmed man first and then speeding into a crowd of unarmed people next and
then driving half through -- halfway into a crowded church, are these acts that
could substantially cause death”? The answer is beyond a reasonable doubt yes.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, there was also -- getting to this issue of
specific intent. | think a really interesting thing, if you're believed -- forget -- forget
the Samira -- “I'm coming to find Samira” theory. Let’s just assume what the law
really says to get this intoxication defense, that you basically cannot form the
mental intent at the time that you're doing it. Think about that because that's what
the law says.

Here’s the problem for the Defendant based on the evidence that
was presented. Let’s just assume for a second he is so intoxicated, he had no idea
what he was doing. He did not how to back that car out, cut those wheels, et
cetera. Let’s just assume because the drinking was just so much for him. He
basically blacked out, right? Here's the problem with that theory.

Take yourself to the testimony of Allen Burse. When he sat on the

stand and talked about testifying at a prior proceeding, when he said, I've been a
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cop, or whatever, but my gut was telling me not to take my eyes off this guy
because | thought something bad was going to happen. What did he tell you this
man did? He shouted out and said, you almost broke my arm, my damn arm,
that's why. How in the world --

MR. POSIN: That misstates the testimony. He stated -- that was alleged to
have been stated at the prior proceeding, not at --

MR. HAMNER: | got it --

THE COURT: Overruled.
BY MR. HAMNER:

Ladies and gentlemen, if he is so intoxicated that he was blacked
out during this senseless attack on these people, how did he remember? Why was
he trying to explain to Allen Burse, you know what, Mr. Burse, you're right, you had
a good reason to suspect something bad was going to happen. He told us. We
called his bluff at this point. He showed his tell. The hands he was showing, he
was trying to say, | don’t remember anything, but when you shot out at a witness
and explain to them, you know what, sir, you're intuition’s right. Something bad
was going to happen because | didn't like the way you treated me. | didn’t like how
you put me in that arm bar, you put me in that car.

He told us two months later that he was fully cognizant of what he
was doing, and there’s no dispute about that fact. That's what he said. But if he’s
so intoxicated that he doesn’t form that intent, he doesn’t say that. He sits there
silently just saying, | don’t remember what happened because | was so wasted.
And that is why we know beyond a reasonable doubt this is what he wanted to do.
He repeatedly said over and over again he wanted to kill these people.

And that's another question. Why do you think he said all those
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things once lodged in that church? The answer is, when you look at the very
definition of attempted murder, it's the “performance of an act which tends but fails
to kill a human being.” The reason why he’s saying to these people after he failed
to kill them, “I'm going to kill you,” is he recognized and realized he failed. He
failed at first. And so he made a communication to all of them, “I'm going to kill all
you people. You don’'t know who you're messing with.” He's still trying to get that
car free to finish the job.
Do not let the Defendant backpedal. Do not let him off the hook.

Hold him responsible for this absolutely senseless act that terrified countless
people, broke a little girl's foot and injured her mother. Do justice for all of these
victims. Find him guilty on all counts. Thank you.

THE COURT: Will the marshal please take charge of the jury now.

(Pause)

THE COURT: Is he out there?

MR. SCOW: No, ma’am. | checked chambers behind us. He’s not there.
I’'m assuming that possibly he may be in the restroom, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, | will swear you in, and then we’ll swear him in.

(The Marshal enters the courtroom)
(Clerk swears the Marshal and Recorder)
(Court and Marshal confer)

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE MARSHAL: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, please grab
your notebooks, all your personal effects. Please follow me.

(Jury exits courtroom to deliberate)

(Out of the presence of the jury panel)
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THE COURT: The record will reflect the jury has departed the courtroom.
Are there any matters outside the presence?

MR. SCOW: No, Your Honor.

MR. POSIN: No, Your Honor. [just am curious, assuming they’re still
deliberating this afternoon, would you come back tomorrow or come back Monday
or --

THE COURT: Well, we're not coming back Saturday, | know, because that
would require lots of overtime, which we can’t afford here. So we would bring them
back Monday, but it's only 12:30. | did ask --

MR. POSIN: Yeah, not expecting --

THE COURT: Let’s ask them for lunch.

(Court and Clerk confer)

THE COURT: So when we call you, come back to the third floor courtroom
instead of here.

MR. POSIN: | like that courtroom better. It's (indiscernible).

THE COURT: This was never intended to be a courtroom. All right. Thank
you. We're off the record.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you.

[Proceeding concluded at 12:32 p.m.]

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case to the

best of my ability.
‘ N

Renee Vincent, Court Recorder/Transcriber
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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILBURT HICKMAN, JR. A/K/A No. 64776
WILLIAM HICKS,

Appellant,

FILED
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE

This is an appeal from a judgment of conviction entered
pursuant to a jury verdict of one count of battery with the use of a deadly
weapon, one count of battery with the use of a deadly weapon causing
substantial bodily harm, five counts of assault with the use of a deadly
weapon, and one count of burglary. Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark
County; Carolyn Ellsworth, Judge.

First, appellant Wilburt Hickman claims a witness provided
improper lay testimony when that witness testified regarding whether
alcohol was involved in the crash. Hickman failed to object to this
testimony at trial.

We review a district court’s decision to admit or exclude
evidence for an abuse of discretion. Thomas v. State, 122 Nev. 1361, 1370,
148 P.3d 727, 734 (2006). Because Hickman did not object, we review for
plain error. Sterling v. State, 108 Nev. 391, 394, 834 P.2d 400, 402 (1992).

Under the plain error standard, we determine “whether there was an
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error, whether the error was plain or clear, and whether the error affected
the defendant’s substantial rights.” Anderson v. State, 121 Nev. 511, 516,
118 P.3d 184, 187 (2005) (internal quotation marks and citation omitted).

The witness at trial was asked, “So based on your observations
from beginning to end, could you tell that alcohol was involved.” The
witness answered, “Other than odor, no.” The witness was then asked
about the behavior of Hickman before and after the crash. The witness
was not asked to offer a final opinion as to whether Hickman intended to
commit the crimes. Instead, he was asked about his observations of
Hickman as they related to whether Hickman appeared intoxicated. This
was proper under NRS 50.265 because a lay witness may testify in the
form of opinions or inferences as long as that testimony is “[r]ationally
based on the perception of the witness; and . . . [h]elpful to a clear
understanding of the testimony of the witness or determination of a fact in
issue.” Therefore, there was no error, 'plain or otherwise, in allowing this
testimony.

Second, Hickman claims the district court viclated his due
process rights by refusing to give two instructions regarding intoxication
affecting the intent to kill. It may have been error for the district court to
refuse to give these instructions, see Guitron v. State, 131 Nev. __, _, .
350 P.3d 93, 102 (2015), however, even assuming it was error, we conclude
the error was harmless. Hickman was nof convicted of attempted murder.
Further, an instruction was given to the jury regarding intoxication and
its effect on intent. Therefore, we conclude Hickman is not entitled to

relief on this claim.
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Third, Hickman claims the State committed prosecutorial
misconduct during closing argument by stating “a car is something that
kills people every day sadly, in-accidents or hits pedestriahs.” Hickman
claims this was error because the State was able to improperly argue that
a car is a “per se” deadly weapon.

We analyze claims of prosecutorial misconduct in two steps:
first, we determine whether the prosecutor’s conduct was improper, and
second, if the conduct was improper, we determine Whether it warrants
reversal. Valdez v. State, 124 Nev. 1172, 1190, 196 P.3d 465, 477 (2008).

We conclude this claim-lacks merit. In the context of the
State’s closing argument, this statement was not an argument that a car
is a per se deadly weapon. Instead, the State properly argued that a car
can be a deadly weapon. See NRS 193.165(6)(b) (“Any weapon, device,
instrument, material or substance which, under the circumstances in
which it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be used, is readily
capable of causing substantial bodily harm or death”). Therefore, we
conclude there was no misconduct by the prosecutor.

Fourth, Hickman argues there was insufficient evidence
presented to convict him of battery with the use of a deadly weapon
resulting in substantial bodily harm. Specifically, he argues the State
failed to prove the element of substantial bodily harm because the pain
complained of by the victim was not within the meaning of NRS 0.060.

Under a challenge to the sufficiency of the evidence, this court
reviews the evidence in the light most favorable to the prosecution and

determines whether “any rational trier of fact could have found the
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essential elements of the crimes beyond a reasonable doubt.” Mitchell v.
State, 124 Nev. 807, 816, 192 P.3d 721, 727 (2008) (emphasis and internal
quotation marks omitted). NRS 0.060 defines substantial bodily harm as,
“IbJodily injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes
serious, permanent disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the
function any bodily member or organ; or . . . [p]rolonged physical pain.”

The record demonstrates the child victim suffered a broken
pinky toe. She was medicated for the pain, the pain persisted for at least
a week after the medication ran out, and her foot felt broken. Further,
after being on crutches for a week, she then had to be in a walking boot.
We conclude, based on these facts, there was sufficient evidence that the
victim suffered prolonged physical péin and Hickman committed battery
with the use of a deadly weapon causing substantial bodily harm.

Fifth, Hickman claims there was insufficient evidence to
convict him of assault with the use of a deadly weapon as to all of the
victims. Specifically, he claims, under Powell v. State, 113 Nev. 258, 934
P.2d 224 (1997) a defendant may not be convicted of multiple counts of
assault with the use of a deadly weapon in which the circumstances are
one action against a group or more than one person.

We conclude Powell is factually different than the instant
case. To prove intent for assault with the use of a deadly weapon, the
State must demonstrate the defendant had the specific intent to commit a
violent injury on each of the.victims. Id. at 263, 934 P.2d at 228; see also
NRS 200.417; NRS 193.330. In Powell, the Nevada Supreme Court noted

“Powell only shot the rifle once, at a group of people, and not at any one
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specific person, let alone three specific people.” Powell, at 263, 934 P.24 at
227. In the instant case, Hickman drove a car toward a.group of people.
Unlike a bullet, a car possesses the ability to harm multiple people, and
therefore, Hickman could intend to commit a violent injury on each of his
victims. In this case, Hickman knew there was a group of people outside
the church and there were people inside the church because he had just
been escorted out. Hickman intentionally turned his steering wheel
towards one parishioner, then towards the group outside and directly
inside the church. Therefore, there was sufficient evidence to demonstrate
Hickman’s intent to commit assault with the use of a deadly weapon on all
of the victims.

Sixth, Hickman claimed there was insufficient evidence to
convict him of assault with the use of a deadly weapon with respect to one
victim who was inside the church. Specifically, Hickman claimed she was
not aware of the car approaching, and therefore, could not have been
placed in reasonable apprehension of harm. See NRS 200.47 1(a}(2). This
claim lacks merit, because as stated above, there was sufficient evidence
to convict Hickman on this count based on an “attempted battery” theory
of assault. See NRS 200.471(a)(1).

Seventh, Hickman claims the district court abused its
discretion at sentencing because it relied on impalpable or highly suspect
evidence. Specifically, he claims the district court relied on argument
from the State that Hickman had the intent to kill, despite the fact that
the jury hung on the attempted murder counts, and relied on the State’s

argument regarding uncharged conduct relating to Hickman’s daughter.

889




COURT OF APPEALS
OF
NEVADA

(0} 1478 <83

Hickman failed to demonstrate the district court relied on
impalpable or highly suspect evidence when sentencing Hickmén. See
Silks v. State, 92 Nev. 91, 94, 545 P.2d 1159, 1161 (1976) (We will not
interfere with the sentence imposed by the district court “[s]o long as the
record does not demonstrate prejudice resulting from consideration of
information or accusations founded on facts supported only by impalpable
or highly suspect evidence.”). Hickman's conduct in this case was
egregious and the sentence imposed in this case is within the parameters
provided by the relevant statutes, see NRS 207.010(1)(a); NRS
200.471(2)(b); NRS 205.060(2). Therefore, Hickman is not entitled to relief
on this claim.

Seventh, Hickman claims. the district court abused its
discretion at sentencing by sentencing him as a habitual criminal.l
Specifically, Hickman claims his convictions were old and stale and the
district court failed to consider the fact that Hickman was an alcoholic.
The record reveals the district court considered the parties’ arguments,
the nature of the crime, the staleness of Hickman's prior convictions, and
the district court declined to dismiss the habitual criminal count. See NRS
207.016(5); O’Neill v. State, 123 Nev. 9, 15, 153 P.3d 38, 42 (2007);
Arajakis v. State, 108 Nev. 976, 983, 843 P.2d 800, 805 (1992) (“NRS

207.010 makes no special allowance for non-violent crimes or for the

ITo the extent Hickman argues he received ineffective assistance of
counsel in regard to his habitual criminal adjudication, this claim is not
properly raised in a direct appeal from a judgment of conviction. Feazell v.
State, 111 Nev. 1446, 1449, 906 P.2d 727, 729 (1995).
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remoteness of convictions; instead, these are mnsideratioﬁs within the
discretion of the district court.”). We conclude that the district cburt did
not abuse its discretion in this regard.

Finally, Hickman claims the cumulative errors at trial
warrant reversal of his convictions. We conclude Hickman is not entitled
to relief on this claim. See United States v. Sager, 227 F.3d 1138, 1149
(9th Cir. 2000) (“One error is not cumulative error.”).

Having considered Hickman’s contentions and concluded he is
not entitled to relief, we |

ORDER the judgment of the conviction AFFIRMED.

Gibbons

¢c:  Hon. Carolyn Ellsworth, District Judge
Law Office of Kristina Wildeveld
Attorney General/Carson City
Clark County District Attorney
Eighth District Court Clerk
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This document is a full, true and correct copy of
th&.original_on file and of recard in my, office.
é-on ;‘oni. aﬂ "fﬁ_ }
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

WILBURT HICKMAN, JR. A/K/A WILLIAM Supreme Court No. 64776
HICKS, District Court Case No. C278699
Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

REMITTITUR

TO: Steven D. Grierson, Eighth District Court Clerk

Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:

Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE: October 12, 2015
Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By: Sally Williams
Deputy Clerk

cc (without enclosures):
Hon. Carolyn Ellsworth, District Judge
Clark County District Attorney
Attorney General/Carson City
Law Office of Kristina Wildeveld

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, the

REMITTITUR issued in the above-entitled cause, on 0CT 16 2015
HEATHER UNGERMANN
Depaly District Court Clerk
RECEIVED
OCT 16 2015
CLERK OF THE
COURT 1 15-30869
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Post Office Box 208, SDCC

b

Indian Springs, Nevada 89070 CLERK OF THE COURT
3
4
5 IN THE B\GHTH _ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE

6 COUNTY OF CLARK
$ IR ST OF NRUADA, ;
9 Plaintiff, )
10 vs. } Case No. (L1649
11 MILBRRY Witk aRw, § Dept.No.
12 Defer:dant, ) Docket
13 )
14 MOTION TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
L5 Date of Hearing:  2-1-16
16 Time of Hearing: _ 9: 002M
17 ‘ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED, Yes No ”
18 COMES NOW, Defcndant,\;l '\\\&E\Y \‘\i Q\<‘f1\qh . proceeding in proper

19 § person, moves this Honorable Court for an ORDER Granting him permission to withdraw his

20 i;esent counsel of record in the proceeding action, namely,

D 53(‘\ AN \I\\'\\.(\Q\’ Q\ (\

22 This Motion is made and based on all papers and pleadings on file with the Clerk of the Court

@3 which are hereby incorporated by this reference, the Points and Authorities herein, and attached
Q
%4 Atthidavit of Defendant.
m
G235 | DATED: this 30™ay of Db eenber , 2016
0 26 BY:
& TR
X 25 P efendant [n Propria Personam
o)
) a 1
I m
iy
i m
8 -]
2
-{
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
The Nevada Revised Statute 7.055(1), which deals with the duty of a discharged attorney, states:

“An attomey who has been discharged by his client shall, upon demand and payment of the fee due from
the client, immediately deliver to the client ali papers, documents, pleadings and items of tangible property
which belong to or were prepared for that client.”

As can be seen in this case, the defendant does not owe any fees, in fact, they, meaning counsel(s)
of record, were appointed by the Court to represent the defendant, who was an indigent, in Case
Number C1R1A9 | in Department No, &

N.R.S. 7.055(2) gives this Court the power to Order the Attorney(s) of record to produce and
eliver to the defendant in his/her possession, which states:

“A client who, after demand therefore and payment of the fee due from him, does not receive from his

discharged attorney all papers, documents, pleadings and items of tangible personal property may, by
4 motion filed after at least 5 days’ notice to the attorney, obtain an order for the production of his papers,

Documents, pleadings and other property.”

In numerous cases throughout this great land, the courts have held attorneys to a high degree of

rofessional responsibility and integrity. This carried from the time of hiring to and through the
ttorney’s termination of employment. ‘

Supreme Court Rule 173 states quite clear that a withdrawn attorney owes his former client a
.. -prompt accounting of all his client’s. . . -property in his possession.” This is echoed in Canon 2 of
e Code of Professional Responsibility of the American Bar Association, which states in pertinent
art EC 2-32: “A lawyer should protect the welfare of his clientby . . . delivering to the client ail
apers and property to which the client is entitled.” Again in Disciplinary Rule 2-1 10(A)2) of the
A, this is brought out that a‘ withdrawn attomey must deliver to the client all papers an comply with
pplicable laws on the subject.

[n the cases of [n Re Yount, 93 Ariz. 322,380 P.2d 780 (1963) and State v, Alvey, 215 Kan. 460,
24 P.2d 747 (1974), both of which dealt with a factual situation involving a withdrawn attorney
efusing to deliver to a former client his documents after being requested to do so by the client. The
ourt in Yount, supra, ordered the artorney disbarred while in Alvey, supra, the court had the attorney

ensored.
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While not the intention of the Defendant in this case to have the attorney disbarred, these cases do
how a pattern in the court in considering the refusal to deliver to a former client all his documents
Ind property after being requested to do so, a serious infraction of the law and of professional ethics.

bee, [n Re Sullivan, 212 Kan. 233, 510 P.2d 1199 (1973).
In summary, this court has jurisdiction through NRS 7.055 to Order the attorney(s) to produce and

eliver to the Defendant all documents and personal property in his/their possession belonging to him
r prepared for him. The Defendant has fulfilled his obligations in trying to obtain the papers. The
ttorney(s) is in discord with Cannon 2 of the Code of Professional responsibility and the Nevada

upreme Court Rules 173, 176 and 203.

DATED: this 30+h'day of O&c,cw»{g er, 2018

-

‘ .
BY: \N
N _ #2150
efendant/In Propria Personam
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CCFILE

DATED: this ;53_*"353; of fecember, 2015

00k o baens
VL RERY BIKK M AN
/In Propna Personam

Post Office Box 208,S.D.CC.
Indian ings, Nevada 89018

IN FORMA PAUPERIS:
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding MD%\DF\TQ

\A\\\‘C&Yﬁb\) Qj‘m\éﬁ\

(Titte of Document)

filed in District Court Case number Qﬁﬂ %LOO\O\

\Q Does not cantain the social security number of any person.

-OR-
0O Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to wit:

(State specific law)
-or-

B. For the administration of a public program or for an application
for a federal or state grant.

\SM Mww tﬂhl LS

Signature Date

\A\me \_\m«m

Print Name

gen\g\m&}m =X

Title
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\AM\\\AQ\M\“ CLERK OF THE COURT

Defendant/ [n Propna Personam
Post Office Box 208,S.D.C.C.
Indian Springs, Nevada 89018

IN THE E\GWIY\ _ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF &LARK.

THE STRIE &% NENADR,
Plaintiff,

Case No.( Z l%lo El
Dept No. 5}

Docket

WILELET WICKMRN,

Defendant,

Nt N N g ot Nt ot e o’

e e s et
® N st

MOTION FOR PRODUC’I};ION OF DOCUMENTS,
Date of Hearing: 21~ 1°
Time of Hearing:  ©: 002M

“ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED, Yes __No__"

—

.
O

20

COMES NOW, Dcfendant,\l\\'\\\)t\e( \'\‘\(\(ﬁ\ﬂ(\ , proceeding in proper person,
ereby moves this Honorable Court for its ORDER for the production of all documents, ﬁapers,

leadings and tangible property in the possession of: D \ﬂQ\A\\AQMQ\(‘ } (\ o \\{ N

Mchioie GlR s to\f\\ S\. \,Q‘x\\é(ﬂ% RSN

T

LHN0J IHL 40 M¥¥310

B s v

o

[his Motion is made and based upon all papers and pleadings on file with the Clerk of the Court

hich are hereby incorporated by this reference, the Points and Authorities herein, and attached

L\Q'ldavit of Defendant.

FmbATED: this 3_6%21” of De,u,m,be{ 20 _té./ -

< BY: UJ MMM
; 3
Detendanvin Propria Personam

IVED

a3

JAN 0

7 20%

CLERK OF ng COURT 901




1 POINTS AND HORITIE

The Nevada Revised Statute 7.055(1), which deals with the duty of a discharged attomey, states:

the client, immediately deliver to the client all Papers, documents, pleadings and items of tangible Property
which belong to or were prepared for that client.”

2

3| “Anattorney who has been discharged by his client shall, upon demand and payment of the fee due from

4

51 As can be seen in this case, the defendant does not owe any fees, in fact, they, meaning Counsel(s)
6 pf record, were appointed by the Court to represent the defendant, who was an indigent, in Case

7 Number, (277114, in Department No, N .

81 N.R.S. 7.055(2) gives this Court the power to Order the Attorney(s) of record to produce and

9 ‘?eliver to the defendant in his/her possession, which states:

10 “A client who, after demand therefore and payment of the fee due from him, does not receive from his
discharged attorney all papers, documents, pleadings and items of tangible personal property may, by

11 a motion filed after at least 5 days’ notice to the attomney, obtain an order for the production of his papers,
Documents, pleadings and other property.” ‘
12

13| Innumerous cases throughout this great land, the courts have held attorneys to a high degree of

14 professional responsibility and integrity. This carried from the time of hiring to and through the
15 gttorney’s termination of employment,

16 § Supreme Court Rule 173 states quite clear that a withdrawn attorney owes his former client a
17§ . .prompt accounting of all his client’s. . property in his possession.” This is echoed in Canon 2 of
18 the Code of Professional Responsibility of the American Bar Association, which states in pertinent
19 part EC 2-32: “A lawyer should protect the welfare of his client by . . . delivering to the client al]
20 papers and property to which the client is entitled.” Again in Disciplinary Rule 2-1 10(A)(2) of the
21 ABA, this is brought out that a withdrawn attorney must deliver to the client ai] papers an comply with
22 3pplicable laws on the subject.

23] Inthe cases of In Re Yount, 93 Ariz, 322,380 P.2d 780 (1963) and State v Alvey, 215 Kan. 460,

|
24 J"Z-I P.2d 747 (1974), both of which deait with a factuai situation involving a withdrawn attorney
25 {efusing to deliver to a former client his documents after being requested to do so by the client. The
26 gourt in Yount, supra, ordered the attorney disbarred while in Alvey, supra, the court had the attorney

27 tensored.
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While not the intention of the Defendant in this case to have the attorney disbarred, these cases do
how a pattern in the court in considering the refusal to deliver to a former client all his documents
nd property after being requested to do so, a serious infraction of the law and of professional ethics.
bee, In Re Sullivan, 212 Kan. 233,510 P.2d 1199 (1973), '

[n summary, this court has Jurisdiction through NRS 7.055 to Order the attomey(s) to produce and
Yeliver to the Defendant all documents and personal property in his/their possession belonging to him
r prepared for him. The Defendant has fulfilled his obligations in trying to obtain the papers. The

ttorney(s) is in discord with Cannon 2 of the Code of Professional responsibility and the Nevada

upreme Court Rules 173, 176 and 203,
A
DATED: this 20 day of beum'»(ler , 20 _\_g
- Y
BY: ~f U)M l

\LRURTBICKMIAN - #LOIES
Detendant/In Propria Personam
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1 CERTFICATE QF SERVICE BY MAILING

\L\\.\\}T\ \\\Q N\Qﬁ , hereby certify, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), that on thjg 3o'H’\

day of 3Decem bt’J‘ 20151 mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing, _Eb_]ﬂm_ﬁ)‘ﬁg_

\A\ QN D%MN\R\&S ‘F& @QY S Q\QO(\WAb [\h( TQM\\ZXQV\)YBNV\’\I v »

k\ @\“ Q\\\Dﬁ\{\\

by placing document in a sealed pre-postage paid envelope and deposnted said envelope in the

Khs\\m\l\ ARNQ C&* .

2

3

4

5

6 I United State Mail addressed to the following;
7

8

9

Ot \\émd& Dhice=, &F .
[QDQ TN \‘”3 . lo‘\‘\\ =t

ED.BO\L RRNZZYZ LA%\]QQ«\E: NN 2A16T
10 La<N e§f> W N RR-R2T?
11
12 _ Qm*\\m M Minis

S~ Xaw B&ike< Z"‘f
13 o — ﬂ&nr\r:sh g(\t;ﬁ!\\lﬂl%)\leld
14 T~ LasNooa s \W Y16
IS -

15
16
173 CC:FILE
18

19 DATED: this @u\day of Qﬂgml{)jc , 2015

ALY N #2850

/T n Propria Personam
Post Office Box 208S.D.CC.
Indi Nevada 8901
IN FORMA PAUPERIS:
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding B&\Bﬂ \J'D(*

?&DAU(}V\DO &MM@\‘T A k@xs }\Q@Q\‘u\%&; N\Q\T(H\i\; \5\6 vuy

(Title of Document)

filed in District Court Case number QJDJT%LDQC\

\Sl Does not contain the social security number of any person.

-OR-
O Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

" A. A specific state or federal law, to wit:

(State specific law)
-or-

8. For the administration of 3 public program or for an application
for a federat or state grant.

Wt WG o bolis

Signature Date

\[{\%ﬁﬁ‘ Huckman
\k& t\AméV\?\bﬁf

Title
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ORDR % » W
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
GENEVIEVE CRAGGS
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013469

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-Vs- CASE NO: C-12-278699-1
WILBURT HICKMAN, aka DEPT NO: Vv
William Hicks,
#0905481
Defendant.

ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT'S PRO PER MOTION TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
AND
ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S PRO PER MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS, PAPERS, PLES]%EI\CI}S ﬁl\lﬁ’lp TANGIBLE PROPERTY OF

DATE OF HEARING: FEBRUARY 1, 2016
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

- ‘TI-'IIS_MAT;I‘ER h'av.ing come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the 1st
day of February, 2016, the Defendant not being present, IN PROPER PERSON, the Plaintiff
being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through GENEVIEVE
CRAGGS, Deputy District Attorney, without argument, and good cause appearing therefor,
/1
1 7

W:2011F\216\95\1 1F21695-ORDR-(HICKS__ WILLIAM)-001.DOCX
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COURT finds both motions have identical points and authorities, an attached affidavit

is mentioned, however, there is not an affidavit attached. FURTHER, t?lere is nothing in the
motion indicating he has tried to obtain his file and counsel refused to send it to him.

COURT ORDERED, Motion to withdraw counsel is GRANTED and Metien<$ferPro-Per-
Motion for Production is DENIED WITHOUT PREJUDICE, unless or until he can show

~ Cowns el

| Court that he has/had requested said documents and counsel refused. o+ Fid ko prodae

Fhem~r 1
DATED this __//#+ day of February, 2016.

DISTRICT/IUDGE )

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

-l

BY

VIEV GGS
Deputy District Attorney
~ Nevada Bar #013469

2
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1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
2 T certify that on the [ﬂ day of ghg%g, 2016, I mailed a copy of the
3 || foregoing Order to: _
4 WILBURT HICKMAN, aka
5 SOUTIE\Q{{%%}}EHS%(IS{#‘%(I)%{%ECTIONAL CENTER
6 ?N%IBA%XSI%%NGS, NEVADA 89018
7
8 BY Mmﬁ
9 S.elér(e)tEIEthjc;rS %?District Attorney’s Office
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19 "
20
¢ 21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28 || 11F21695X/jr/L-1
_ \ ; ‘
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PETITIONER - IN PROPER PERSON

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Dtéﬁw /c@«/ ) case ¢ (12276679 '/
Hearing Date: 3—,’;‘1,4—16

)

Petitioner

Time of Hearing: 9:00am C)
AN €

Respondent

S T —

MOTION TO COMPEL

COMES NOW, Petitioner DI%UW/W'%\/ , in and through

his proper person hereby moves this Honorable Court for an Order compelling:

Qelese Conlecls T Hands Ol 14w s TG Cre,

=T his motion is made and based upon all papers and pleadings on file with the Cierk of

3
8he Court , which are hereby incorporated by this reference, the Points and Authorities

erein, and attached Affidavit of Petitioner.

Dated: this 1, day of Fe.bmarq‘ .20 llo..

Submifted by:
1RUe] /i 7 /S

Petitioker / | M Proper Person

CL

FEB 19 2015
CLERK OF THE COURT
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

On thel- day of /@96444&/ 20 46 the Court had granted the
Petitioner's, " //"( ﬁm&’@%%
However,@( has failed to comply with the Order from this

Honorable Court. This Court has the power and duty to enforce its lawful judgment

pursuant to N.R.S. 1.210 which states in pertinent part ;
“ Every court shall have power !
1. To preserve and enforce order in its immediate presence.

2. To enforce order in the proceedings before a person or persons
empowered to conduct a judicial investigation under its authority.

3. To compel obedience to its lawful judgments, orders and process, and
to the lawful orders of its judge out of court in an action or proceeding
pending therein.

4. To control ,in furtherance of justice, the conduct of its ministerial
offers.” (emphasis added)
Failure to comply with a court’s order constitutes contempt under N.R.S. 199.340

which states in pertinent part that:

“ Every person who shall commit a contempt of court of any one of the
following kind shall be quilty of a misdemeanor:

.4, Willful disobedience to the lawful process or mandate of the cournt....”
(emphasis added)

In closing, byﬂé @@3’&/ not adhering to the order of this court
E s Tl :ﬁﬂle:r/ has displayed contempt. Petitioner cites three cases,

o
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unt. 93 Ariz. 322, 380 P2.d 780 (1963), State v. Alvey, 215 Kan. 460,

In Re Yount,

524 P 2d 747 (1974) and In Re Sullivan, 212 Kan. 233 510 P.2d 1199 (1973) that all

deal with attorneys that refused to abide by the rulings of their respective courts and
were either disbarred or censored. Petitioner prays this honorable Court compel

,OJ{;::SE Cpents e0&o comply with the order and find Q@‘%&CWM

quilty of contempt for not obeying the lawful order of this Court.

DATED: this _tlo day of ?&\)vm\-uﬂ L 201

Sublyitted by: ‘%%MM
) cBueT ek o= L2/

Petitioner / In(Proper Person
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AFFIDAVIT OF: Z);L—ﬁ:(mé&e/l\:uz\/

STATE OF NEVYADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK | ssﬁﬁ—i/fzeﬁﬁéff -/ -

Togm IT MAY)?)NCERN:
I, )L£§u£§r'—M§¢a%?m/1he undersigned,do hereby swear that
N

all statements, fact nd events within my foregoing Affidavit are

true and correct of my own knowledge,informaticn and belief, andg
as to those,I believe them to be True and Correct. Signed under the

penalty of perjury,pursuant to,NRS. 29.010;53.045 ;208.165,and state
the followimgs @A/ 2/ ) ”7\/04 E L5780 778
Cou woge Care A—wﬁoaé 4@7@21‘

O v

23 /?y—ﬁ( 7S /(i @W@A%A “’”‘Q,

722417 o.f’ﬁftf 477—6—-@_7{9 Qefets

FURTHER YQUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.
EXECUTED At: Indian sSprings.lievada,this ‘o  Day Offe,\\ruuusq fd
20 : )
—_—— BY: § ;.L.AA P A A
w7 H :#ié5%4553
ftic SDCC

Ind%an Sorings,Mevada.89070./
Affiant, In Propria Personam:

915

(o




D ERT B ILIN
%767‘ @7%/’#?/!/ hereby certify, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), that on this
day of {{, ‘\]’d/‘) , ..0}351 mailed a trye and correct copy of the foregoing, “ MOTZ)\/
- ﬂm@ba, g _{Drsce/aey oeunpyenjs -
by placing document in a sealed pre-postage pa1d envelope an/ deposited said envelope in the
United State Mail addressed 1o the following: o
(?75%3' Z‘>DL)Q;)‘/ The law OFFeec of
Mﬁg’; KeisTi na \Ul(.D\_ VELD
2D AL IS, 6™
< 4 s Vegus L/l/ BRio|
B0/53 /706 ACoc ir1C Bllorney
Chi -Hyu M Rmis
CC.FILE
2
DATED: this_|{, day of ‘\'Cbrm\r%_, 20 \lp.
Wby ed “ﬂ‘f.ma.u
VY77 o ERAAEES)
/In Propria Personam
Post Office Box 208 S.D.CC.
[ 890
MQRAMM_BJ&
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding /M W

T Lonpes fox Qeenlbey Cocjoats

(fitle of Document) /

fled In District Court Case number > 4L-=27A4L 97 - /

I
E]/ Does not contain the sodal security number of any persan.

~OR=

O  Contalns the sodal security number of a person as required by:
A. A spedfic state or federal law, to wit:
(State specific law)

~Oor-

B. For the administration of a public program or for an application
for a federal or state grant.

M&&QA&&_ *7—/[ Lé’/ (e
Signature Date
Z),z..cszzef’ )Afﬁ@m/

Print Name L

\er (fe

Title
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DOCUMENT,
NUMBERED PAGE(S)
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\PA\\&:I* P\\@%mn AL Qo #4
etitioner/In Propia Persona

CLERK OF THE COURT
Post Office Box 208, SDCC
Indian Springs, Nevada 89070

JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE

- COUNTY OF ¢LARK

\M\m)( \\'\A’\i\r\m ;

Petitioner,

th F_\A\k\\'\aw\s
\alaiden

2]

Dept. No. E

. Docket

REVINENTIARY NEARI NG %
REQUESTEN

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)
INSTRUCTIONS:

Respondent(s).

)
)
)
i Case No.C-13 273099 -
)
)
)
)
)
)

(1) This petition'must be legibly handwritten or typewritten signed by the petitioner and verified.
(2) Additional

pages are not permitted except where noted or with respect to the facts which you |
rely upon to support your grounds for relief. No citation of

y
authorities need be furnished. If briefs
or arguments are submitted, they should be submitted in the form of a scparate memorandum.
(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete the Affidavit in Support of Request to
Proceed tn Forma Pauperis. You must ha

ve an authorized officer at the prison complete the )
y and securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the

(4) You must name as res
in a specific institution of th
If you are not in a specific i
department of corrections.

X

‘B‘) You must include all grounds or claims for relief which you may have regarding your
griction and sentence. '

pondent the person by whom you are confined or restrained. If you are
e department of corrections, name the warden or head of the institution.
nstitution of the department within its custody, name the director of the

co

<
m
w
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Failure 10 raise all grounds [ this petition may preclude you from filing future petitions
challenging your conviction and sentence. '

(6) You must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition you file seeking reljef
from any conviction or sentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions ma
cause your petition to be dismissed. If your petition contains a claim of ineffective assistance ofy
counsel, that claim will operate to waive the attorney-client privilege for the proceeding in which
you claim your counsel was ineffective.

(7) If your petition challenges the validity of your conviction or sentence, the original and one
copy must be filed with the clerk of the district court for the county in which the conviction
occurred. Petitions raising any other claim must be filed with the clerk of the district court for the
county in which you are incarcerated. One copy must be mailed to the respondent, one copy to the
attorney general’s office, and one copy to the district attomney of the county in which you were
convicted or to the original prosecutor if you are challenging your on'Final conviction or sentence.,

Copies must conform in all particulars to the original submitted for fj ing.

PETITION

I. Name of institution and county in whiﬁ%vunare prevs_\c:'ntly“i_rgggs’&onez( rg ergand who you

are presently restrained of your liberty: 30( County Nenada - ¢ _
2. Name the location of court which entered the judgment of conviction under attack: L%th

S\M\id\&k\é\“&* Qﬁuf*, D Lepis hye Lo;\\ema N\ KA

5. Date of judgment of conviction: \I0 14 >

4, Case number: (-~ \S‘QWSKLOW"\‘ t

5. (a) Length of sentence: lol)\b 25 N\DF\'\'\"S Q\)\Us‘é. (de\i\‘ibﬁq\ F_Qﬂjkﬂ('fﬁ

(b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which execution is scheduled: _N/A

6. Are you presently serving a sentence for a conviction other than the conviction under attack in

this motion:\l
YesN) No [f *Yes", list crime, case number and sentence being served at this time:

N4
7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: QQSBU.LT

With ‘\M\\\{\Aec?on{?\n\\ew \With ‘&(\[“\{ \_r\\e\(\pan \ith
@;QW‘“M*‘
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8. What was your plea? (Check one)
(a) Not guilty :)&X_

(b) Guilty MM

{¢) Nolo contendcreﬂ! ﬁ

9. If you entered a guilty plea to one count of an indictment or information, and a not guilty plea

to another count of an indictment or information, or if a guilty plea was negotiated, give detajls:

N/,
[ A

10. If you were found guilty after a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check one)
(a) Jurym
(b) Judge without ajurym

11. Did you testify at trial? Yes L)ZA NO,_XX.

12. %c:u appeal frdm the judgment of conviction?
Yes Nok)é{

13. If you did appeal, answer the following:
(a} Name of court: SL\PfQ‘MQ_ CJDU\(‘\ b% N-WGAQ\
(b) Case number or citation: lﬂL‘I "('7 (o
{c) Result; #\ \ Y
(d) Date of appeal: \Xﬂi\U&T\{ lo‘H\, D

(Attach copy of order or decision, if available).

——

14.) If you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did not: J I /
A

]
A

A=

I'5. Other than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction and sentence, have you previously

filed any petitions, applications or motions with respect to this judgment in any court, state or

federal? Yes&l& No M
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10
11
12
13

16. If your answer to No 15 wasf'(cs", give the follgwing information:

(a) (1) Name of court;

(2) Nature of proceedings: / A

(3) Grounds raised :

|
71
1

(§) Did you receive an evidentiary heaging on y petition, application or motion?

(6) Date of result: / l / \

(7) [fiknown, citations of any writtenfopinion fr date of orflers entered pursuant to each

resuit:

(b) As to any second pktition, applicationf or motio/\, give the same information:
(1) Name of Co |
(2) Nature of proceeding: / I \

.(3)Groun s raisgd: / \I\ \

(4) Did you\recdive an evidentiary hearing dn your petition;

icatign or motion?

(7) If known, citdtions or any/written opinfon or date of orders entdred pursuant to each

result;

(c) Asto any third or suhscquc additional application or motions, give Yhe same

information as above, list them on a s parate sheet and artach.




e T LB V e T A )

o0

(d) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court having jurisdiction, the result or action

taken on any petytion, application or motion?
(1) Finst petition, application or motjon? _
_ No___
Citation gr date of decision: [\

(2) Second petition, application or motion?

(e) If you did not appeal from the advefse action o any petition, application or motion,
explain brigfly why you did\ot. (You may relate speciffc facts in responde to this question. Your

court by way of petition for habeas\corpug, motion/or applicdtion or any other pbst-conviction

procegding? If so, identify:

(a) Which of the grounds is tha s

[

(b)) The proceedings in which these grounds fwere rafsed: \

/ (c) Briefly explain why you are again raisingfthese grounds. (You must relate specific facts
in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 4 x\1 1 inches

artached to the petition. Your response may not excsed five handwritten or typewritteh pages in

length)

S

!
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18. If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 33(a), (b), (¢), and (d), or listed on any additional pages
you have attached, were not previously presented in any other coun, state or federal, list briefly what
grounds were not so presented, and give your reasons for not presenting them. (You must relate
specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 ¥ x

Il inches attached to the petmon Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten

/#\

19. Are you filing this petition more than one (1) year following the filing ofthejudgrnent of

pages in length),

conviction or the filing of a decision on direct appeal? If so, state briefly the reasons for the delay.

(You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on

paper which is 8 13 x 11 inches attached to the petition. Your re nse may notexceed five
handwritten or typewritten pages in length), /MJ__R lm S iMQA/

20. Do you have any petition or appeal now pending in any court, either state or federal, as to the

Jjudgment under attack?

Yes Qj& No m

If*“Yes”, state what court and thc case number: A}A

21. Give the name of each attomey who represented you mn the rocecdm r?lnng in your
conv:ctlon and (gxtrect appeal; MV\T}\ U [ C)&\ﬂ lﬂQ fl% {ﬂq
€Ne \i\x(« *\ﬁ.k\a\ﬁ (‘mt ) and dsn

*&3&0\(\(\(\0 ﬂ,\AN\Pu\A\QMQKN\,Q Nice -

22. Do you have any future sentences (o serve afier you complete the sentence imposed by the

Judgment under attack?

Yem No M If"Yes™, specify where a/n\cj Van itis to be served, if you know:

6
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Summarize briefly the facts supporting each ground. [f necessary, you may antach pages stating

additional grounds and facts supporting same.

- '. ’ ) L T I ‘ K . v
23. . () GROUND O m‘f_\: \\ NANLL LAS R T TR na
\s\l\’&\mr%fs g‘é N i‘s\'\r} 6T | QN Foutieenth (M United Stoles D07y

v u Agten g 1 \ 2 Rroee e e (T’D‘SS ANCe &%
CLUNERY) ONG, DI (L S50 A ek Xion OF 10 . N ﬂ&ﬂ A e rdouy -
\edezale, &R Xhe AU A% TRNS Yo Ehe. [ ansit Q0 &% e R, & Ne\iGeley

hewde 32ha0d Mrile b &1 ond b, Chalieneg, Q‘\m N3 Safides,
T OB EONONET by O Diec e *DD R, 0 DRQE. RCA U'an\,

)
A
1 OSTORE Tul\lN R e, Supps 9 ks pelow. S
23.  (a) SUPPORTING FACTS (Tell yourstiry nefly without citing cases or law): R DAY

(A\&C\GS\%\\Q\%K ‘ézgam.\'\on &%k@(\\“ W 5!€>ec\>a\‘a3dm Perids
“\b R@*\ t_\e, U\T\‘\ ..5;%’\';65} \'he Cl\nskri%iﬂ‘it\n 8% ‘Y\WE,S\fGSYE@Q' NE\](KX(\ (0 Dns\’.
e New) \ Was\idated .rm\ﬁm\z\l‘ j\ba\'\lf\omc dcﬂs ?\E‘:‘__ﬁﬂ& J(\\E,\?omqo 1nq
Con=rutional q gz Hon A Stle alsa Tor the_deter mination 2.t

an ioeec e aiance. R couneel clatn AN & asiﬁmc
JE'\mf::\\w Nalork ertnged Ry e Totee \aetices, &Q\Jneﬁjprﬁm&
Lewt & Newada, Macdaed ToRe D he Salide Sevieipn U praiesin

(eonenission),C an Lenically and Leatt mq*f(\\l\—ﬁqtﬂhﬂr Nies,

ESecks Fondhions \?afms'.‘?mc\@ﬁ Shoing %'tﬁsi i;:‘w el %m
eie Basic Spatce stthaee e, et b1, A peekiition SH e

e, % Newack £ Hiaa A 2 Sepate Rl No 4z - Commitiee on
finance CANETER 30 ®ads, a5 dlas: There 1< ‘erekyy O
QW ssian of the Sate & \\\Qs\m\m %0 e ¥onuon a<Yhe Yemm -
iission Yot tevistan and) comeilation & Nevada s,  Iete -
aftes felerred o g the eormission, Syuch Commission hall
De. tompored) s e wembecs, aod <aid tembers shall be.ie.
Jﬂﬂm'&,\sﬁg@x o e 2uptene ourt, e members & <uieh Cato-
mission shallhave tre. crecers, and duies, deadloed nhis
e, e shall eeetve such <dany boc e seryices, = shal

[}

be_bresciited Wi ok, and syl ea &\erﬁ enadiments..
g -

930




W 00 =3 h @ 3 D

bt b
-0

(END\\Q5\5 added 'y D?\qm&\ (&aﬁﬂm\c od Bxhiit® 1” Szml(g,
"l l'ﬁ?}\\“\\\h %2~ @z\mm*\ee, on Roance, CRAPTER 204 T I\DQ, |
tored Magch 22,1391

?e}r\%\m« m%mc}a@%a\as%&\‘m C\Lﬁuﬁs ?un@n&ﬂs MR‘S,
0K pernnoed by e *\\Y@.\m’mﬁs = Yoo 2 greroe Conerat

\\\ew\c\ 0 Noncaed \D\l S22 itk an Bnance. CHAD-
TEK7\D4 ’t‘% V\ch\f\ 22, ﬂ‘\"s’\ Openiy \Ita Olfﬁd H(\QQG\W (md W

aianons anaugae e Lansk s? New. k2 a4, 0s el as
Mk Lt Toak e vidatian 6 At 3 2% and Aek (s ob Tte.

L cosnet Ve tanciates, ’V\:&‘éﬂabwmxs\ms st Cha Rﬁﬁ&‘n Y
oNKy

e s BYAAM <o Ex\n W7 is wece Linepns

Rroga Theve® mce,b’no(\‘ “ o, *\\QLP\&\ 2 SR No 42~ Com-
witke oo Faa f\(LC)r\(\WEKﬁD% t;Q March 22,195, i <l t wWhicn
tandard Nia Secrinnd *Thege. i etely 0 feated 0 Opmmaissinn

6%5(\\&%3(&(&8&} N@\}(\AQ 3(6\06, \(nommﬂé jr\\e_L e 53\ an %o? o "

jen&mw\m\ss\ ON. %uén COMMINESIDN 3\1@ \ \cemmm«ed (ee ey~
\mvs and) m\c\ N\em\oﬁh ‘E\Bm\ \EQ \jn&\xr\wc AL L%Jﬂ(\ff: 8Q \)DE, P~
fette_trnet e ferakees A =ik Qmmmxss\on %\m\mﬂ\f&" e
Qs e duities pieserbed by thisack, 1. IS unconstitu-
3t\om\ C\V(,\*\\Q@?me,\ D\(\ Elssr\\\a lxéx AN \\0 ’\K?: QDNN\\\(&QQOD
Fiance CHATER 204 8} Mareh 22 4951, =pecilically tantmaeres|
Yee clear Natn.and L\mwkm\ms laray m&@Q Aok 221, anel At |
o5, 8D Yhe { rovediy o Mk oot o o aty andor all mr\homw |
E}@M\T\&Qbmmamm ALl Om\ Ny r\“a\\x\s ?\c}Y AN NQ Rz -
Qrrooaitiee oo Niracce CANTER 2R H 8% Magch 1A C\S\ s 1o
=everile tansiutional DI 5ion 1n Yoo Ml =2\§, ford

|
PJJE_FIQ_ :
I
|
E

931




|

: |c E’_, '—D% No A2 -Commiiee. b 'an' C_\ 1\ i R » )
Q llﬂ M AS O \‘uoe,m\mns fianayt Qﬂc\(mm Ul V
Q A N0 | 21 Dﬂ< I& b_‘ A su\b\e(*e){\ *D G(\‘%& NQ&QUJ
lon,and tonitcRon Vo prodisions S'.‘.%LCDMM)H@C
onlinance. CHAPTER 304 8t March 22 4951 That =aid AL SR,
Nb. 122 Lo tie 0 Birance . CHATER Z0Y & March 221 5'\

©0 o -2 h o sl (] [ 3= [

10
1
12

© 13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

a1

23

24

28 || %

e :*r‘h

eein i Crrevindh, Blitone s hos teen suseced 1 a0 LnCAR
itubiona) sy, Orasec1ton. and (onyician. Thns, Rhheners
Orinse Vs e ppeaenianon Yl belroos an o\s\eén\le standard 8-
Qmsam\b\am,ss m‘nm \%‘(\J(\cnec = an&\ R tg) \'o \eﬁkn&o - |
\edae e Inthe disenikranle faeks as i the uneonskidbion-
(\\EN TR SR NG A2 O e DV\‘F\M\\QQ,Q\\P\?TEK 3 o \V\Qm‘n
17, %’\ e &em\ho\q\mq’(‘mdmc D ain, (\nd \kﬂ(}ft\b\ql TAITRS |
\anayae A e Uonst, 6 N Dot 284 and et o, 8M ol opurcel
r\é?) t\ecﬁY bfeﬁbvmnc& %\\3 m\\‘u@lm S\ (\\mec\wt: S}m rr\(lr(l 8%

g, | incanarintianal: nutand void oo e teasips ettt }

| ¢ et innal 0 e \\ﬂt&ﬂ&*\%u\\(\m\\jt\l & SR ND A7 (o

rasonavle tess, and Rettianes o been Eﬁ’rem\\: fedliced
> Crvn=el ~ deficteat cerTrmance . Tk exce o She chnaRel <
Aeicientt etrmonoce e auiecnve M he otereedipas, Lould

h(\\ﬁm (\S\S\\rde n* A\ )(\“Ql( G@\\*\OR&C Qf\\\(\\m\[ﬁ_d\qﬁrma( JY‘(\E ul

astesst v cnion o Linich Bitisnes pas siectin qc\bamq un-

Wit .00 Foance CHAPTER 204 o Magdh 22, 1951 ,(nd) The. irop- |
act e onihans oF SB . No 482 - Oavnniltee 0o gace CHA-

—_—

ER=04 o8 Mardh 22,1951, bas on whethee Riincecs mce:ﬁg
| Moseaion, mﬂ Of Qbﬂ\\\(}nm 1D Qbﬂ‘ax(\*u\\om\\\\ \(\m%\ ’

1o cdd o, “hauld e, distier epusk Feve. swsTined-up=-| -

l

Paga P]b"

932




D\l e O80T, M8ose i Ton, € l|"‘-..
D) e, Q\\enc_x)e(ﬁ\oe(\edsion Tuling atipe disticy
Lot Ao Nt Iy _ ’K\\ef\ug Oy, 99 Nef\? a m'\g'\ng oS-

\On an ues"mn&%\am;

3
: Tk asothe <perific, coniiiiuiona mlﬁ des &Q%&szkr.-@g Neg,

\aa ;els\"\o'ﬂ , N“(?‘&é’\z RS ns‘}o\\a WO &c\n'm A ,-“\(t:e,ie tq Lcﬁff,

decalcitsents secaration 6t Gowecs " Te tomers o the Crapr-

et Stthe St st Nevadn hall be Awided inks Hhiee cecarate.

depaehaes e Leacldhine e Becuive cndne bty

10 lond 00 tersons chaed Wi The exescise 3R Dees PraDe|
1 [re\dnaing 1o e & ‘i' LATTINRATS SNl eYe

12 [ AONSS appestaining Tevipe QWS exeent in e Cases, heein

13 | QUBREEN Aicected a¢ ertoitted.” | -~

1o 1D 2, RS S ISt Waslices and \udees e licinle

15 108 Diper sttice<\Re uskices, B e suprere LRTnd The” '

16 Aismicrindees, nall e wnelig e A ol ofice, otber Tran o

7 I B, i e e 1 -hich ey <ol have been
Sleced e peninted Bl all ekeetinn 00 gronyierts, &) O

200 \wdae = by e ceedle ; \eai=lalre A OF Dtteewise. Muglna

20l 2aid ried RS (l\mro@%\‘cé, Dive £than wdic il ;%‘m\\ benoid”

o1 | MherenveLaced inenthe dbrve ond Freinn Rhkiorer dees re-

| &geé& by egperhatinis oot il apeat B ilanec elie€, e |

2 || e_tncoredional. tnlawil coniicticn. |

T

- | War, =l i L oot ek agartt Riiager Y?\'\tgi Blitaree does |

i Yﬁb(\zac}&\ )\\\1\ ea \eé( \Smxr s, &)m il QDRC\L\Q)I an Q\ti(\eﬁ\'\ﬂ Nl

25 | tearion Tal dnct eend tan te nade develpping Rlikinpers
@r;.&\m&\ aeladinla) \?\—6&}9&}5&- B-this Cipapch - ][ |

3 . P.]qe:-'vc-
' 933




o [+ -] ~J (o n L= I 2 —

'd‘\).\JM—I—C'—!H——H——D—-‘
G“Lhi—ulo-ooooqam-nuw—o

J 12 1 3]

~d

12

[0 o]

DU AT\ Q‘DSQ_Q iBNa 0

23 \9)
e \‘e‘:#-.’( e i\ . 1Aqrian
SRANAT \g\l. 2 \i _HOERSS ‘\' i*'“ 1 N NCI 1y
KRN gesid DB SR e Yoytieen ) egrdmens Nabhi 1 TaCess
o na\%&cé(& = ﬁm% mﬁé}u\\w‘ <e¥ Yorh in R SLING i bacrs

Noud.

GORJ{\\IB TWO: ek ¥D('?Q\"‘¥‘DRQ( siﬁe. . e_,ahd 3 \(l
4\ A 6F Tea<ohaple
)

23. (b) SUPPORTING FACTS (Tell your story briefly without citing cases or Iaw):—ﬂgt_
%«&k\m&( h%%h&&&\g*ﬁﬁ&&' anse& \fo Qiee. (1&! i\'iond'
Giownds ‘8% \n&«\x WE_(=) é@‘mﬁ& thsﬁ\ _TB’\).}( Pe!r l‘\' IANCC Sgeks,
Yo hallenae Tnarthe. Mahual Orilnel dnbance et penglty Vidlafes
%&N&@&@:& QXOU&::.._ \n lémjt ' S{\\\@C\m Unc\x&r %Q}K\Ef\'m\'
Ot nal Eﬁn\\(}w&? BQDO“\[ VS QA Q C B \p
4 e T <e. Clayee. e Ynurteendiit |4k ,
ek e \ iy ( cneiiu on, Os, well as, additignal
Brounds Socteliel.
“That S{\\‘Kﬁ DORE Ares \\(NG)Y\\Q Q\si\is(\ 1o PRI ard sibmita
weanipelil Qéck*im%( writ 8 Welveas cor E’JUS(?DS\'* convichian).
H\M‘(%&\mﬁ( ha=. beea hindered in dininathe assistance.
%Mn Qnothes ‘\N‘M}(Q D xf&\'deixﬂ\{ \(nom)k(\aerﬂ)\\t IRH .\ciu_\i
Yo st g N\Q;mif\c\xim\ gsc\i\w'm e lon jr‘leg hakwas, torpu s,

~
\
\
T~
\
\
\

+g-

934




WHEREFORE, ‘Pﬁ:\’ ¥LOQQV . prays that the court grant Qﬁ:" '\"ON‘EV"

rc.hct to which he may be entitled in this proceeding.

execueD a_Soudhern Decerd Cmradﬂoml Cente~

onthe _ dayof L0

Wl e

Signature of Petitioner

VERIFICATION
Under penalty of perjury, pursuant to N.R.S. 208.165 et seq., the undersigned declares that he is

the Petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the contents thereof; that the pleading is

true and correct of his own personal knowledge, except as to those matters based on information and

belief, and to those matters, he believes them-to be tnue.

Pty

Signature of Pcutloncr

/4

Attfoméy for Petitioner
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I, X[\\\\hu(* \'\ c\(mm , hereby certify, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), that on this M
day of [N\ gh , 20]_(0_, I mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing, ™ ga. bews (o rpu.S

'y

Pehitoy
by placing document in a sealed pre-postage paid envelope and deposited said envelope in the

United State Mail addressed to the following;

\
\ggan%‘fulz \\
Y N
-2217 —
™~ o~
\ \,
CC-:FH..E
DATED: this A}, dayof \{\af gh 201k .
MM U MAN #2(R0
tYione /In Propna Personam
Post Offite Box 208,5.D C.C
Indian ] Nevada 89018
IN FORMA PAUPER]S:
¥]
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iec: 8. Qualifications of voters on adoption or rejection of constitution. All persons qualified by law to vote for representatives to ihe
jeneral Assembly of the Territory of Nevada, on the twenty first day of March A.D. Eighteen hundred and sixty four and all other persans wio
nay be lawful voters in said Territory on the first Wednesday of September next following, shall be entitled to vote directly upon the question

f adopting or rejecting this Constitution.

Sec. 9. Recall of public officers: Procedure and limitations. Every public officer in the State of Nevada is subject, as herein provided, to
ecal! from office by the registered voters of the state, or of the county, district, or municipality which he represents. For this purpose, not less
han twenty-five percent (25%) of the number who actually voted in the state or in the county, district, or municipality which he represents, at
he election in which he was elected, shait file their petition, in the manner herein provided, demanding his recall by the people. They shall set
orth in said petition, in not exceeding two hundred (200) words, the reasons why said recall is demanded. If he shall offer his resignation, it
hall be accepted and take effect on the day it is offered, and the vacancy thereby caused shall be filled in the manner provided by law. If he
hall not resign within five () days after the petition is filed, a special election shall be ordered 1o be held within thirty (30) days after the
ssuance of the call therefor, in the state, or county, district, or municipality electing said officer, to determine whether the people will recall
aid officer. On the ballot at said election shall be printed verbatim as set forth in the recall petition, the reasons for demanding the recall of said
fficer, and in not more than two hundred (200) words, the officer’s justification of his course in office. He shall continue to perform the duties
f his office until the result of said election shall be finally declared, Other candidates for the office may be nominated to be voted for at said
pecial election, The candidate who shall receive highest number of votes at said speciat election shall be deemed elected for the remainder of
he term, whether it be the person against whom the recall petition was filed, or another. The recall petition shall be filed with the officer with
vhom the petition for nomination to such office shali be filed, and the same officer shall order the special election when it is required. No such
etition shall be circulated or filed against any officer until he has actually held his office six (6) months, save and except that it may be filed
gainst a senator or assemblyman in the legislature at any time after ten (10) days from the beginning of the first session after his election, After
me such petition and special election, no further recall petition shall be filed against the same officer during the term for which he was elected,
inless such further petitioners shall pay into the public treasury from which the expenses of said special election have been paid, the whole
mount paid out of said public treasury as expenses for the preceding special election. Such additional legislation as may aid the operation of

his section shall be provided by law. .
|Added in 1912, amended in 1970 and 1996, The addition was proposed and passed by the 1909 legislature; agreed to and passed by the 1911 lcgislature: and upproved and

wified by the people at the 1912 general election. See: Statutes of Nevada 1909, p. 343; Statures of Nevada 1911, p. 448. The first amendment was propused and passed by the
967 legislature; ngreed 10 and passed by the 1969 legislature: and approved und ratified by the people al the 1970 general election. See: Statutes of Nevada 19067, p. 1732 Statules
f Nevada 1969, p, 1663, The second amendment was proposed and passed by the 1993 lepislature; apreed to and passed by the 1995 legislature: and approved und ratified by the
cople a1 the 1996 general clection. See: Statules of Nevada 1993, p. 3135: Statutes ol Nevadu 1995, p. 2837}

Sec. 10. Limitation on contributions to campaign.

I As used in this Section, “contribution” includes the value of services provided in kind for which money would otherwise be paid, such
s paid polling and resulting data, paid direct mail, paid solicitation by telephone, any paid campaign paraphernalia printed or, otherwise
roduced, and the use of paid personnel to assist in a campaign.

2. The Legislature shall provide by law for the timitation of the total contribution by 2ny natural or artificial person to the campaign of any
erson for election to any office, except a federal office, to 5,000 for the primary and $3,000 for the general election, and to the approval or
ejection of any question by the registered voters to $5,000, whether the office sought or the question submitted is local or for the State as a
vhole. The Legislature shail further provide for the punishment of the contributor, the candidate, and any other knowing party to a violation of

he limit, as a felony. ,
{Added in 1996. Proposed by initiative petition and approved and ratified by the people at the 1954 and 1996 General Electians.]

ARTICLE. 3. - Distribution of Pawers.
ee. Three separate departments; separation of powers; legislative review of administrative regulations.

Section 1. Three separate departments; separation of powers; legislative review of administrative reguluations.

I. The powers of the Govemment of the State of Nevada shall be divided into three separate departments,—the Legislative,—the
Executive and the Judicial; and no persons charged with the exercise of powers properly belonging to one of these departiments shall exercise
any functions, appertaining 1o either of the others, except in the cases expressly directed or permitted in this constitution.

2. If the legislature authorizes the adoption of regulations by an executive agency which bind persons outside the agency, the legislature

1ay provide by law for:
(a) The review of these regulations by a legislative agency before their effective date to determine initially whether each is within the

latutory autherity for its adoption;

(b) The suspension by a legislative agency of any such regulation which appears to exceed that authority, until it is reviewed by a legislative
“ody composed of members of the Senate and Assembly which is authorized to act on behalf of boih houses of the legislature; and

{c) The nullification of any such regulation by a majority vote of that legislative body. whether or not the regulation was suspended.

{Amended 10 1996, Proposed and passed by the 1993 legisluture; agreed to and passed by the 1993 legistature: and approved and rlificd by the people al the E996 generul
lection. See: Statutes of Nevada 1993, p. 3082; Statutes of Nevada 1995, p, 2972,

ARTICLE. 4. - Legislative Department

Legislative power vested in senate and ussembly. :

Bienniul sessions of Legislature: Commencement: imitution on duration: void actions:- submission ol proposed exeeutive budget. [Effective
through November 26. 2012, und after thit date unless the proposed amendment is agreed to and passed by the 2011 l.egislature
and appruved and ratilicd by the voters ut the 2012 General Election. |

Biennial sessions of Legislature: Commencement: Himitation on duration: void actions: submission of proposcd esceutive budget, |Lfective
Nuvernber 37, 2012, it the proposed amendinent is ugreed Lo und passed by the 2011 Legistature and upproved and ralifivd by ihe
vuters at the 2012 General Election.

RN Special sessions of Legislature: Procedure Tor convening: precedence: limitations on business and durativn: void sctions, |EMective Nuvember

37, 2013, if the proposed addition is agreed 1o and passed by the 2081 Legistature and approved and ratificd by the voters ut the

2012 General Election, |
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THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF NEVADA \( \ { Page 20 of 48

:espective counties unless the Legislature otherwise provides by law.

{Amended twice in 1976 end in 1998. The first and second amendments were proposed and passed by the 1973 Legistature; agreed 10 and passed by the 1975 Legistature: and
\pproved and ratified by the people at the £976 General Election. See: Statutes of Nevada 1973, pp, 1940 and 1953, Statutes of Nevada 1975, pp. 1870 and 1981, The first and
iecond amendments were combined pursuant to Nev. An. 16, § 1. The third amendment was proposed and passed by the 1995 Legisiature: agreed 1o and passed by the 1997
-egis[amfrc. and approved and ratified by the people at the 1998 General Election. See: Statutes of Nevada 1995, p. 2964: Statutes of Nevada 1997, p. 1598

Sec. 7. Terms of courts. [Effective November 23, 2010, if the proposed amendment is approved and ratified by the voters at the
2010 General Eiection.] The times of holding the Supreme Court, the court of appeals, if established by the Legislature, and the district courts
nust be as fixed by law. The terms of the Supreme Court must be held at the seat of government unless the Legislature otherwise provides by
aw, except that the Supreme Court may hear oral argument at other places in the State. The terms of the court of appeals, if established by the
-egislature, must be held at the place provided by law. The terms of the district courts must be held at the county seats of their respective
rgunties unless the Legislature otherwise provides by aw.

[Amended twice in 1976 and in 1998. 'Fhe lirst and second amendments were proposed and passed by the 1973 Legislalure; agreed 10 and passed by the 1975 Legislmure, and
pproved and ratified by the people at the 1976 General Election. See; Statutes of Nevada 1971, pp. 1944 and t953; Statuies of Nevada 1975, pp. t870 and 981, The irst and
ceand amendments were combined pursuant 1o Nev, Art. 16, § |. The third amendment was propesed and passed by the 1995 Legislature: agreed 10 and passed by the 1997
-gislature: and approved and ratified by the people at the 1998 General Election. See: Statutes of Nevada 1993, p. 2964: Swiutes of Nevada 1997, p- 3398, )—(Proposed
mendment passed by the 2007 Legislature; agreed to and passed by the 2009 Leislature; etfective November 23, 2010, if approved and ratified by the volers at the 2010 Genera!
dlection. See Statutes of Nevada 2G07, p. 3556; Statutes of Nevada 2009, p. 3225,

Sec. 8. Number, qualifications, terms of office and jurisdiction of justices of the peace; appeals; courts of record. |Effective through
Jovember 22, 2010, and after that date unless the proposed amendment is approved and ratified by the voters at the 2010 General
ilection.] The Legislature shall determine the number of justices of the peace to be elected in each city and township of the State, and shall fix
'y law their qualifications, their terms of office and the limits of their civil and criminal jurisdiction, according to the amount in controversy,
he nature of the case, the penalty provided, or any combination of these.

The provisions of this section affecting the number, qualifications, terms of office and jurisdiction of justices of the peace become effective
n the first Monday of January, 1979,

The Legislature shall aiso prescribe by law the manner, and determine the cases in which appeals may be taken from justices and other

ourts. The Supreme Court, the district courts, and such other courts, as the Legislature shall designate, shall be couns of record.
[Amended in [978. Proposed and passed by the 1975 Lepisluture; ngreed (o and passed by the 1977 Legistature: and approved and ratified by the people at the 1978 General
lection, See: Statutes ol Nevada 1973, p. 1952 Statules of Nevada 1977, p. 1691.]

Sec. 8. Number, qualifications, terms of office and jurisdiction of justices of the peace; appeals; courts of record. |Effective
iovember 23, 2010, if the proposed amendment is approved and ratified by the voters at the 2010 General Election.]

I. The Legislature shall determine the number of justices of the peace to be elected in each city and township of the State and shall fix by
ww their qualifications, their terms of office and the limits of their civil and criminal jurisdiction, according to the amount in controversy, the
ature of the case, the penalty provided or any combination of these.

2. The provisions of this section affecting the number, qualifications, terms of office and jurisdiction of justices of.the peace become
ffective on the first Monday of January, 1979, e

3. The Legislature shall also prescribe by law the manner, and determine the cases, in which appeals may be taken from justices and other
ourts, The Supreme Court, the court of appeals, if established by the Legislature, the district courts and such other courts gs the Legislature

1all designate are courts of record. )

[Amended in 1978, Propused and passed by the 1975 Legislature; agreed lo and pussed by the 1977 Legislature; and approved and ratified by the people ut the 1978 Generat
lection. See: Statutes of Nevada 1975, p. 1932: Siatutes of Nevada 1977, p. 1691.|—(Proposed amendmeny passed by the 2007 Legisluture: agreed to und passed by the 2009
cgislature: effective November 23, 2010, i approved and ratified by the voters al the 2010 General Election. See Statdtes of Nevada 1007, p. 3336 Swmies of Nevada 20089, p
125) .

Sec: 9. Municipal courts. Provision shall be made by law prescribing the powers[,] duties and responsibilities of any Municipal Coun
1at may be established in pursuance of Section One, of this Arnticle; and also fixing by law the jurisdiction of said Court so as not to conflict
‘ith that of the several courts of Record.

Sec: 10. Fees or perquisites of judicial officers. No Judicial Officer, except Justices of the Peace and City Recorders shall receive to his
wn use any fees or perquisites of Office[ ]

Sec. I, Justices and judges ineligible for other offices. |Effective through November 22, 2010, and after that date unless the
roposed amendment is approved and ratified by the voters at the 2010 General Election.| The justices of the Supreme Court and the
dislrictjudges shall be ineligible to any office, other than a judicial office, during the term for which they shall have been elected or appointed:;
und all eleciions or appointments of any such judges by the people, Legislature, or othenvise, during said period, to any office other than
wdicial, shall be void.

| Amended 1n 1950, Proposed and passed by the 1947 Legislature; agreed to and passed by the 049 Legistatare; and approved and ratfied by the people al the 1950 General
cction. See: Statutes of Nevada 1947, p 878 Statutes of Nevada 1949, p 634 |

Sec. 11. Justices and judges ineligible fur other uffices, |Effective November 23, 2010, if the proposed amendment is approved and
ttified by the voters at the 2010 General Election.| The justices of the Supreme Court, the Jjudges of the cournt of appeals, if established by
¢ Legislare, and the district judges are ineligible to any otfice. other than a judicial office. during the term for which they have been elecied
“appointed. All elections or appointments of any such judges by the people, Legisiature or otherwise during said period to any office other
an judicial are void,

[Amended n 1950, Proposed and pussed hy the 1947 Legistature: agreed w and passed by the 1949 Legislature: und approved and ratified by the people a1 the 1930 General
setion. See: Statutes of Nevada 18947, p. 878; Stutes of Nevada 949, p 684 |—(Proposed amendment pussed by the 2007 Legisluture; agreed o and passed by e 2U0Y
g:'l)uturc: eifective Noveinber 23, 2010, il zpproved und ratitied by she voiers at the 200 General Election. See Statutes ol Nevada 27, p. 3357; Sunutes of Nevada 2009, p

‘e 12, Judge not to charge jury respecting mattérs of fact; statement of testimony and declaration of law. Judges shall not charge
res in respect o matters of tact, but may state the testimony and declare the law. .
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other than carrying out the leﬂmmate functions of the Nevad
drens' Foundation, Iue., the same shall be taxed.
Eleuenth——Notwithstanding any othér provision
section or subsection thereof, all claims
property shall be filed on or before

is act or any
ezemptians on real

Senate Bill No. 182—Committee on Finance

CHAPTER 304

AN ACT establishing a permanent commission for the revision, compilation,
annotation, and publishing of the laws of the State of Ne\nda and certain
laws of the United States; preacribipg certain dutles of a temporary
nature; prescribing certain duotles of a permeanent nature; maoking an
approprintion therefor, and other matters properly connected therewlth.

[Approved March 22, 1951])-

Tha Peopls of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly,
do enact as follows:

Seotiow 1. There is hereby created a commzsswﬁ of the State of
Nevada, to be lnown as the “‘commission for revision and compilation

of Nevada laws,” hereinafter referred to as the commission. Such -

commission shall be composed of thres members, and said members
shall be the thres justices of the supreme court. The members of such
commission shall have the powers and duties prescribed by this act,
and shall each receive such salary for their services as shall be pre-
scribed by this act, and subsequent enaciments.

SE0. 2. As soon as practicable after the eifective dats hereof the

commission shall commence the preparation of a complete revision and

compilation of the constitution and the laws of the State of Nevada
of general application, together with brief annotations and marginal
notes t0 sections thereof. Such compilation when completed shall be
known as “Revised Laws of Nevada,. ...oocovvoiieeieeveceeieeeens ;' and the
year of first publication shall be filled in the blank space of snch t:tle.
for brevity such title may be cited as “Rev. Laws...

Sec.3. In prepering such compilation the commission i hereby
authorized to adopt such system of numbering as it deems practical,
to cause said compilation to be published in such number of volumes,
but such volumes shall not exceed 750 pages, as shall be deemed con:
venient, and to cause such volumes to be bound in loose-leaf binders
of ﬂ'cod and so far as possible, permanent quality. The pages of such
compllatlon shall conform in size and printing style to the pages of
the Statutes of Nevada, except that if necessary for marginal notes,
the same may be of greater w1dth and roman style type oaly, shaill

EXHIRIT™ )

FORT

- be nsed. In general, it is re

compilation should follow th
pilation heretofora made and
1912, as authorized by chag

3ec. 4. Upon completion
the commission is anthorized
‘at the state printing offc
printing the separate volums
and forwarded to the secretar
as set forth hereinafter. Suff
so that there shall be boun
“Revised Laws.,” A master
............ .’ shall be kept in the
copy shall not be removed £

a member of the commission

Se0.5. In complying wit)
the limitation of available aj

" ized to employ such clerical

compensated at the same rat
position, and such assistants i
sary, and shall be familiar w
of laws. The terms of the

. assistants shall be fixed by {

Sec. 8. The commission st
appropriagtion hereby made
required by this act.

Se0.7. From and after th
............ ,’ and the delivery of
said secretary of state shall |
of each elected or appointed s

‘gaid officer therefor, thirty s

exclusive use of the legislat
county of the state for the us
ney of that county, one set s
state maintained by public fr
necessary, not to exceed 50 s
librarian for reciprocal tradix
faderal territories, The rem:
of state at a price of $10 pe
shall be deposited in the gent

Seo. 8. The compilation |
accompanied by as completa
pare, which index shall be
and style as the "Revised Li

Se0.9. The secretary of s
sion all records of his orfice w
sion, and any books or statu
shall likewise be made availa

Sec. 10. Tpon request of




. FORTY-FIFTH SESSION 471

- be used. In general, it is recommended, but not required, that such
compilation should follow the plan of organization used in the com-
pilation heretofore made and known as the “Revised Laws of Nevada,
1912, as authorized by chapter CCXXXVI, Statutes of 1909.

Sro. 4. Upon completion of each portion of said “Revised Laws,”
the commission is authorized and directed to have the same printed
'at the state printing office, and uwpon completion of the final
printing the separate volumes shall be bound as herstofore required
and forwarded to the secretary of state for safekeeping and disposition
as set forth hereinafter. Sufficient copies of each page shall be printed
so that there shall be bound 2,500 copies of each volume of said
‘Mevised Laws,” A master copy of said “Revised Laws of Nevada,
............ )’ shall be kept in the office of the commission, and such master
copy shall not be removed from said offica except in the custody of
a member of the commission.

" Seo. 5. In complying with the provmlons of this act, and within
the limitation of available appropriations, the commission is author-

" ized to employ such clerical assistance as it deems necessary, to be
compensated at the same rate as other state employees of comparable
position, and such assistants in drafting and research as may be neces-
sary, and shail ba familiar with methods of compilation and drafting
of laws. The terms of the employment and compensatmn of such
asgistants shall be fixed by the commission.

Src. 6. The commission shall reimhnrsa the state prmter from the
appropriation hereby made for the cost of printing and binding
required by this act. ,

Se0.7. From and after the completion of “Revised Laws of Nevada,
............ ;7 and the delivery of the same to the secretary of state, the
said secretary of state shall forward one set of ths same to the office
of each elected or appointed state officer, and take the official receipt of
‘said officer therefor, thirty sets shall be reserved at all times for the
exclusive use of the legislature, one set shall be furnished to each
county of the state for the use of the distriet judge and district attor-
ney of that county, one set shall be furnished to each library in the
state maintained by public funds, and such number of sets as may be
necessary, not to exceed 50 sets, shell be made available to the. state
librarian for reciprocal trading with state libraries of sister states and
federal territories. The remaining sets shall he sold by the secretary
of state at a price of $10 per volume, and all proceeds of such sales
shall ba deposited in the general fund.

3cc. 8. The compilation herein authorized to be made, shall be
accompanied by as complete an index as it shall be practical to pre-
pare, which index shall ba printed and bound in the same manner
and style as the “Revised Laws.”

Se0. 9. The secretary of state shall make available to the commis-
ston all records of his office which are or may be of use to the commis-
sion, and any books or statutes in the custady of the said seeretary
shall likewise be made available to said commission,

Szo.10. Upon request of the commission, the superintendent of
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buildings and grounds shail assign and make available to the commis-
sion snitable and convenient rooms or gpace for the use of the com-
mission and its employees. .

SE0. 11, The commission is authorized to purchase or otherwise
securs, necessary supplies and equipment,

Sec.12. Upon the completion of “Revised Laws of Nevada, ........ ’
the commission is anthorized and directed to prepare and have printed
such replacement and supplementary pages for such laws, as may from
time to time be necessary. In any event, said commission shall prepare

the replacement and supplementary pages made necessary by thé

sessions of the legislature, as soon asg possible after each such session.
The intent of this seetion is that such' “Revised Laws” shall ba kept
current insofar as may be possible. Distribution of the same ig to
be made as for the original volumes, and prices shall be set by the
commission as near as possible to the eost of preparing and printing,
‘Provided, that where distribution of the original volumes was without
charge; no charge shall ba made for replacement. -

SEC. 13. Upon completion, “Revised Laws of Nevada, »

may be cited as prima-facie evidence of the law in all of tha courts
of this state. Such evidenca may be rebutted by proof that the same
differ from the official Statutes of Nevada.

Sea, 14, The commission shall, from time to time, make recom-
mendations for clarification of specific statutes, for elimination of.
obsolete statutes, and calling the attention of tha legislature to con-
flicting statutes, and such other matter as it deems necessary.

SE0. 15. The members of the commission shall each receive a sal-
ary of one hundred twenty.five dollar ($125) per month, paid as are
the salaries of other state officers, and out of the appropriation hereby
made, for the period commencing on the effective date hereof, and
expiring June 30, 1953. :

SEo. 16, There is hereby appropriated from the general fond, for
the purposes of this act, the sum of seventy-five thousand dollars
($75,000). Claims against thig appropriation shall be allowed and
paid in the same manner as ara other claims against the state,

SE0. 17.  This act shall be effective from and after May 1, 1951,
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